
Public meeting of the Council of Governors

Will commence at 1.00 on Tuesday 6 September 2016, to be held
in the Large Function Room, St George’s Centre, Great George
Street, Leeds, LS1 3BR

Agenda
_____________________________________________________________________________

Members of the public will be given the opportunity to ask questions at both
the beginning and the end of the meeting.

It is preferable if questions could be written down and handed to either the
Chair or the Head of Corporate Governance before these points in the
meeting; however, the absence of a written comment/question will not
preclude members of the public from being allowed to put these to the

Council.

Who

1 Welcome and introductions (spoken) Frank Griffiths

2 Apologies (spoken) Frank Griffiths

3 Changes to any declaration of interests
and declaration of any conflicts of
interest in respect of agenda Items
(spoken)

Frank Griffiths

4 Opportunity to receive comments or
questions from members of the public in
order to inform the discussion on any
agenda item (spoken)

Frank Griffiths



5 Minutes of previous meeting

5.1 Minutes of the public meeting held on 26
July 2016 (paper to read)

Frank Griffiths

6 Matters arising

6.1 Improving employment opportunities for
people with learning disabilities (min
16/059) (paper to read)

Susan Tyler

6.2 Questions from the July Council of
Governors’ meeting about safe staffing (min
16/066) (paper to read)

Anthony Deery

7 Cumulative actions log – actions
outstanding from previous public
meetings (paper to read)

Cath Hill

8 Chair’s report (paper to read) Frank Griffiths

9 Introductory remarks by Dr Sara Munro
out new Chief Executive (spoken)

Sara Munro

Part A – Strategic items

Part B – Performance items

10 Non-Executive Director presentation
about performance, to present:

10.1 Integrated Quality and
Performance Report Q1

10.2 Safe staffing levels report
10.3 Complaints report
10.4 Trust Incident Review Group,

lessons learnt report

Julie Tankard



Part C – Governance items

11 Presentation of the findings from the
audit of the Annual Report and Accounts
2015/16 and the Quality Report 2015/16
(paper to read and presentation)

Pricewaterhouse
Coopers LLP

12 Report on the outcome of the governors’
reviews (spoken)

Frank Griffiths

13 Review of the Terms of Reference for the
Council of Governors (paper to read)

Cath Hill

Part D– For information items

14 Minutes of the public meeting of the
Board of Directors held 23 June 2016
(paper to read)

Frank Griffiths

15 Membership and events report (paper to
read)

Anthony Deery

16 Minutes from the Appointments and
Remuneration Committee meetings held
5 July 2016 (paper to read)

Cath Hill

17 Future meeting dates (paper to read) Cath Hill

18 Any other business (spoken) Frank Griffiths

19 Questions/comments from members of
the public (spoken)

Frank Griffiths

The next public meeting of the Council of Governors will be held
on Tuesday 16 November 2016 in the Wedgewood Room at the Royal York Hotel

the start time of the meeting will be advertised on our website
www.leedsandyorkpft.nhs.uk



Frank Griffiths Jill Copeland
Chair of the Trust Interim Chief Executive



1

LEEDS AND YORK PARTNERSHIP NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Minutes of the Public Meeting of the Council of Governors
held on Tuesday 26 July 2016 in the Large Function Room, St

George’s Centre, Great George Street, Leeds, LS3 1BR

PRESENT:
Frank Griffiths – Chair of the Trust (Chair of the meeting)

Public Governors Staff Governors
Philip Jones Dominik Klinikowski
Niccola Swan Andrew Johnson
Steve Howarth Ruth Grant
Jo Sharpe

Appointed Governors
Carer Governors Colin Clark
Andy Bottomley

Julia Raven

Service User Governors

Ann Shuter

IN ATTENDANCE:
Margaret Sentamu, Non-Executive Director (Deputy Chair of the meeting)
Jill Copeland, Interim Chief Executive
Gill Taylor, Non-executive Director
Steven Wrigley-Howe, Non-executive Director
Keith Woodhouse, Non-executive Director
Angela Earnshaw, Head of Learning and Organisational Development (for agenda item 15)
Andrew Howorth, Head of Patient Experience (for agenda item 10)
Cath Hill, Head of Corporate Governance (meeting secretariat)
Rose Cooper, Governance Assistant (minutes)
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Action

16/054 Welcome and introductions (agenda item 1)

Mr Griffiths opened the meeting at 13.15 and welcomed everyone.

16/055 Apologies (agenda item 2)

Apologies were received from the following governors:
 Claire Woodham
 Helen Douglas
 Carol-Ann Reed

16/056 Changes to any declaration of interests and declaration of any
conflicts of interest in respect of agenda Items (agenda item 3)

No governor present at the meeting indicated a change to their
declared interests; nor did any governor raise a conflict in respect of
any agenda item.

16/057 Opportunity to receive comments or questions from members
of the public (agenda item 4)

Mr John Mason, a member of the public, suggested the Trust could
consider cooperating with private sector health companies in order to
enhance its financial position.

Ms Tricia Thorpe, Time to Change Development Officer, requested
more emphasis be placed on not tolerating stigma and discrimination
in Trustwide documentation and asked that the governors become
ambassadors for this cause.

The Council received the comments made by the public.

16/058 Minutes of the Public Meeting held on 12 May 2016 (agenda item
5.1)
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The minutes of the public Council of Governors’ meeting held on 12
May 2016 were agreed as an accurate record.

16/059 Matters arising (agenda item 6)

Mrs Swan requested that following discussions at a recent Council of
Governors’ workshop a review of what the Trust is doing about
increasing employment opportunities for people with learning
disabilities be added to a future meeting agenda. CH

The Council of Governors noted this request.

16/060 Cumulative actions outstanding from previous Council of
Governors’ meetings (agenda item 7)

The Council of Governors agreed that the two outstanding actions
be closed as both had been actioned.

16/061 Chair’s Report (agenda item 8)

The Council of Governors received the Chair’s Report and noted
the contents discussed.

16/062 Trust Strategy Refresh (agenda item 9)

Ms Copeland introduced the paper and provided an overview of the
process and journey to date of the Trust strategy refresh project and
what has been learnt from the two rounds of online Crowdsourcing
that took place from April to June 2016.

Ms Copeland informed the Council that 20% of staff had contributed
to the platform overall, a significant figure compared to previous staff
engagement. She felt this could be attributed to the anonymous and
non-hierarchical format of the Crowdsourcing method which had
been particularly praised by staff.

Ms Copeland drew attention to the mention of working towards
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service users living without stigma in the Trust’s vision.

Mr Klinikowski felt the emerging strategic objectives described were
quite vague, lacking detail regarding how they could be implemented
and that some of the discussion in the Crowdsourcing document had
been lost.

Mrs Swan felt more could be said about the Trust working with wider
partner organisations such as local authority or third sector, greater
mention of the difference the Trust makes to peoples’ mental health
and suggested that how the Trust will achieve measurable outcomes
could be conveyed more strongly. Mrs Swan added that she felt it
had been an excellent piece of work overall.

Mr Howarth questioned the use of ‘kind tone of voice’ in the vision
and values as being too simplistic and ‘effective premises’ in the
emerging strategic objectives section as being unclear.

Ms Copeland noted the suggestions made by the Council which will
be recommended to the Board of Directors.

The Council of Governors considered the documents and agreed
the content subject to the suggested amendments.

16/063 Update on the STP for Leeds and West Yorkshire (agenda item
9.1)

Ms Copeland gave a brief overview of the development and
submission of both the West Yorkshire and Leeds Sustainability and
Transformation Plans (STPs).

With regard to the STPs Ms Copeland noted that these are high-level
documents and that the next steps and definitive implications are as
yet unclear. She noted that further clarification can be expected over
the next few months on how plans will be implemented and how the
Trust will be affected. Ms Copeland assured the Council that the
Trust’s strategy on local integration and developing partnerships with
other trusts across West Yorkshire fits with direction of travel of the
STPs.

Mrs Swan asked for clarity on the role of the governors during this
process and Ms Copeland responded that as it stands the governors’
role remains the same and they will agree any major transactions as
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normal. She added that how these plans will develop is still unknown
but that the Trust will ensure it is in the best position to influence the
decision-making process.

The Council of Governors received the paper and noted the
contents discussed.

16/064 Annual Members’ Day update (agenda item 10)

Mr Andrew Howorth summarised the plans for the Annual Members’
Day 2016 and emphasised the importance of the role of the
governors in engaging with members prior to the event, but also
welcoming people on the day itself. He noted that they are also
invited to hold a stall on the day which is an opportunity to encourage
other Trust members to consider becoming a governor.

This year’s campaign has focused on identity and challenging stigma
and is called “this is me!”. A vote for next year’s membership
campaign will also be taking place on the day.

The Council of Governors noted the plans for the Trust’s Annual
Members’ Day and the Governor involvement in the event.

16/065 Non-Executive Director presentation about performance (agenda
item 11)

Dr Taylor, chair of the Finance and Business Committee, explained
there was no performance report being presented at this meeting.
Due to of timing issues the report will instead be signed off at the
Board of Directors on 28 July before being submitted to NHS
Improvement at the end of the month. She went on to describe the
remit of the Finance and Business Committee and the challenges it
meets.

Dr Taylor spoke of her concern regarding the efficiency of the IT and
e-Procurement processes which currently exist in the organisation
but went on to assure the Council that developments are being made
which will help to release resource and improve systems for staff.
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One area of development is digital solutions and Dr Taylor went on to
discuss the recent pilot of Digi-pens that took place across the Trust.
She emphasised the importance of IT being accessible and helpful
during periods of system change and described one of the
challenges for the NEDs as being to encourage back-office teams to
work more closely together in order to better support frontline
services.

Dr Taylor informed the Council of her recent visit to Yorkshire Centre
for Psychological Medicine to learn about the estates problems they
face, explained the Committee’s current understanding of the control
total budget requirements and highlighted the Out of Area Transfers
(OATs) budget overspend.

Mr Howarth asked whether our status as a foundation trust would
enable a legal challenge to the increase of the control total to £3
million. Dr Taylor explained the pressure put on the Board was such
that it gave them very little choice other than to accept.

Mr Klinikowski asked if it would not be possible to increase the
capacity of inpatient beds to meet the current demand. Dr Taylor
explained that since taking on the OATs contract in 2011 the Trust
had little choice regarding inpatient bed numbers.

The Council thanked Dr Taylor for her informative presentation.

The Council of Governors received the non-executive director
presentation about performance.

16/066 Safe staffing levels report (agenda item 12)

In Mr Deery’s absence questions were taken from the Council.

Mr Jones started by saying he found the report to be very useful. He
then pointed out that on page 53 of the Quality Report (agenda item
18), as part of the Patient-Led Assessments of the Care Environment
(PLACE), there was a notable decline in score against several
criteria from 2014 to 2015 at 13 sites across the Trust. Mr Jones then
linked this to section 4.2.4 on page 7 of the Safe staffing levels report
where it was mentioned that staff clinical time is being compromised
by tasks such as housekeeping, cleaning and preparing food. Mr
Jones felt that already stretched nursing staff using their time to do
non-clinical duties was not effective when these roles could be
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otherwise recruited to.

Mr Klinikowski noted that emphasis is placed on safe staffing but not
necessarily effective staffing and queried whether anything was
being done to ensure we improve the level of care we provide. He
also pointed out that newly qualified nurses are not able to provide
the same level of care as nurse who is experienced. What is being
done about this?

Mr Howarth expressed concern at the unsafe staffing levels in
specialist areas such as the eating disorders unit, where staff
engagement and involvement with high risk client groups is
particularly important.

Mrs Swan pointed out that the report only looks at staffing levels on
wards and asked why Community Mental Health Teams are not
included as part of a wider picture of delivering effective care despite
staff shortages.

With regard to recruitment, Mrs Earnshaw explained that the recent
staff appointments following the combined recruitment events are
currently only covering the high turnover of staff. Ms Copeland added
there is a delay as a result of appointing a large number of newly-
qualified nurses who will start in September.

Mr Johnson asked why only the Registered Nurses and Health
Support Workers on duty per shift are included in the report but
Occupational Therapists and other Allied Health Professionals are
not mentioned. Mr Johnson emphasised the vital role these staff
have in assisting service users with activities of daily living.

The questions were noted by the meeting secretariat and a
response will be prepared for the September meeting. AD

16/067 Complaints report (agenda item 13)

Mrs Hill informed the Council that the figure of non-clinical claims on
page 9 is a misreport and should in fact read circa £12,000 not
£12,000,000.
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The Council of Governors received this report and noted the
amendment made.

16/068 Trust Incident Review Group, lessons learnt report (agenda item
14)

The Council discussed the Mazar report and the work of the Mortality
Review Group. Mr Griffiths suggested an agenda item regarding its
progress should be included at the November Council of Governors’
meeting.

CH

The Council of Governors received the report and was assured that
the actions in respect of lessons learnt are being progressed
appropriately within the Trust.

16/069 Staff survey report: 2015/16: highlights and 2016/17 action plan
(agenda item 15)

Mrs Angela Earnshaw introduced the paper and provided details of
how the Trust’s Staff Survey results compare to those of other
mental health trusts nationally, how the results of 2015 compare to
previous years and how the key issues will be addressed going
forward. The results of the 13th staff survey were made public on 23
February 2016 when NHS England published the feedback reports
for all Trusts in England. Mrs Earnshaw explained that the overall
aim of the survey is to gather information that will help improve the
working lives of NHS staff and so provide better care for service
users.

Mrs Swan was disappointed that certain areas have repeatedly poor
performance against the national average and urged for different
action to be taken on the feedback to instigate a culture change. Mrs
Earnshaw responded by outlining the work of the Your Voice Counts
programme, Ms Copeland’s listening events and the Crowdsourcing
project but acknowledged that staff need to see tangible difference
being made to their work environment as a result of the feedback
they provide us with.
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The Council of Governors received the report and noted the
outcome of the 2015 Staff Survey and recommendations for 2016/17.

16/070 Outcome of the CQC inspection (agenda item 16)

Ms Copeland informed the Council that the initial feedback received
from CQC indicated that they had seen significant improvements
since the last inspection. She explained the Trust had also been
given an opportunity to resubmit additional, more current data. Once
the inspection is finished the CQC require 50 working days to
complete the draft reports, there is then an opportunity for the Trust
to complete a factual accuracy check before the final reports are
published in October.

Ms Grant raised a concern that much need refurbishment works on
wards at the Becklin Centre were only actioned in preparation for the
CQC inspection and not at the point they were initially required. Ms
Copeland responded that estates issues were given top priority
status from January, before the CQC inspection was announced.

The Council of Governors noted the verbal update on the outcome
of the CQC inspection.

16/071 Governors’ appraisal report (agenda item 17)

Mr Griffith’s explained this item would be deferred to the September
Council of Governors’ agenda.

CH

The Council noted the delay to this agenda item.

16/072 Quality Report 2015/16 (agenda item 18)

The Council of Governors received the Quality Report 2015/6.
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16/073 Minutes of the public meeting of the Board of Directors held 28
April 2016 (agenda item 19)

The Council of Governors received the minutes of the meeting of the
Board of Directors held 28 April 2016.

16/074 Draft minutes of the Strategy Committee meeting held 14 April
2016 (agenda item 20)

The Council of Governors received the minutes of the Strategy
Committee held 14 April 2016.

16/075 Membership report (agenda item 21)

The Council of Governors received the membership report and
supported the membership actions.

16/076 Minutes from the Appointments and Remuneration Committee
meetings held 4 May and 12 May (agenda item 22)

The Council of Governors received the minutes of the Appointments
and Remuneration Committee held 4 May and 12 May.

16/077 Question / comments from Members of the Public (agenda item
23)

Ms Tricia Thorpe acknowledged that the new Trust strategy and
Annual Members’ Day campaign both included anti-stigma
messages but felt that more work could be done.

Mr Alan Proctor expressed concern at the high turnover of
governors, particularly within the staff clinical constituency. He
suggested a paper be produced describing why previous governors
had left and for the Trust to do more to encourage others to join. Mr
Proctor added that from a staff governor perspective the level of
enthusiasm for the recent Crowdsourcing approach may translate to
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increased interest in the position.

As it was their last meeting Mr Griffiths thanked Maria Trainer and Mr
Philip Jones for their hard work and contributions during their time on
the Council of Governors.

The chair of the meeting closed the public meeting of the Council of Governors of Leeds
and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust at 15.00 and thanked Governors and
members of the public for their attendance.
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COUNCIL OF GOVERNORS’ ACTION SUMMARY
(PUBLIC MEETING)

Meeting held 26 July 2016

MINUTE ACTION SUMMARY (PUBLIC MEETING) LEAD

16/059 Matters arising (agenda item 6)

Mrs Swan requested that following discussions at a recent
Council of Governors’ workshop a review of what the
Trust is doing about increasing employment opportunities
for people with learning disabilities be added to a future
meeting agenda.

CH

16/066 Safe staffing levels report (agenda item 12)

In Mr Deery’s absence questions were taken from the
Council. These were noted by the meeting secretariat and
a response will be prepared for the September meeting. AD

16/068 Trust Incident Review Group, lessons learnt report
(agenda item 14)

The Council discussed the Mazar report and the work of
the Mortality Review Group. Mr Griffiths suggested an
agenda item regarding its progress should be included at
the November Council of Governors’ meeting.

CH

16/071 Governors’ appraisal report (agenda item 17)

Mr Griffith’s explained the Governors’ appraisal report
would be deferred to the September Council of Governors’
agenda.

CH



1

Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

Council of Governors

Name of paper: Increasing Employment Opportunities for People with
Learning Disabilities

Date of the meeting: 3rd September 2016

Person presenting the paper: Susan Tyler, Director of Workforce

Paper written by: Caroline Bamford, Head of Diversity and Inclusion

TYPE OF PAPER (please tick)

Strategic item:

Performance item: 

Governance item: 

Information item:

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC GOALS (please tick relevant box)

G1 People achieve their agreed goals for improving health and improving lives

G2 People experience safe care

G3 People have a positive experience of their care and support

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES (please tick relevant box)

SO1
We provide excellent quality, evidence-based, safe care that involves people
and promotes recovery and wellbeing

SO2 We work with partners and local communities to improve health and lives 

SO3 We value and develop our workforce and those supporting us 

SO4 We provide efficient and sustainable services

SO5 We govern our Trust effectively and meet our regulatory requirements

Agenda Item

6.1
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STATUS OF PAPER 

To be taken in the public session (Part A)



To be taken in private session (Part B)

If the paper is to be taken in the private session please indicate which criterion
is applicable:

Legal advice relating to legal proceedings (actual or possible)
Negotiations in respect of employee relations where they are of a
confidential nature
Procurement processes and contract negotiations
Information relating to identifiable individuals or groups of individuals

Matters exempt under the Freedom of Information Act (quote section
number)

In June 2015 NHS England launched a national programme to support
and encourage NHS organisations to develop local solutions to increase
employment of people with learning disabilities in the NHS.

What this is about in detail:

During 2015/16 work was undertaken to identify local and national best
practice and to identify partnership opportunities to increase the
employment rate of people with learning disabilities or difficulties within
the Trust.

This work has not yet developed into a specific scheme or initiative due
to priority focus on reducing the high number of vacancies within clinical
services and reducing the demand for agency staff.

Summary (what we are talking about):
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The Council of Governors is asked to approve the following future
actions detailed within section 4 of the attached paper:

 To develop a vocational pathway model by December 2016;
 To carry out a workforce audit by March 2017 to improve the level

and accuracy of workforce disability data recording.

Recommendations (what we are asked to agree):
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Increasing Employment Opportunities for People with Learning Disabilities

1. Purpose

The purpose of this paper is to provide the Council of Governors with details of the

current Trust position regarding increasing employment opportunities for people with

learning disabilities within the Trust.

2. Current Workforce Data

There are limitations nationally with the analysis and reporting of workforce disability

data by specific health conditions, due to report function restrictions with the national

staff data system ESR. Therefore the number of current staff with a learning

disability or difficulty is currently unknown.

In addition there are substantial differences with the disability data recorded on ESR

currently at 4.8% with the percentage of staff who declared a disability or long-term

health condition through the 2015 Staff Survey, which was 22% from a total of 404

respondents.

3. Current Schemes and Initiatives

During 2015/16 scoping work was undertaken to identify local/national best practice

and to identify partnership options and opportunities to increase the employment rate

of people with learning disabilities/difficulties within the Trust. This work included

scoping meetings with specialist employment support organisations Remploy and

Pluss and Tenfold the learning disability forum for Leeds.

This work has not yet developed into a specific scheme or initiative due to priority

focus on reducing the high number of vacancies within clinical services and reducing

the subsequent demand for agency staff.

4. Next Steps

A workforce audit to improve workforce disability data recording will be undertaken

during 2016/17 to provide baseline data and to support the identification of

improvement targets.

A vocational pathway model and an implementation proposal plan will be developed

from the scoping work undertaken in 2015/16 by December 2016.The work will be

developed and monitored through the Trusts Equality and Inclusion Group.
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Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

Council of Governors

Name of paper: Questions from the 26 July Council of Governors’
meeting about safe staffing

Date of the meeting: 6 September 2016

Person presenting the paper: Anthony Deery (Director of Nursing, Professions &
Quality)

Paper written by: Linda Rose, Assistant Director of Nursing

TYPE OF PAPER (please tick)

Strategic item:

Performance item: 

Governance item: 

Information item:

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC GOALS (please tick relevant box)

G1 People achieve their agreed goals for improving health and improving lives 

G2 People experience safe care 

G3 People have a positive experience of their care and support 

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES (please tick relevant box)

SO1
We provide excellent quality, evidence-based, safe care that involves people
and promotes recovery and wellbeing



SO2 We work with partners and local communities to improve health and lives 

SO3 We value and develop our workforce and those supporting us 

SO4 We provide efficient and sustainable services 

SO5 We govern our Trust effectively and meet our regulatory requirements 

Agenda Item

6.2
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STATUS OF PAPER 

To be taken in the public session (Part A)


To be taken in private session (Part B)

If the paper is to be taken in the private session please indicate which criterion
is applicable:

Legal advice relating to legal proceedings (actual or possible)
Negotiations in respect of employee relations where they are of a
confidential nature
Procurement processes and contract negotiations
Information relating to identifiable individuals or groups of individuals

Matters exempt under the Freedom of Information Act (quote section
number)

Responses to questions from the 26 July Council of Governors’ meeting about safe
staffing.

What this is about in detail:
Five questions were raised by five separate members of the Council for Governors;
namely comparison with the Quality Report and PLACE; Level of Care; Staffing
Levels in Specialist Areas; Inclusion of CMHT and Reasons for not including OT’s
and AHP’s in the report. A response has been provided for each of the questions.

Summary (what we are talking about):

Recommendations (what we are asked to agree):

The Council of Governors is asked to received and note the
responses.



Council of Governors’ meeting of 26 July 2016

Questions for Anthony Deery to respond to regarding agenda item 12:
Safe staffing levels report

Question 1
Mr Jones started by saying he found the report to be very useful. He then pointed out
that on page 53 of the Quality Report (agenda item 18), as part of the Patient-Led
Assessments of the Care Environment (PLACE), there was a notable decline in
score against several criteria from 2014 to 2015 at 13 sites across the Trust. Mr
Jones then linked this to section 4.2.4 on page 7 of the Safe staffing levels report
where it was mentioned that staff clinical time is being compromised by tasks such
as housekeeping, cleaning and preparing food. Mr Jones felt that already stretched
nursing staff using their time to do non-clinical duties was not effective when these
roles could be otherwise recruited to.

Response: The safe staffing report makes reference to Westerdale ward specifically
where non-clinical duties have historically been carried out by clinical staff for a
number of years. There is clearly a role for housekeeping and domestic services and
this has recently been reviewed by the service leads. There is a new cleaning
schedule to reflect the duties of the domestic staff and the domestic supervisor
meets with the ward manager on a weekly basis for quality assurance. In addition an
advert for more domestic staff will also be advertised shortly.

Question 2
Mr Klinikowski noted that emphasis is placed on safe staffing but not necessarily
effective staffing and queried whether anything was being done to ensure we
improve the level of care we provide. He also pointed out that newly qualified nurses
are not able to provide the same level of care as nurse who is experienced. What is
being done about this?

Response: Improving the level of care is based on a range of compulsory training
activity alongside developmental support and training which is picked up through
appraisal, supervision and learning lessons locally and nationally. As an example our
inpatient staff are conducting a piece of work to improve the quality of engagement
and observation with service users whom are subject to the restrictive intervention of
within eyesight observation. The outcome is expected to improve the service users’
experience and clinical practice.

Newly registered nurses are deemed competent when they are admitted to the
Nursing and Midwifery Council (NMC) register and are employed by us. However, it
is recognised that this group of staff require support to improve their confidence. We
offer a formal Preceptorship package of learning for this group that offers a series of
workshops, resilience training and completion of the Edward Jenner leadership
programme to support this group. The organisation has received excellent feedback
from the participants.



Question 3
Mr Howarth expressed concern at the unsafe staffing levels in specialist areas such
as the eating disorders unit, where staff engagement and involvement with high risk
client groups is particularly important.

Response: Recruitment issues continue to present both a local and a national
challenge in reaching required levels of staff and is featured on the risk register. In
mitigation the service has, and continues to, carry out specific planned recruitment
exercises for Registered Nurses and Health Support Workers in specialist and
learning disability services. Contemporary methods such as social media are also
being used to attract the rightly skilled staff.

At present there is a Band 5 advert for Clifton House and staff have been moved
from across the service to ensure safe staffing across all the specialist areas.10 new
starters will be joining these services in the next 2 months.

Question 4
Mrs Swan pointed out that the report only looks at staffing levels on wards and asked
why Community Mental Health Teams are not included as part of a wider picture of
delivering effective care despite staff shortages.

Response: In March 2014 the Chief Nursing Officer and the Chief Inspector of
Hospitals wrote to Chief Executives, Directors of Nursing and Directors of HR to give
clear guidance on what is expected of Trusts in relation to publishing staffing
numbers and the Boards’ responsibility to be assured that staffing capacity and
capability is sufficient to provide safe care. This was in response to the Mid-
Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust Public Inquiry (The Francis report).

The standard referred to inpatient areas only and Community mental health teams
have not been included in LYPFT reporting (or national reporting) for this reason.

There is currently no evidence based tool in mental health to assist services to
review the capacity and capability of the workforce.

However, development work is being progressed internally and nationally in terms of
developing a meaningful evidence based inpatient tool and community mental health
teams are being included in this portfolio of work nationally.

The position for Community services in July was as follows:

WNW CMHT: 32wte posts, 7 currently vacant = 21.9% vacancy rate.

In the West 5 of the 7 posts vacant are band 6 posts which provides an added
complication of not having sufficient senior/experienced posts to support
preceptorship for newly qualified band 5 roles

ENE CMHT: 29wte posts, 5.4 currently vacant = 18.6% vacancy rate -
predominantly band 5 vacancies



SSE CMHT: 28wte posts, 5 currently vacant = 17.8% vacancy rate -
predominantly band 5 vacancies

Plan to address vacancies:

1 A bespoke recruitment event was held on July 8th for community services:
(approx. 40 applicants shortlisted)

There is to be an extended scope of recruitment for care co-ordinators to include
other core registered professionals with transferable competencies, e.g. LD nurses,
substance misuse workers, qualified social workers.

There is to be a recruitment gratuity payments scheme for external band 6
appointments to the WNW CMHT.

2. A review of the leadership structure within community teams has been completed.
The plan is to introduce clinical team manager posts (from within existing band 7
resources) to smaller “care teams” within locality teams (particularly the West) to
start to create clearer defined leadership roles to better support clinical staff.

This situation is on the care group risk register as extreme, and is also a Trust
strategic risk. There has been a 15% increase in referrals across the board to
CMHTs to compound the staffing challenges

Immediate actions

1. Bank staff are used where they are available, but there are few bank staff that
work into the community teams with the appropriate skillset and expertise to
undertake specialist holistic assessment.

2. New roles such as the “creative practitioner” have developed to support care co-
ordinators in reducing their ongoing caseload burden. As these are fairly new roles
focusing on supporting the “discharge” end of the pathway, the impact has not yet
been fully evaluated.

The main impact is observed in the local KPI for waiting times for Community Mental
Health Teams for face to face contact within 14 days. For quarter 4 2015-16 this was
reported as 75.6% against a target of 80%.

Question 5
Mr Johnson asked why only the Registered Nurses and Health Support Workers on
duty per shift are included in the report but Occupational Therapists and other allied
health professions are not mentioned. Mr Johnson emphasised the vital role these
staff have in assisting service users with activities of daily living.

Response: Although the nursing profession was largely under the spotlight during
the Mid-Staffordshire review, allied health professions (AHPs) are also key providers
of health and social care and it is important that they be treated as an integral part of
the care provision picture, and consequently staffing levels determination. However,



as raised in question 4 the report only includes Registered Nurses and Health
Support Workers as this was the national directive from the Chief Nursing Officer
and the Chief Inspector of Hospitals.

This was challenged nationally and as the ‘NHS Five Year Forward View’
acknowledged healthcare as increasingly being delivered by a multi-professional
workforce - it noted getting the right mix of staff in these multi-disciplinary teams is
vital.

The Chief Nursing Officer agreed in June 2015 that all staff involved in healthcare
will be taken into account, not just nurses. This is work in progress.
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Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

Council of Governors

Name of paper: Cumulative actions log – actions outstanding
from previous public meetings of the Council
of Governors

Date of the meeting: 6 September 2016

Person presenting the paper: Cath Hill - Head of Corporate Governance

Paper written by: Cath Hill - Head of Corporate Governance

TYPE OF PAPER (please tick)

Strategic item:

Performance item: 

Governance item: 

Information item:

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC GOALS (please tick relevant box)

G1 People achieve their agreed goals for improving health and improving lives 

G2 People experience safe care 

G3 People have a positive experience of their care and support 

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES (please tick relevant box)

SO1
We provide excellent quality, evidence-based, safe care that involves people
and promotes recovery and wellbeing

SO2 We work with partners and local communities to improve health and lives

SO3 We value and develop our workforce and those supporting us

SO4 We provide efficient and sustainable services

SO5 We govern our Trust effectively and meet our regulatory requirements 

Agenda Item

7
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STATUS OF PAPER 

To be taken in the public session (Part A) 

To be taken in private session (Part B)

If the paper is to be taken in the private session please indicate which criterion
is applicable:

Legal advice relating to legal proceedings (actual or possible)
Negotiations in respect of employee relations where they are of a
confidential nature
Procurement processes and contract negotiations
Information relating to identifiable individuals or groups of individuals

Matters exempt under the Freedom of Information Act (quote section
number)

The Council of Governors is asked to receive a list of actions still
outstanding from its previous meetings so it can be assured of the
progress and if necessary ask for an update on particular actions.

What this is about in detail:

It is considered good practice to formally monitor progress against
actions agreed by the Council of Governors, so that undue delay or
failure to complete actions is formally challenged. Accordingly, the
cumulative action log is detailed in the attached report and will be
updated following each meeting.

The Council is asked to note the governance pathway for the action list;
not only will it be received by the Council of Governors at each of its
meetings but is also reported to the Executive Team so that executive
directors can review their actions ahead of the Council meeting with the

Summary (what we are talking about):
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Chief Executive maintaining an overview of the completion and progress
of actions.

Please note that any action reported as being completed on the attached
document will be removed before the next meeting.

The Council of Governors is asked to:

 Note the actions outstanding from previous Council meetings,
seeking clarification as to progress where it considers this
necessary.

Recommendations (what we are asked to agree):
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COUNCIL OF GOVERNORS – Cumulative Action Log (public meeting)

Cumulative Action Report for the Public Council of Governors’ Meeting

Key to status =
Still outstanding/awaiting completion
Completed
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R MINUTE
NUMBER AND
ORIGINATING

MEETING DATE

ACTION
(INCLUDING THE TITLE OF THE PAPER THAT GENERATED THE ACTION)

PERSON
LEADING

COUNCIL
MEETING TO BE
BROUGHT BACK
TO / DATE TO BE
COMPLETED BY

COMMENTS

S
T
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T

U
S

16/059 (July
2016)

Matters arising (agenda item 6)

Mrs Swan requested that following discussions at a recent Council of
Governors’ workshop a review of what the Trust is doing about
increasing employment opportunities for people with learning
disabilities be added to a future meeting agenda.

Susan Tyler September 2016 ADDED TO THE SEPTEMBER
AGENDA

The Council of Governors’ is
asked to consider this item to be

closed

16/066 (July
2016)

Safe staffing levels report (agenda item 12)

In Mr Deery’s absence questions were taken from the Council. These
were noted by the meeting secretariat and a response will be
prepared for the September meeting.

Anthony
Deery

September 2016 ADDED TO THE SEPTEMBER
AGENDA

The Council of Governors’ is
asked to consider this item to be

closed

16/068 (July
2016)

Trust Incident Review Group, lessons learnt report (agenda item
14)

The Council discussed the Mazar report and the work of the Mortality
Review Group. Mr Griffiths suggested an agenda item regarding its
progress should be included at the November Council of Governors’
meeting.

Cath Hill /
Anthony

Deery

November 2016

16/071 (July
2016)

Governors’ appraisal report (agenda item 17)

Mr Griffith’s explained the Governors’ appraisal report would be
deferred to the September Council of Governors’ agenda.

Frank
Griffiths

September 2016 ADDED TO THE SEPTEMBER
AGENDA

The Council of Governors’ is
asked to consider this item to be

closed
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Title: Changes to the membership of the Council of Governors
Contributor: Cath Hill
Status of item: Standing item (for information)

On 22 August 2016 we concluded the latest round of elections to our Council of Governors, and are very
pleased to announce that we have had an excellent response in both the number of candidates who stood for
election and the number of people who voted in the ballot. We would like to extend a very big thank you to
everyone who took part in our elections and made it such a success.

At the end of the election period the following people have been elected to our Council of Governors:

 Andrew Bright (Carer: Leeds) – elected by ballot

 Alan Procter (Carer: Leeds) – elected by ballot (re-elected for second term)

 Evrett Buckle (Public: Leeds) – elected by ballot

 Steve Howarth (Public: Leeds) – elected by ballot (re-elected for second term)

 Peter Webster (Public: Leeds) – elected by ballot

 Brian White (Public: Leeds) – elected by ballot

 Les France (Public: Leeds) – elected by ballot

 Anita Garvey (Public: Leeds) – elected by ballot

 Niccola Swan (Public: Rest of England and Wales) – elected by ballot (re-elected for second term)

 Claire Woodham (Service User: Leeds) – elected unopposed (re-elected for second term)

 Cynthia Lipman (Service User: Leeds) – elected unopposed.

We would like to congratulate those governors who are joining the Council for the first time and welcome back
those who are returning for another term of office.

The Council is also asked to note that Maria Trainer came to the end of her third term of office on the 16
August and was not eligible to stand for election again. Maria has served 9 years on the Council of Governors
and was elected to the very first Council in 2007. We would like to thank her for all her help and support to
the work of the Council and the Trust, particularly her support in regard to the Trust Awards.

Another of our governors, Philip Jones, also came to the end of his term of office on the 16 August and decided
not to re-stand for election due to other personal commitments. Philip made a big contribution to the
discussions at the meetings of the Council of Governors and also asked questions of the executive directors
outside of the meetings. We would like to thank him for his support to the work of the Council and the Trust
more widely.

Title: Changes to the membership of the Board of Directors
Contributor: Cath Hill
Status of item: Standing item (for information)

On 25 July 2016 interviews were held for two non-executive director posts and we are pleased to report that
following this, on the 26 July at a general meeting, the Council of Governors confirmed the appointment of
Prof John Baker (commencing 1 September 2016 for three years) and Mrs Sue White (commencing 7
November 2016 for three years).

The Council is also asked to note that on the 5 September Dr Sara Munro took up the post of Chief Executive
and that the 6 September is the first Council of Governor’s meeting that she will attend.
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Title: Attendance by directors at Board meetings
Contributor: Cath Hill
Status of item: Standing item (for information)

The Council of Governors is asked to note the attendance of directors at the Board of Directors’ meetings, in
particular attendance pertaining to the non-executive directors. This information will also be provided in the
Trust’s Annual Report.
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Non-executive directors

Frank Griffiths (Chair)    

Margaret Sentamu    

Julie Tankard    

Gill Taylor   - 

Carl Thompson  - - 

Keith Woodhouse  -  

Steven Wrigley-Howe    

Executive directors

Jill Copeland     

Anthony Deery     

Dawn Hanwell   -  

Jim Isherwood  -   

Lynn Parkinson   - 

Susan Tyler    
.
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Title: Attendance by non-executive directors at Council of Governors’ meetings
Contributor: Cath Hill
Status of item: For information

The Council of Governors is asked to note the attendance of non-executive directors at the Council of
Governors’ meetings. This information will also be provided in the Trust’s Annual Report.
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Non-executive directors

Frank Griffiths  

John Baker 

Margaret Sentamu  

Julie Tankard - -

Gill Taylor - *

Carl Thompson * -

Keith Woodhouse - 

Steven Wrigley-Howe - 

* Indicates the NED who gave the presentation on the Board’s performance
.

Frank Griffiths,
Chair of the Trust
September 2016
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Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

Council of Governors

Name of paper: Integrated Quality and performance Report for
Quarter 1 2016-17.

Date of the meeting: 6th September 2016

Person presenting the paper: Anthony Deery

Paper written by: Mark Gallacher

TYPE OF PAPER (please tick)

Strategic item:

Performance item: 

Governance item:

Information item:

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC GOALS (please tick relevant box)

G1 People achieve their agreed goals for improving health and improving lives √ 

G2 People experience safe care √ 

G3 People have a positive experience of their care and support √ 

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES (please tick relevant box)

SO1
We provide excellent quality, evidence-based, safe care that involves people
and promotes recovery and wellbeing

SO2 We work with partners and local communities to improve health and lives

SO3 We value and develop our workforce and those supporting us

SO4 We provide efficient and sustainable services

SO5 We govern our Trust effectively and meet our regulatory requirements

Agenda Item

10.1
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STATUS OF PAPER 

To be taken in the public session (Part A)
√ 

To be taken in private session (Part B)

If the paper is to be taken in the private session please indicate which criterion
is applicable:

Legal advice relating to legal proceedings (actual or possible)
Negotiations in respect of employee relations where they are of a
confidential nature
Procurement processes and contract negotiations
Information relating to identifiable individuals or groups of individuals

Matters exempt under the Freedom of Information Act (quote section
number)

This is a summary of the Quarter 1 IQP for 2016/17.

What this is about in detail:

This is a summary of the Integrated Quality and Performance report for
Quarter 1 2016-17

The Trust has met all its National Health Service Improvement (formerly
MONITOR) targets for Q1.

Some local targets agreed with commissioners have not been met.
Remedial action plans are produced for the commissioners to identify
how these targets will be met going forward.

It is not anticipated that there will be an immediate effect on the Quality
of care. However, remedial Action Plans are developed to address the
issues causing the shortfall in performance in order that appropriate

Summary (what we are talking about):
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action is taken before there is any effect on the quality. Managers also
monitor performance in real time through COGNOS reports to identify
where there may be issues.

The Council is asked to note the introduction of four new performance
indicators into the IQP, namely the Friends and Family Test , the Mental
Health Safety Thermometer , timely access to Acute Liaison Psychiatry
in the LTHT Emergency department and referral to diagnosis for the
memory service. Further details about these are given in the report.

From August 2016 a new format for the IQP is to be introduced.
The Performance and Quality and Informatics teams feel that this is a
better format for the following reasons:
• It is an improvement in style and is much easier to analyse.
• More information can be fitted on one page making the report
more concise.
• The current format takes far longer to produce, several hours,
whereas the new format can be run in several minutes. This would allow
refreshed reports to be produced more frequently if required.
• Further lines can be added to the report as requested without
causing a delay in producing the report.

A template format of the new report is included, and the Council is asked
to consider whether it would prefer to receive a copy of the new IQP in
future rather than the summary it currently receives.

The Council is asked to:
•Consider the position against targets and to comment on the degree to
which it feels assured regarding current performance.
•Confirm that the council is satisfied that plans in place are sufficient to
ensure on-going compliance with all existing targets.
•Confirm whether they wish to receive the full IQPR in future in its new
format.

Recommendations (what we are asked to agree):
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This report has been prepared at the request of the Council of Governors; it contains information from the Integrated Quality and Performance Report 

for Quarter 1, 2016 – 2017. This information is presented in line with the Care Quality Commissions Key Lines of Enquiry. The full version of the 

report remains available to Governors on request. 

Key:            Achieved the highest standard           Achieved the target           Below the target            NEW Data Item 

PERFORMANCE HEADLINES: 

SAFE 

As a Trust we met the target of having contact with 98.9% of people who have been discharged within 7 days. We have improved our 

performance from the previous quarter and we still continue to achieve the target.

As a Trust we have a target of 95% of all service users receiving a crisis plan within 24 hours - We achieved 100% this quarter. 

92%

94%

96%

98%

100%

Target Achieved

Seen in 7 days
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No-one developed a Healthcare Acquired Infection in our Care. 

More than 95% of people who use our services experience harm free care according to the NHS Safety Thermometer. For quarter 1, 

we achieved 100%. This measures the number of patients that are ‘harm free’ from pressure sores, falls, urine infections (in patients with a 

catheter) and venous thromboembolism. 

We know some harms are preventable and should NEVER happen. We had one ‘Never Event’ in April and this is currently being 

investigated to see what lessons can be learnt. The incident concerned a non-collapsible rail. 

We have introduced a new measure called the Mental Health Safety Thermometer to the IQPR (Integrated Performance and Quality 

Report). For quarter 1, 86.3% of patients experienced Harm Free Care. Currently there is no target set for this indicator.  The roll out of this to 

relevant services will be completed by the end of August 2016 when CMHTs and ICS commence using it, and so at that point there will be a 

more realistic picture of the Trust position. The survey is carried out one day per month and asks: 

a. The proportion of people that have self harmed in the last 24 hours? 

b. The proportion of people that feel safe at the point of survey? 

c. Proportion of people that have been the victim of violence aggression in the last 72 hours? 

d. Proportion of people that have had a medicine omission in the last 24 hours? 

e. Proportion of people that have been restrained in the last 72 hours (inpatient only) 
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CARING 

We should have less than 7.5% of people staying in hospital if they are well enough to leave. For quarter 1, we achieved 1%. 

Admissions to inpatients services had access to the Crisis Resolution/Home treatment team. We need to check that coming into 

hospital is the right thing for a person who needs our help before we admit them. Again, this happened for 100% of admissions. 

People’s plan of care should be up to date and we should review them within 12 months for 95% of people. 97.3% of people had their 

Care Plan reviewed within the planned timescales.

93%

94%

95%

96%

97%

98%

Target Achieved

CPA 12 months review

Target Achieved
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NEW! Friends and Family Test. The Trust has been participating in the FFT since 2014 as per the requirements of the CQUIN. The question 

asks service users “How likely they are to recommend our service to friends or family if they needed similar care or treatment.” There are a 

range of responses from “Extremely likely”, “Likely” to “Extremely Unlikely”. There were 71 responses in June of which 19 were unlikely or very 

unlikely which gave the overall score of 73.2%. The Head of Patient Experience has recently redesigned the FFT questionnaire to improve the 

response rate. This was introduced in March this year and already the FFT return has shown an increase. The response rate will be continued 

to be monitored to assure ourselves of the increased uptake.

EFFECTIVE 

We use clustering in mental health services to support people to get the right care. 95% of clusters should be reviewed within the 

agreed times. We are not doing this as well as we should, and only 70.3% met the agreed review periods. This has been a slight 

improvement since last quarter and we have an action plan in place to help continue the improvement.

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Target Achieved

Review Clusters in time
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Waiting times for Community Mental Health Teams for face to face contact within 14 days – Target 80%. Quarter 1 attainment is 

76.6%. The Trust has developed an action plan, which has been agreed with Leeds CCG, to support the Community Teams to achieve this 

target in the coming quarters.  

Memory service - Referral to diagnosis – target for Q1 is 55% within 8 weeks. This is a new measure for 2106-17. Quarter 1 

attainment is 8.8%. The Trust has developed an action plan, which has been agreed with Leeds CCG, to support the Memory Services to 

achieve this target in the coming quarters. This target depends on Primary Care referring service users for diagnostic tests in a timely manner. 

If this does not occur this impacts on our performance. An additional reports has been developed to capture where this has not happened.  

Timely access to a mental health assessment by the ALPS team based within the LTHT Emergency Department – Target 90% within 

3 hours. The current attainment is 85%. The reason for this non-attainment is due to demand on the service. The trust will continue to look 

at ways in which it can improve processes to meet the target on a regular basis.  

82%

84%

86%

88%

90%

92%

Target Achieved

3 hour access to ALPS

Target Achieved
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RESPONSIVE 

We should provide training to or staff so that they are able to respond to people who need to access our services but also use 

alcohol or other substances. We were below the 80% target for Dual Diagnosis which we achieved 73.6%. An action plan has been put in 

place to improve and maintain this target.

We should provide training to or staff so that they are able to respond to people who need to access our services who are on the 

autistic spectrum. We have achieved the 80% target for the Autism Awareness training achieving 83.6% 

69%

72%

75%

78%

81%

Target Achieved

Dual Diagnosis

78%

80%

82%

84%

Target Achieved

Autism Awareness
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We should listen to the stories people tell us about their experiences with us, and respond to them. 

Source: Patient Opinions Website: August 2016 

Thank you very much for taking the trouble to post on this site. 

It is always encouraging to hear good news and positive comments. I will make sure that the team at Millfield get to see the 

posting. 

I wish you every success in the future and hope that your continued recovery goes from strength 

I have seen my consultant at Millfield House for nearly five years now and in that time we have built a close working 

relationship. She is great at reminding me about all the progress I have made and at reminding me that things don't 

usually turn out anywhere near as bad as I think they will. 

Step by step and with the help of my private counsellor she has helped me to conquer much of my anxiety and makes 

sure she is readily available if I need her. 
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WELL-LED 

We should provide our staff with an appraisal every year. At least 90% of our staff should have an in-date Appraisal. Only 77.5% had 

an appraisal which although doesn’t meet the target there has been an improvement on quarter 4. There is an action plan in place to support 

managers and staff to achieve and maintain this target.

We should support our staff to complete the training which our Trust says is compulsory. At least 90% of our staff should be up to 

date with all their Compulsory Training. We currently stand at 84.7%. This is an increase from the previous quarter and the Trust are 

committed to improving this further. 

70%

75%

80%

85%

90%

95%

Target Achieved

Appraisals

82%

84%

86%

88%

90%

92%

Target Achieved

Compulsory Training
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It is good for a large organisation to have movement amongst its staff. Our turnover should be less than 15%. Our turnover was 

32.5%. This figure is calculated over 12 months and includes staff  within the York Services that transferred to TEWV in October 2015. If we 

removed these staff the percentages would be around 10/11%, which is within the target. 

• We should support our staff with health and well-being. Our sickness absence rate should be less than 3.7%.  Our sickness / absence 

rate has dropped to 5.0%.The trust has a very ambitious target of 3.7% for sickness absence. It is currently strengthening its approach to 

supporting staff to remain at work through engagement in the national CQUIN schemes, introducing Health and Well Being initiatives for staff. 

This is in addition to the initiatives previously reported such as the First Care absence reporting system and quicker referrals to occupational 

health. 

0%
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10%

15%

20%
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30%

35%

Target Total Trust Trust without York and
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Staff Turnover



Strategic Goal 1 - People achieve their agreed goal for improving health and improving lives

May 
2016/2017 Target Trend

Delayed Transfers of Care (Monitor) 1.4% 7.5%

Admissions to inpatient services had access to crisis resolution / home treatment 
teams (Monitor) 97.83% 95.00%

Care Programme Approach Formal Reviews within 12 months (Monitor) 94.26% 95.00%

Data Completeness - Identifiers (Monitor) 99.83% 97.00%

Data Completeness - Ethnicity (NHS Standard Contract) 77.49% 90.00%

Bed occupancy rates for inpatient services (Leeds Contract) 95.51%
94.00%

 to 
98.00%

Inpatient Length of Stay – Adult Mental Health Inpatient Units Adult Wards 
(Leeds Contract) 44.33

Inpatient Length of Stay – Adult Mental Health Inpatient Units Older People's 
Wards (Leeds Contract) 86.00

Inpatient Length of Stay – Adult Mental Health Inpatient Units - <3 days or >90 
(Leeds Contract) 14.00

13 Jun 2016 1 18:15:42



May 
2016/2017 Target Trend

Emergency Readmissions within 28 Days - Adult Acute Mental Health Wards 
(Local) 10.99%

Proportion of in scope patients assigned to a cluster (Leeds Contract) 87.47% 95.00%

Proportion of in scope patients assigned to a cluster and reviewed within 
recommended timescales (Leeds Contract) 69.48% 75.00%

13 Jun 2016 2 18:15:42



Strategic Goal 2 - People experience safe care

May 
2016/2017 Target Trend

7 Day Follow Up (Monitor) 97.09% 95.00%

Healthcare Associated Infections – C.difficile 0 0

Healthcare Associated Infections – MRSA 0 0

Percentage of people with a Crisis Assessment Summary and formulation plan 
in place within 24 hours (Leeds Contract) 100.00% 95.00%

Improving the implementation of action goals following a serious untoward 
incident which relates to a suspected suicide (Contract) 100.00% 100.00%

Never Events (National) 0 0

Trigger to Board Events (Local) 0 0

NHS Safety Thermometer Harm Free Care 98.62% 95.00%

Appraisals (Local) 78.59% 90.00%

13 Jun 2016 3 18:15:42



Strategic Goal 3 - People have a positive experience of their care and support

May 
2016/2017 Target Trend

Data Completeness Indicator for Mental Health Outcomes for CPA Patients 
(Monitor) 67.82% 50.00%

Access to Healthcare for People with a Learning Disability (Monitor)

Out of Area placements (Leeds Contract) 7.00

Out of Area placements by bed days (Leeds Contract) 91.00

Timely access to MH assessment under S136 (Leeds Contract) 40.82%

Timely access to a mental health assessment by the ALPs team in the LTHT 
Emergency Department (Leeds Contract) 81.28% 90.00%

Better Access to Mental Health Services by 2020: Access to Early Intervention in 
Psychosis Services (Leeds Contract) 100.00% 50.00%

13 Jun 2016 4 18:15:42



Financial Performance Summary

KEY ISSUES RAG Trend Financial Performance Against Monitor Plan Appendix

Financial
Reporting

Indices

The Financial Sustainability Risk Rating (FSRR) is 4.

Variances from plan at month 4 relate to the revised plan. NHS Improvement requested that the annual plan be
resubmitted on 30 June 2016 to reflect the revised control total.

1

Statement of
Comprehensive

Income (I&E)

The overall position at month 4 is a £0.5m surplus predominantly resulting from a number of non recurrent factors
offset by out of area cost pressures. Overall this is a £0.3m favourable variance compared to the revised plan
position. The key variances against plan are summarised below.

2

Income

Total Operating income is £0.7m above plan at month 4. The main variances comprise:-

Clinical Income:
Clinical Income is £0.37m above revised plan due to £0.3m STP funding.

Non-Clinical income:
Non-Clinical income is £0.34m above plan due to invoicing Leeds CCGs for additional out of area costs.

Non-Operating Income
Non-operating income is consistent with plan.

2

Pay

Pay expenditure is showing an adverse variance of £0.17m, comprising a £0.03m over-spend on planned permanent
employee pay and a £0.14m over-spend on locum and agency staff expense.

This variance is linked to unidentified cost improvement plans and agency cost pressures. At the end of July 2016,
the number of permanent vacancies is in excess of 200 whole time equivalents (excluding development slippage).

2

Non Pay
Non pay spend is £0.2m over spent at month 4, comprising higher than planned spending on out of area placements
and CIP slippage.

2

on target (within 5% of target)

under performance (within 10% of
target)

fail (>10% target)

Improvement in
performance

Deterioration in
performance

No change in performance



Efficiency:
Cost

Improvement

The Cost Improvement Plan (CIP) for month 4 is 21% below plan, with £0.56m achieved compared to a £0.7m plan.

The main under achievement against the plan relates to unidentified CIPs.
3

Statement of
Financial
Position

(Balance Sheet)

The main statement of financial position variances (excluding cash and capital) are:

Other Receivables – £0.34m variance. This is due to the June VAT return being submitted later than usual to ensure
all 2015/16 VAT was recovered.

Accrued Income - £0.38m variance. This is mainly due to the accrual of £0.3m relating to the Sustainability and
Transformation Programme funding (STP).

Deferred Income - £0.95m variance. This is due to the Q2 Joint Commissioning income for Supported Living not
being received until August (£0.93m).

Capital Payables - £0.55m variance. This is due to an increase in PFI accruals for anti-ligature work and dementia
care.

4

Cash

The cash position of £48.2m is £0.23m below the revised plan at the end of month 4. This is due to a decrease in

working capital (£1.04m), primarily as a result of the increase in deferred income above, offset by the impact of STP

funding (£0.3m) and accrued capital expenditure (£0.49m).

Liquidity remained at 88 days operating expenses at the end of July 2016 (88 days at 30 June 2016).

5

Capital
Capital expenditure was £1.3m, which is £0.06m (5%) above plan at the end of month 4. The variance is due to
overspending against plan for Estates operational schemes (£0.15m) offset by underspending on IT strategic
(£0.06m) and operational schemes (£0.04m).

6



Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Appendix 1

Financial Sustainability Risk Rating

July 2016 YTD

Capital Service Cover Liquidity

Revenue available for Debt Service Cash for Liquidity Purposes

Surplus 514 Working capital facility 0

Total current assets 55,699

Impairments 0 Total current liabilities -21,620

Restructuring Costs 0 Inventories -36

PDC Dividend 133 Derivatives 0

Depreciation 1,322 Financial AHfS 0

Interest expense 1,323 PFI prepayments 0

Other Finance Costs 23 Non-current AHfS 0

Gain/(Loss) on disposal 0 Current AHfS by charity 0

Capital grants/donations 0 Current LHfS by charity 0

A 3,315 A 34,043

Capital Servicing Costs Operating Expenses

PDC Dividend 133 within EBITDA 46,575

Bank interest 0 B 46,575

Loan interest 0

PFI/Finance Lease interest 698

Contingent Rent 625

Other Finance Costs 23

PDC repayment 0

Loan repayment 0

PFI/Fin lease capital 480

B 1,959

Capital Service Cover A/B 1.69 Liquidity A*120/B 88

Category 2 Category 4

I&E Margin Variance in I&E Margin

I&E Surplus A 514 Actual I&E Margin A 1.0%

Plan I&E Surplus B 195

Plan Operating Income C 49,183

Total Operating Income B 49,890 Plan I&E Margin B/C 0.4%

I&E Margin A/B 1.0% Variance in I&E Margin A - B/C 0.6%

Category 4 Category 4

Financial Sustainability Risk Rating

Weighting Score Weighted Score

Capital Service Cover 25 2 0.50

Liquidity 25 4 1.00

I&E Margin 25 4 1.00

Variance in I&E Margin 25 4 1.00

Calculated Rating 4 3.50

Any metric 1 N

FSRR 4
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Statement of Comprehensive Income at July 2016

Revised Actual Variance

Plan Monitor

YTD YTD YTD

£'000 £'000 £'000

Operating

NHS Mental Health activity Income

Other - Cost and Volume Contract Income 1,235 1,378 143

Block Contract Total 38,190 38,518 328

Clinical Partnerships providing mandatory services (including S31 agreements) 2,585 2,580 -5

Other clinical income from mandatory services 258 159 -99

NHS Mental Health activity Income, Total 42,267 42,634 367

Other Operating income

Research and Development income 268 282 14

Education and Training income 1,321 1,336 15

Grants received in cash & to fund Operating Expenses 6 -8 -14

Parking revenue 0 0 0

Catering revenue 15 12 -3

Revenue from non-patient services to other bodies 432 432 0

Misc. Other Operating Income 4,806 5,134 328

Other Operating income, Total 6,848 7,187 339

Operating Income, Total 49,115 49,822 706

Operating Expenses

Raw Materials and Consumables Used

Drugs -665 -579 86

Clinical supplies -360 -373 -14

Non-clinical supplies -436 -524 -89

Raw Materials and Consumables Used, Total -1,460 -1,477 -16

Purchase of healthcare services from other NHS bodies -6 27 33

Purchase of healthcare services from non-NHS bodies -1,805 -1,932 -127

Purchase of healthcare services / secondary commissioning, total -1,811 -1,905 -93

Employee expenses, Substantive, bank and overtime staff -34,090 -34,120 -30

Employee expenses, Locum and agency staff -1,495 -1,632 -137

Employee Benefits Expenses, Total -35,585 -35,752 -167

Research and Development expense -341 -343 -2

Education and training expense -268 -309 -41

Consultancy Expense -44 -4 40

Premises -1,928 -2,021 -93

Clinical Negligence -72 -72 0

Misc. Other Operating expense -2,409 -2,479 -69

PFI operating expenses -2,211 -2,214 -2

Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation and Amortisation - owned assets -842 -780 62

Depreciation and Amortisation - PFI assets -546 -542 4

Depreciation and Amortisation, Total -1,388 -1,322 67

Impairment (Losses) / Reversals net 0 0 0

Operating Expenses, Total -47,520 -47,897 -377

Profit (Loss) from Operations 1,595 1,925 329

Non Operating

Non-Operating income

Interest Income 68 69 1

Profit/Loss on Asset Disposal 0 0 0

Non-Operating income, Total 68 69 1

Non-Operating expenses

Finance Costs [for non-financial activities]

Interest Expense

Interest Expense on PFI leases & liabilities -692 -698 -7

Interest Expense, Total -692 -698 -7

PDC dividend expense -110 -133 -23

Other Finance Expenses -23 -23 0

Finance Costs [for non-financial activities], Total -825 -855 -30

Non-Operating PFI Costs (e.g. Contingent Rent) -644 -625 19

Non-Operating expenses, Total -1,468 -1,479 -11

Surplus (Deficit) before Tax 195 514 319

Income Tax (expense)/ income 0 0 0

Surplus (Deficit) After Tax 195 514 319

2016/17
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Month 4

2016-17

CIP SUMMARY Plan Plan Actual Variance Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 %

Leeds Mental Health Care Group 681 224 186 (38) -17%

Specialist & Learning Disability Care Group 653 192 180 (12) -6%

Workforce and Development 62 19 18 (1) -6%

Fit-for-purpose, cost effective buildings 311 90 94 4 4%

Delivering cost effective corporate services 386 95 75 (20) -21%

Unidentified CIPs 411 82 0 (82) -100%

TOTAL 2,505 703 555 (149) -21%

Pay 1,563 410 295 (115) -28%

Non Pay 942 293 260 (34) -11%

Total CIP 2,505 703 555 (149) -21%

Plan 2016/17 year to date
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Statement of Financial Position at July 2016

Revised Actual Variance

Plan

July July July

£'000 £'000 £'000

Assets

Assets, Non-Current

Intangible Assets, Net 418 590 171

Property, Plant and Equipment, Net 30,551 30,499 -52

PFI: Property, Plant and Equipment, Net 18,438 18,442 4

Prepayments, Non-Current 3,754 3,755 1

Assets, Non-Current, Total 53,161 53,286 125

Assets, Current

Inventories 36 36 0

Trade and Other Receivables, Net, Current

NHS Trade Receivables, Current, Gross 1,000 878 -122

NHS Capital Receivables, Current, Gross 0 0 0

Non NHS Trade Receivables, Current, Gross 2,700 2,879 179

Other Receivables, Current, Gross 650 994 344

Impairment of Receivables, Current ( for bad & doubtful debts ) -402 -444 -42

Trade and Other Receivables, Net, Current, Total 3,948 4,307 359

Accrued Income 1,300 1,676 376

Prepayments, Current 1,600 1,463 -137

Cash 48,450 48,217 -234

Non-Current Assets held for sale 0 0 0

Assets, Current, Total 55,335 55,699 365

Total Assets 108,496 108,986 490

Liabilities

Liabilities, Current

Deferred Income, Current -4,803 -3,849 954

Provisions, Current -952 -967 -15

Trade and Other Payables, Current

Trade Payables, Current -4,616 -4,760 -144

Other Payables, Current -3,600 -3,736 -136

Capital Payables, Current -700 -1,248 -548

Trade and Other Payables, Current, Total -8,916 -9,744 -829

Other Financial Liabilities, Current

Accruals, Current -5,200 -5,406 -206

PFI leases, Current -1,479 -1,479 0

PDC dividend payable, Current -150 -173 -23

Other Financial Liabilities, Current, Total -6,829 -7,059 -230

Liabilities, Current, Total -21,500 -21,620 -120

NET CURRENT ASSETS (LIABILITIES) 33,835 34,079 245

Liabilities, Non-Current

Provisions, Non-Current -1,821 -1,871 -50

Other Financial Liabilities, Non-Current

PFI leases, Non-Current -24,273 -24,274 -1

Other Financial Liabilities, Non-Current, Total -24,273 -24,274 -1

Liabilities, Non-Current, Total -26,094 -26,145 -51

TOTAL ASSETS EMPLOYED 60,901 61,221 319

Taxpayers' and Others' Equity

Public dividend capital 19,569 19,569 0

Retained Earnings (Accumulated Losses) 32,741 33,060 319

Revaluation Reserve 9,242 9,242 0

Miscellaneous Other Reserves -651 -651 0

TAXPAYERS EQUITY, TOTAL 60,901 61,221 319

TOTAL ASSETS EMPLOYED 60,901 61,221 319

2016/17
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Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

Cashflow Analysis as at July 2016

Revised Actual Variance

Plan

YTD YTD YTD

£'000 £'000 £'000

Surplus/(deficit) after tax 195 514 319

non-cash flows in operating surplus/(deficit)

Finance income/charges 1,268 1,255 -14

Other operating non-cash movements 26 67 42

Depreciation and amortisation, total 1,388 1,322 -67

Impairment losses/(reversals) 0 0 0

Gain/(loss) on disposal of property plant and equipment 0 0 0

Gain/(loss) on disposal of intangible assets 0 0 0

PDC dividend expense 110 133 23

Other increases/(decreases) to reconcile to profit/(loss) from operations 0 0 0

Non-cash flows in operating surplus/(deficit), Total 2,792 2,777 -15

Operating Cash flows before movements in working capital 2,987 3,291 304

Increase/(Decrease) in working capital

(Increase)/decrease in inventories 0 0 0

(Increase)/decrease in NHS Trade Receivables 533 655 122

(Increase)/decrease in Non NHS Trade Receivables 259 79 -179

(Increase)/decrease in other receivables 831 488 -344

(Increase)/decrease in accrued income -791 -1,167 -376

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments -581 -445 137

(Increase)/decrease in other assets 0 0 0

Increase/(decrease) in Deferred Income 3,543 2,589 -954

Increase/(decrease) in provisions -84 -19 66

Increase/(decrease) in post-employment benefit obligations 0 0 0

Increase/(decrease) in Trade Payables -1,044 -900 144

Increase/(decrease) in Other Payables 246 383 136

Increase/(decrease) in accruals -1,033 -826 206

Increase/(Decrease) in workling capital, Total 1,878 837 -1,041

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 4,865 4,128 -737

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities

Property, plant and equipment expenditure -871 -380 491

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 376 376 0

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities, Total -495 -4 491

Net cash inflow/(outflow) before financing 4,370 4,123 -246

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities

Public Dividend Capital received 0 0 0

Public Dividend Capital repaid 0 0 0

PDC Dividends paid 0 0 0

Interest element of finance lease rental payments - On-balance sheet PFI -1,336 -1,323 13

Capital element of finance lease rental payments - On-balance sheet PFI -480 -480 1

Interest received on cash and cash equivalents 68 69 1

Movement in Other grants/Capital received 0 0 0

(Increase)/decrease in non-current receivables -138 -139 -1

Increase/(decrease) in non-current payables 0 0 0

Other cash flows from financing activities 0 0 0

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities, Total -1,887 -1,874 13

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,483 2,249 -234

Opening cash and cash equivalents 45,968 45,968 0

Effect of exchange rates 0 0 0

Closing cash and cash equivalents 48,450 48,217 -234
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Revised Actual YTD

CAPITAL PROGRAMME - at 31 JULY 2016 Plan Spend Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000

Estates Operational

Health & Safety /Fire 42 -42

Planned Annual Commitments 20 -20

Estate refurbishment 700 917 217

Sub-Total 762 917 154

IT/Telecomms Operational

PC Replacement Programme 85 102 17

IT Network Infrastructure 52 4 -49

VOIP Roll Out 10 10 0

Additional Server/Storage 11 3 -8

Sub-Total 159 119 -40
Other Equipment

0 0

Sub-Total 0 0 0

Estates Strategic Developments

St Marys Hospital 0 10 10

Dementia Care At The Mount 115 98 -17

LD In-Patient Reprovision 0 2 2

Sub-Total 115 110 -5

IT Strategic Developments

E-Pharmacy 60 56 -4

Integration System 35 -35

Remote Access 0 4 4

Public WiFi Deployment 15 -15

Standard Smartphones for all staff - phase 1 35 -35

Cisco Unified Comms/Presence 19 -19

Webfiltering 0 48 48

Tablets Wards - Leeds 2 2 0

EPR System Developments 50 50 0

Sub-Total 216 159 -57

Contingency Schemes

2015/16 Completed Schemes 0 4 4

Sub-Total 0 4 4

TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME 1,252 1,309 57
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Report to the Board of Directors
28th July 2016
Safer Staffing

May 2016

1. Background

All hospitals are required to publish information about the number of Registered
Nurses (RN) and Health Support Workers (HSW) on duty per shift on their inpatient
wards.

This initiative is part of the NHS response to the Francis Report which called for
greater openness and transparency in the health service.

Full details of staffing levels are reported to public meetings of our Board of Directors
and made accessible to the public (via the Unify Report) at NHS Choices website.
Safer staffing information is also accessible to the public via the Trust’s own website.

In addition to this the Trust is required to openly display information for patients and
visitors in all of our wards that shows the planned and actual staffing available at the
start of every shift.

2. Purpose of this report

LYPFT reports on 27 inpatient areas and this paper helps to provide public and
organisational oversight of any signs that there might be a problem with staffing
levels using an exception reporting system.

Six inpatient wards are participating LYPFT’s safer staffing task and finish group and
are testing a dashboard system and metrics as part of the work to help develop a
workforce staffing tool. (See appendices A (Key to metrics and dashboard) and B
(Unify report).

This report is retrospective and covers the period of the 1st May 2016 to the 31st May
2016.

3. Updates

3.1 The six-monthly safer staffing review by the Director of nursing is due to be
submitted at the end of July 2016. This report and patient safety and experience data
will be triangulated to inform the review.



3.2 Ward and Community managers were presented with a guided tour of the weekly
dashboard developed to triangulate patient safety data at the most recent forum in
June.

3.3 In response to a huge demand for older people’s beds, LYPFT have taken the

action of converting the triage area on Ward 3 (male ward) at the Mount into a

female area. This action was required to prevent any older people being transferred

out of area. The situation is being reviewed on a regular basis and we are assured

that there are no issues relating to mixed sex environment requirements.

3.4 The Safe Staffing Task and Finish Group discussed the inclusion of the Incident

data as an additional reporting level at a recent meeting. It was felt that the number

of incidents and the type of incident may provide further insight/assurance around

the correlation between staffing levels and incidents on inpatient units. This

information has been added to the report for the benefit of the pilot managers but the

Board members may wish to use their discretion as to whether it should be included

at Board level.

4. Exception reports against Planned and Actual staffing

Any incidence of planned staffing levels reported at less than 80% or exceeding a

120% fill rate is considered an ‘exception’. Where this is the case an explanatory

note is provided.

4.1 Leeds Mental Health Care Group

4.1.1 Ward 1 Becklin Centre (Adult acute mental health female service)

There was an underfill of Registered nurses (RN) during the day and an overfill of
Health support workers (HSW) during the day and night.

Contributory factors and mitigation

As in the previous report, this ward continues to have 4 band 5 vacancies

outstanding as they are awaiting start dates of newly registered staff in

September/October. Skill mix has been adjusted to compensate the vacant RN

hours. Acuity in terms of observation and engagement levels was a key feature for

this ward during May and included the use of within eyesight observations to cover

the care and treatment of a CAMHS service user; 2:1 observation on a service user

awaiting a transfer to PICU and a service user requiring escort for treatment at LTHT

over a period of x4 days.

Q - Was the ward safely staffed throughout this period?
A – Yes with the exception described below.



The 2nd registered nurse on night duties has been filled with bank or agency. On one

occasion during the month of May there was one duty where they were unable to fill

with 2nd RN and an additional HSW was used to backfill instead.

4.1.2 Ward 3 Becklin Centre (Adult acute mental health male)

There was an overfill of HSW hours during the day.

Contributory factors and mitigation
The overfill of HSW hours is in response to managing acuity and replacing vacant

RN hours. All shifts were covered with x2 RN’s on duty.

Q - Was the ward safely staffed throughout this period?
A – Yes

4.1.3 Ward 4 Becklin Centre (Adult acute mental health male)

There was an underfill of RN hours during the day and an overfill of HSW hours

during the day.

Contributory factors and mitigation

There are x2 band 5 posts which have been recruited to but have start dates in

September in addition to a band 6 vacancy. A Band 5 RN is on a secondment to the

women’s service and sickness absence is a contributory factor to staffing numbers.

Q - Was the ward safely staffed throughout this period?
A – Yes

4.1.4 Ward 5 Becklin Centre (Adult acute mental health female service)

(This ward is a member of the safer staffing task and finish group, for which
dashboard data is available at Appendix A).

There was an overfill of HSW hours during the day and night.

Contributory factors and mitigation

As reported last month, this ward has 4 band 5 vacant posts that have been

recruited to but are awaiting September / October start dates. As a result of the RN

vacancies skill mix has been adjusted to compensate and to support acuity in terms

of observations. Further impact of awaiting recruitment is that nearly a third of duties

are being filled by bank and agency staff and nearly a quarter of RN’s in post are

Preceptees. However, our data tells us that only a small percentage of bank and

agency are not regular workers and the ward has been able to maintain 2 RN’s on

each shift. Ward 5 is part of the women’s service in addition to being a ward within



the Becklin Centre. Staffing as a unit is frequently reviewed by the Ward managers

and the units Matron.

Q - Was the ward safely staffed throughout this period?
A – Yes

4.1.5 Ward 1 Newsam Centre (Psychiatric intensive care unit)

There was an overfill of HSW hours during the day and night.

Contributory factors and mitigation

This ward continues with an average of 2 service users requiring within eyesight 1-1

or 2-1 nursing observations which requires working above funded numbers. There

has also been a Registered nurse vacancy over a number of months which has now

been recruited into and is awaiting a start date. Staff sickness absence has also

been a contributory factor.

Q - Was the ward safely staffed throughout this period?
A – Yes

4.1.6 Ward 4 Newsam Centre (Adult acute mental health male)

There was an underfill of RN hours during the day and an overfill of HSW hours

during the day.

Contributory factors and mitigation

Extra duties have been created to fill the vacant RN shifts due to sickness and

vacancies. 3 RN’s have been appointed but do not have start dates until October

2016.

Q - Was the ward safely staffed throughout this period?
A – Yes.

4.1.7 Ward 5 Newsam Centre (Locked rehabilitation and recovery)

There was an overfill of HSW hours during the day and night.

Contributory factors and mitigation

The overfill is in response to having 2 service users on within eyesight observations

and engagement.

Q - Was the ward safely staffed throughout this period?
A – Yes.



4.1.8 Ward 1 The Mount (OPS dementia female)

There was an overfill of HSW hours during the day and night.

Contributory factors and mitigation

This ward continues to have 2 band 5 vacancies and 1.4 band 3 vacancies. Other

staff unavailability factors were long term and short term sickness absence, and

supernumery phased return. In addition 2 service users were prescribed within arm’s

length observations for the entire month.

This ward planned to close in April but refurbishment was temporarily delayed. It
closed officially for refurbishment on the 6th June.

Q - Was the ward safely staffed throughout this period?
A – Yes

4.1.9 Ward 2 The Mount (OPS dementia male)

There was an overfill of HSW hours during the day and night.

Contributory factors and mitigation

Additional HSW duties have been used to cover a number of vacant shifts. Sickness

absence and maternity leave is also a contributory factor.

Whilst the RN fill rate remained within range a number of vacant duty twilight shifts

were reallocated to HSW’s. Acuity on the ward remained high in terms of observation

and engagement levels. This ward also has 6.5 substantive HSW posts vacant.

Q - Was the ward safely staffed throughout this period?
A – Yes.

4.1.10 Ward 3 The Mount (OPS mental health male)

(This ward is a member of the safer staffing task and finish group, for which
dashboard data is available at Appendix A)

There was an overfill of HSW hours during the night.

Contributory factors and mitigation

The increase is due to within eyesight observations and acuity of the service user

group. A number of service users currently require up to 2-3 staff to manage

personal care, mobility issues and supervision pre ECT. Whilst the dashboard places

skill mix in the red, this ward is nearly fully staffed, has a manageable proportion of

newly registered staff balanced with a lower use of bank and agency staff.



Q - Was the ward safely staffed throughout this period?
A – Yes

4.1.11 Ward 4 The Mount (OPS mental health female)

This ward was within the accepted range and had no exceptions to report.

Q - Was the ward safely staffed throughout this period?
A – Yes

4.1.12 Asket House Inpatient Unit (Rehabilitation and recovery)

There was an overfill of HSW hours during the day and night.

Contributory factors and mitigation

The overfill was in response to placing an additional HSW on each shift to provide

within eyesight observations.

Q - Was the ward safely staffed throughout this period?
A – Yes

4.1.13 Crisis assessment service

There was a slight overfill of HSW hours during the day and night.

Contributory factors and mitigation

The overfill of hours is linked to sickness with further contributory factors of annual

leave and vacancies.

Q - Was the ward safely staffed throughout this period?
A – Yes

4.2 Specialist and Learning Disabilities Care Group

4.2.1 Bluebell Ward (Forensic female mental health)

There was an underfill of RN hours during the day and an overfill of HSW hours
during the day.

Contributory factors and mitigation

This ward has 1 vacant RN post but additional unavailable RN hours due to long-

term sickness absence, acting up duties, maternity leave and part time research.



The impact of this is that the ward is currently functioning on 1 RN per shift rather

than 2 unless they have pre-planned work that requires 2 SNs. The ward reports no

untoward incidents that have required further additional staff.

Q - Was the ward safely staffed throughout this period?
A – Yes, however, the levels were not at an optimum level.

4.2.2 Riverfields (Forensic low secure male mental health treatment,
continuing care and rehabilitation).

There was an underfill of RN’s during the day and an overfill of HSW hours during
the day and an underfill of HSW hours during the night.

Contributory factors and mitigation

The RN underfill is due to long-term sickness absence and HSW’s were used to

backfill these duties. The underfill for HSW’s on nights is due to Riverfields and

Westerdale alternating in the provision of an extra HCA on nights.

Q - Was the ward safely staffed throughout this period?
A – Yes

4.2.3 Rose Ward (Forensic low secure female assessment, treatment and
rehabilitation)

This ward was within the accepted range and had no exceptions to report.

4.2.4 Westerdale (Forensic low secure male mental health admissions,
assessment and rehabilitation)

(This ward is a member of the safer staffing task and finish group, for which
dashboard data is available at Appendix A)

There was a substantive overfill of HSW hours during the day and night.

Contributory factors and mitigation

Observation and engagement levels are consistently high with individuals requiring

2:1 staffing. Skill mix and newly registered nursing has moved further into the red

from last month’s report though the used of bank and agency has decreased by

11%.

Q - Was the ward safely staffed throughout this period?
A- Yes, however, the levels were not at an optimum level.



Improvement action

As reported last month this team has had a recent away day to support effective

team working and identify structures that will allow consistency in the way care is

delivered.

The staff team are being supported to develop an improved understanding of

relational, procedural and physical security which will help to manage the difficult and

complex presentations.

4.2.5 YCPM (WARD 40 LGI Liaison psychiatry)

(This ward is a member of the safer staffing task and finish group, for which
dashboard data is available at Appendix A)

This ward was within the accepted range and had no exceptions to report.

The dashboard shows a good mix of newly registered staff and skill mix with low
bank and agency usage. It also shows that the staffing fill rate was consistently not
meeting demand; however this is in response to lower bed occupancy.

Q - Was the ward safely staffed throughout this period?
A- Yes.

4.2.6 Ward 2 Newsam Centre (Forensic assessment and treatment male)

There was an overfill of HSW hours during the day.

Contributory factors and mitigation

As reported last month, this ward has 2 RN vacancies recruited to with a start date of

September 2016 and 2 HSW’s posts have also been recruited to. The overfill of

HSW’s is due to covering escorts for court and admission.

Q - Was the ward safely staffed throughout this period?

A – Yes

4.2.7 Ward 2 Newsam Centre (Forensic female)

There was an overfill of HSW hours during the day.

Contributory factors and mitigation

This was to accommodate escorting patients to court and physical health

appointments. Escorts required a minimum of 2 staff. Skill mix was also adjusted to



compensate for RN unavailability and 1 service user required increased levels of

observation for a period of 72 hours.

Q - Was the ward safely staffed throughout this period?
A –Yes

4.2.8 Ward 3 Newsam Centre (Treatment and recovery)

There is a slight overfill of HSW hours during day.

Contributory factors and mitigation

The overfill of HSW hours was in response to backfilling the RN vacancies held.

Q - Was the ward safely staffed throughout this period?
A – Yes

4.2.9 Ward 6 Newsam Centre (Eating disorders)

There is an overfill of RN hours during the night and an overfill of HSW hours during
the day and night.

Contributory factors and mitigation

Ward 6 continues to have 5.5 RN vacancies, with 1 RN on maternity leave, and 2
HSW vacancies.
In addition there are now 4 substantive members of staff who due to physical health

reasons are not able to provide care where PMVA techniques may need to be used.

2 RN’s have now completed their preceptorship. HSW’s have backfilled vacant RN
duties and responded to observation acuity. Staffing is documented on the local risk
register.

Q - Was the ward safely staffed throughout this period?
A – Whilst patients were kept safe, staffing was not at an optimum level. Patient

acuity in terms of observation levels (2.1 within arm’s reach) continues to be met by

a higher use of HSW's during the day and night. Rostering tries to ensure

that substantive RN’s are placed on day shifts - therefore using more bank and

agency RN cover at night.

Improvement action
The concerns have been escalated to the senior management team. Recruitment is

ongoing and staffing has been placed as a risk on the local risk register.

4.2.10 Ward 5 Mount (Perinatal)



(This ward is a member of the safer staffing task and finish group, for which
dashboard data is available at Appendix A)

There is an overfill of HSW hours during the day and night.

Contributory factors and mitigation

HSW’s have been used to backfill the vacant RN shifts and some sickness absence

and maternity leave. Backfill has been proactively managed in terms of using

substantive HSW’s who are familiar with the unit and service users. Recruitment is

in progress. A substantive RN has now commenced and a band 6 post has been

recruited to. In addition 3 new members of staff will be starting over the next 3

months.

Q - Was the ward safely staffed throughout this period?

A – Yes. Whilst the dashboard shows that this wards use of bank and agency
increased by 7% and that there were a number of shifts where supply did not meet
demand, it does routinely use consistent staff that are familiar with the service and its
users.

4.2.11 Parkside Lodge (LD acute assessment and treatment)-see appendix
(This ward is a member of the safer staffing task and finish group, for which
dashboard data is available at Appendix A)

There was an overfill of RN hours during the night and an overfill of HSW hours
during the day and night.

Contributory factors and mitigation

Acuity remains high in terms of observation and engagement levels.

Q - Was the ward safely staffed throughout this period?

A – Whilst patients were kept safe, staffing was not at an optimum level. The
dashboard shows a high vacancy factor, poor skill mix and increased bank and
agency usage from the previous month. In mitigation bank and agency usage has
been tested and it should be noted that over a 3 month period whilst bank and
agency usage appeared high, actual non regular bank / agency usage stood at
3.32% of this workforce.

Improvement action

In response to Parkside being a standalone unit and improved safety measures, RN
staffing at night has been increased. The service is in the process of recruiting new
HSW’s but they are currently supernumerary status during the induction period. The
staffing budget will reflect this change in future reports.



4.2.12 No 2 Woodland Square (LD respite for complex physical health)

This ward was within the accepted range.

Q - Was the ward safely staffed throughout this period?
A – Yes

4.2.13 No 3 Woodland Square (LD continuing care and rehabilitation / health
respite)

There was a slight underfill of HSW hours during the day and slight overfill during the

night.

This is reflective of annual leave hours taken and some weeks where there were not

many service users utilising respite care.

Q - Was the ward safely staffed throughout this period?
A – Yes

4.2.14 Mill Lodge (CAMHS)

There was an overfill of HSW hours during the night.

Contributory factors and mitigation

There are a number of RN vacancies which are being backfilled with HSW hours.

Although the percentage of registered nurses is within range during the day it is

worth noting that this has been achievable with substantive staff working extra hours

on a regular basis.

Q - Was the ward safely staffed throughout this period?
A – Yes

5. Conclusion

The underfill of available registered nurses continues to be supplemented by the use
of non-registered health support workers. However we do understand from our data
that a substantive number of our additional hours are supplied by staff who work for
us regularly and are familiar with our service areas and patients. (See Appendix C).

This report highlights high usage of staffing in terms of observation and engagement.
A service improvement initiative is being developed with Westerdale, Parkside
Lodge, Ward 1 Becklin, Ward 4 Mount and Mill Lodge (as testing sites) in terms of
improving the quality and requirement for within eyesight observations specifically.
This will support a review of procedural guidance and improved clinical practice.



6. Next steps

Work with matrons and operational manager to inform the six-monthly safer staffing
review.

Continue the improvement work of the safer staffing task and finish group.

7. Recommendations

 Receive the report and note the contents.

 Discuss any issues raised by the content
 Confirm that the Board is satisfied with the analysis and measures taken by

the Trust to ensure the wards were safely staffed during this period with the
notable exceptions highlighted above.



Key to metrics and dashboard reports:

As part of the Safe Staffing Task and Finish Group a number of metrics were discussed with clinical colleagues to define what safe staffing should look like in

Mental Health Trusts. These metrics are described below.

The chart demonstrates:

The combined RN and HCA hours per day broken down by fulfilment type (Local/Bank/Agency) – The bar chart shows the actual RN and HCA hours against

the total RN and HCA hours identified as required per day (shown as a black line)

The metric is designed to demonstrate whether the unit is staffing the agreed/budgeted daily demand on the unit.



Skill Mix:

The percentage of RN/HCA in post on the unit over that roster period.
Poor skill mix on the unit can mean that the unit has too few Registered Nurses available or too few
HCAs available to support services users. Each unit should have a balanced overview for the acuity type
on that unit.

Newly Qualified Mix:

The percentage of Newly Qualified RNs in post on the unit over the roster period.
Too many Newly Qualified staff may present a risk to service users due to a lack of experience on the
unit and no availability to complete preceptorships effectively.



Bank and Agency hours:

The percentage of hours fulfilled by Substantive, Bank or Agency staff.
Ideally units should be staffed with a high percentage of substantive staff for the purposes of continuity
of care and familiarity with the unit/local procedures. Whilst high levels of temporary staffing usage
does not directly indicate that the unit is unsafe it should be included in our safety metrics.

Vacancy Factor:

Indicates the number of vacancies the unit is carrying in the RN and HCA grade types.
High vacancy factors on the unit may lead to the inability to staff the unit adequately and a reliance on
temporary staffing.



Trust Dashboards:













Appendix A - Metric trend analysis: (option1)



Appendix A - Metric trend analysis: (option 2)

Skill Mix Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Bank and Agency Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May

Becklin 5 43 49 57 42 35 41 38 Becklin 5 42 39 31 40 52 41 35

Mount 3 38 36 37 38 35 31 33 Mount 3 30 28 27 26 26 22 16

York Westerdale 46 35 33 31 22 21 24 York Westerdale 12 14 12 30 45 51 40

Parkside Lodge 35 39 39 34 35 29 29 Parkside Lodge 27 26 34 33 52 55 58

Mother and Baby
Unit 63 35 45 48 45 43 47

Mother and Baby
Unit 25 25 36 34 44 38 45

YCPM 69 77 82 67 75 70 69 YCPM 10 3 5 16 26 20 15

Newly Qual mix Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Vacancy Factor Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May

Becklin 5 18 22 22 22 18 41 25 Becklin 5 4.5 4.2 3.4 4.5 4.4 5.14 3.9

Mount 3 9 8 8 8 16 23 15 Mount 3 2.3 2.7 2.3 1.9 2.8
-

2.74 0.8

York Westerdale 13 22 22 22 20 21 27 York Westerdale 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3
-

0.43 -1.9

Parkside Lodge 16 15 15 21 21 29 24 Parkside Lodge 14.5 15.4 17.8 17.3 16 15.8 13.9

Mother and Baby
Unit 8 22 14 13 14 43 25

Mother and Baby
Unit 0.7 2.3 -0.1 2.3 2 2.2 2.3

YCPM 19 12 0 6 6 7 7 YCPM 5.1 6.3 6.3 7.9 7 2.56 6.4



Appendix B Unify report:

HospitalName HospitalSiteCode WardName Type PlannedRegHoursDay ActualRegHoursDay PercentRegDay PlannedRegHoursNight ActualRegHoursNight PercentRegNight

HCW 1,338 1,929.5 144.21% 1,023 1,430 139.78%

Nursing 1,054.5 1,093.08 103.66% 682 685 100.44%

HCW 613.5 1,323 215.65% 682 882 129.33%

Nursing 1,254 872.5 69.58% 682 671 98.39%

HCW 713 926.5 129.94% 713 857 120.20%

Nursing 701.5 632.75 90.20% 713 632.5 88.71%

HCW 665 1,336.5 200.98% 682 748 109.68%

Nursing 994.5 911 91.60% 682 682 100.00%

HCW 784.5 1,282.5 163.48% 682 814 119.35%

Nursing 1,288.5 847.5 65.77% 682 671 98.39%

HCW 754 1,401 185.81% 682 947 138.86%

Nursing 1,216.5 984.5 80.93% 671 660 98.36%

HCW 639 1,157 181.06% 664.33 676.06 101.77%

Nursing 837 589 70.37% 332.32 332.32 100.00%

HCW 687 1,033 150.36% 664.33 514.4 77.43%

Nursing 805.5 633.5 78.65% 332.32 332.32 100.00%

HCW 762 679.5 89.17% 664.33 675.05 101.61%

Nursing 795 648.5 81.57% 321.6 321.6 100.00%

HCW 484.5 2,190.86 452.19% 664.33 1,883.68 283.55%

Nursing 787.5 923.5 117.27% 332.32 353.74 106.45%

HCW 510 466.5 91.47% 325.5 336 103.23%

Nursing 1,066.5 1,086.17 101.84% 630 619.5 98.33%

HCW 1,458 2,139.5 146.74% 671 1,595 237.70%

Nursing 1,216.5 1,240 101.93% 649 630.75 97.19%

HCW 889.5 1,217.5 136.87% 666.5 762.75 114.44%

Nursing 849 827.25 97.44% 333.25 333.25 100.00%

HCW 858 1,269.42 147.95% 666.5 703.25 105.51%

Nursing 889.83 731 82.15% 333.25 344 103.23%

HCW 831 1,010.5 121.60% 666.5 672.33 100.87%

Nursing 873 736.5 84.36% 333.25 322.5 96.77%

HCW 768 1,269 165.23% 682 759 111.29%

Nursing 1,191 878 73.72% 682 682 100.00%

HCW 1,164 1,736.5 149.18% 682 1,187 174.05%

Nursing 783 867.34 110.77% 638 639 100.16%

HCW 817 1,685.5 206.30% 640.5 1,031.5 161.05%

Nursing 831 946.26 113.87% 325.5 619.5 190.32%

HCW 1,505.75 3,008 199.77% 1,291.5 1,995 154.47%

Nursing 1,255.5 1,320 105.14% 315 651 206.67%

HCW 674.5 575.5 85.32% 325.5 325.5 100.00%

Nursing 677 630 93.06% 325.5 325.5 100.00%

HCW 892.5 638.5 71.54% 325.5 399 122.58%

Nursing 625.5 561 89.69% 325.5 325.5 100.00%

HCW 394.5 681.25 172.69% 275 704 256.00%

Nursing 710.5 749.17 105.44% 429 439 102.33%

HCW 1,033.5 1,751 169.42% 999.75 1,386.75 138.71%

Nursing 1,065 866.5 81.36% 333.25 333.25 100.00%

HCW 1,473.5 2,402.25 163.03% 999.75 1,729.75 173.02%

Nursing 1,074.5 876.5 81.57% 333.25 333.25 100.00%

HCW 1,227 1,370.92 111.73% 682 907 132.99%

Nursing 843.5 746.5 88.50% 341 344.5 101.03%

HCW 1,254.5 1,390.75 110.86% 671 746.92 111.31%

Nursing 814.5 698.84 85.80% 341 339.33 99.51%

HCW 1,374 1,432 104.22% 682 889 130.35%

Nursing 1,433.17 1,165.01 81.29% 682 674 98.83%
York - Mill Lodge RGDVE York - Mill Lodge

THE MOUNT RGD05

Mother and Baby The Mount

The Mount Ward 1

The Mount Ward 2a

The Mount Ward 3a

The Mount Ward 4a

PARKSIDE LODGE RGDPL Parkside Lodge

ST MARY'S HOSPITAL RGD17

2 Woodland Square

3 Woodland Square

LEEDS GENERAL INFIRMARY RGD03 YCPM LGI

NEWSAM CENTRE RGDAB

New sam Ward 1 PICU

New sam Ward 2 Forensic

New sam Ward 2 Womens Services

New sam Ward 3

New sam Ward 4

New sam Ward 5

New sam Ward 6 EDU

Clifton House RGDT5

York - Bluebell

York - Riverf ields

York - Rose

York - Westerdale

ASKET HOUSE RGDAP Asket Inpatient Unit

BECKLIN CENTRE RGDBL

Becklin Ward 1

Becklin Ward 2 CR

Becklin Ward 3

Becklin Ward 4

Becklin Ward 5



Appendix C CQC Data Pack:

NOTES

Bank and Agency Total - Total % of hours
between Jan and March complete by Bank
and Agency staff

Regular Workers - The total percentage of hours
worked by Regular Bank and Agency workers classed
as those that work 15 hours or more on average per
week in the Trust (15 Hours * 13 Weeks = 195 Hours)
Also includes those staff who have a substantive post
in the Trust.

Irregular B&A - The total percentage of hours
worked by Bank and Agency staff who work less
than an average of 15 hours per week in the
Trust.

Unit Agency Bank Only Regular Agency Regular Bank Substantive Substantive Bank Grand Total Bank & Agency Total Regular Workers Irregular B&A

15-17 Sledmere Lane 0.71% 0.14% 0.00% 12.95% 75.60% 10.61% 100.00% 24.40% 23.55% 0.85%

156 Austhorpe Road 0.00% 0.44% 0.00% 14.73% 65.69% 19.14% 100.00% 34.31% 33.87% 0.44%

2 Reinwood Avenue 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 18.98% 66.50% 14.52% 100.00% 33.50% 33.50% 0.00%

2 Woodland Square 0.00% 0.20% 0.00% 0.00% 93.36% 6.45% 100.00% 6.64% 6.45% 0.20%

26 Harley Rise 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 95.59% 4.41% 100.00% 4.41% 4.41% 0.00%

3 Woodland Square 0.46% 6.18% 0.81% 3.69% 85.34% 3.53% 100.00% 14.66% 8.02% 6.64%

34 Stainbeck Road 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 13.70% 83.58% 2.72% 100.00% 16.42% 16.42% 0.00%

45 Maryfield Ave. 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 10.79% 74.61% 14.60% 100.00% 25.39% 25.39% 0.00%

49 Gledhow Park (F) 0.00% 0.44% 0.74% 8.26% 82.35% 8.22% 100.00% 17.65% 17.21% 0.44%

8/10 The Oval 0.00% 2.02% 0.00% 3.19% 76.14% 18.65% 100.00% 23.86% 21.83% 2.02%

A&C AMH Services - JW 0.00% 0.00% 17.96% 35.50% 46.54% 0.00% 100.00% 53.46% 53.46% 0.00%

A&C Mental Health Legislation Admin 0.00% 2.32% 15.59% 0.00% 82.09% 0.00% 100.00% 17.91% 15.59% 2.32%

Asket Inpatient Unit 0.73% 2.18% 0.50% 12.64% 77.25% 6.70% 100.00% 22.75% 19.84% 2.91%

Becklin Ward 1 1.60% 4.30% 2.27% 19.80% 66.45% 5.57% 100.00% 33.55% 27.64% 5.90%

Becklin Ward 2 CR 0.50% 0.14% 0.19% 0.96% 98.12% 0.09% 100.00% 1.88% 1.24% 0.64%

Becklin Ward 3 2.65% 3.24% 2.82% 8.15% 75.05% 8.09% 100.00% 24.95% 19.06% 5.89%

Becklin Ward 4 3.45% 1.99% 3.59% 13.61% 66.81% 10.55% 100.00% 33.19% 27.75% 5.44%

Becklin Ward 5 3.77% 4.44% 4.55% 20.55% 61.24% 5.45% 100.00% 38.76% 30.55% 8.21%

Calverley Bungalow (F) 0.45% 0.56% 0.79% 2.12% 82.16% 13.91% 100.00% 17.84% 16.82% 1.01%



Cedar House 0.32% 0.00% 0.00% 5.71% 79.68% 14.29% 100.00% 20.32% 19.99% 0.32%

Chapel Fold 0.79% 0.98% 0.89% 16.05% 74.81% 6.48% 100.00% 25.19% 23.42% 1.77%

Coppice Head 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 9.32% 82.17% 8.51% 100.00% 17.83% 17.83% 0.00%

E/NE Locality CMHT Team 0.00% 2.35% 0.00% 1.73% 95.70% 0.23% 100.00% 4.30% 1.96% 2.35%

East Locality ICS 1.31% 0.43% 0.49% 0.93% 95.93% 0.92% 100.00% 4.07% 2.34% 1.73%

ECT Team Becklin 0.00% 19.36% 0.00% 4.16% 73.36% 3.12% 100.00% 26.64% 7.29% 19.36%

Laburnum Cottage 1.02% 0.00% 0.00% 1.82% 87.19% 9.96% 100.00% 12.81% 11.78% 1.02%

Liaison Psychiatry AMH 0.00% 0.96% 0.00% 3.07% 95.98% 0.00% 100.00% 4.02% 3.07% 0.96%

Little Woodhouse Hall 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 0.00%

Methley Lodge 0.00% 0.17% 0.00% 25.83% 67.82% 6.18% 100.00% 32.18% 32.02% 0.17%

Mother and Baby The Mount 0.41% 2.74% 0.69% 18.05% 72.38% 5.73% 100.00% 27.62% 24.47% 3.15%

NE Locality ICS 0.00% 0.30% 0.00% 0.00% 99.13% 0.57% 100.00% 0.87% 0.57% 0.30%

Newsam Band 6 Nights 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 96.01% 3.99% 100.00% 3.99% 3.99% 0.00%

Newsam Ward 1 PICU 4.96% 3.06% 5.54% 18.20% 57.02% 11.21% 100.00% 42.98% 34.95% 8.03%

Newsam Ward 2 Forensic 4.40% 2.64% 6.81% 39.42% 42.37% 4.37% 100.00% 57.63% 50.60% 7.04%

Newsam Ward 2 Womens Services 3.33% 2.32% 4.51% 17.64% 65.31% 6.89% 100.00% 34.69% 29.05% 5.65%

Newsam Ward 3 1.96% 5.68% 1.29% 22.61% 65.06% 3.41% 100.00% 34.94% 27.31% 7.63%

Newsam Ward 4 3.01% 3.11% 1.86% 21.28% 68.15% 2.60% 100.00% 31.85% 25.73% 6.12%

Newsam Ward 5 1.74% 1.37% 1.93% 9.69% 74.33% 10.94% 100.00% 25.67% 22.56% 3.11%

Newsam Ward 6 EDU 3.32% 2.45% 5.94% 9.70% 72.62% 5.96% 100.00% 27.38% 21.61% 5.77%

Parkside Lodge 1.26% 2.05% 1.21% 23.32% 63.18% 8.97% 100.00% 36.82% 33.51% 3.32%

Parkwood View 1.19% 3.32% 0.99% 22.22% 62.26% 10.01% 100.00% 37.74% 33.23% 4.51%

PTS Family Therapy 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 0.00%

Pudsey Bungalow 0.32% 4.58% 0.00% 9.14% 79.15% 6.81% 100.00% 20.85% 15.96% 4.90%

South Locality CMHT Team 0.89% 0.27% 0.00% 0.00% 98.84% 0.00% 100.00% 1.16% 0.00% 1.16%

South Locality ICS 0.00% 5.20% 0.00% 0.00% 91.21% 3.59% 100.00% 8.79% 3.59% 5.20%

The Mount Ward 1 2.14% 1.74% 3.81% 9.18% 74.63% 8.50% 100.00% 25.37% 21.49% 3.88%

The Mount Ward 2a 1.87% 1.80% 5.67% 19.62% 67.40% 3.65% 100.00% 32.60% 28.93% 3.67%

The Mount Ward 3a 2.65% 2.35% 6.88% 5.63% 75.63% 6.86% 100.00% 24.37% 19.36% 5.00%

The Mount Ward 4a 2.24% 2.32% 2.58% 4.65% 76.40% 11.82% 100.00% 23.60% 19.05% 4.56%

W/NW Locality CMHT Team 0.00% 1.14% 0.00% 1.21% 97.38% 0.27% 100.00% 2.62% 1.48% 1.14%

W/NW Locality ICS 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.11% 99.89% 0.00% 100.00% 0.11% 0.11% 0.00%

YCPM LGI 0.36% 2.55% 0.99% 4.92% 87.84% 3.34% 100.00% 12.16% 9.24% 2.92%

York - Bluebell 2.67% 4.04% 1.83% 15.32% 75.88% 0.26% 100.00% 24.12% 17.41% 6.71%

York - Mill Lodge 3.80% 1.58% 3.40% 6.10% 83.16% 1.96% 100.00% 16.84% 11.46% 5.38%

York - Riverfields 0.86% 0.77% 1.96% 2.36% 94.04% 0.00% 100.00% 5.96% 4.32% 1.64%

York - Rose 5.94% 3.49% 13.60% 16.61% 60.16% 0.20% 100.00% 39.84% 30.40% 9.43%
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Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

Council of Governors

Name of paper: Complaints Report

Date of the meeting: 6 September 2016

Person presenting the paper: Anthony Deery (Director of Nursing, Professions & Quality)

Paper written by: Clare Blackburn (PALS, Complaints & Claims
Manager)

TYPE OF PAPER (please tick)

Strategic item:

Performance item: 

Governance item:

Information item:

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC GOALS (please tick relevant box)

G1 People achieve their agreed goals for improving health and improving lives 

G2 People experience safe care 

G3 People have a positive experience of their care and support 

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES (please tick relevant box)

SO1
We provide excellent quality, evidence-based, safe care that involves people
and promotes recovery and wellbeing



SO2 We work with partners and local communities to improve health and lives 

SO3 We value and develop our workforce and those supporting us 

SO4 We provide efficient and sustainable services 

SO5 We govern our Trust effectively and meet our regulatory requirements 

Agenda Item

10.3
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STATUS OF PAPER 

To be taken in the public session (Part A)


To be taken in private session (Part B)

If the paper is to be taken in the private session please indicate which criterion
is applicable:

Legal advice relating to legal proceedings (actual or possible)
Negotiations in respect of employee relations where they are of a
confidential nature
Procurement processes and contract negotiations
Information relating to identifiable individuals or groups of individuals

Matters exempt under the Freedom of Information Act (quote section
number)

The report provides activity and performance information about complaints, PALS,
compliments and claims received during July 2016.

What this is about in detail:

Complaints Management training has now been in place since May 2015, with a total
of 12 sessions having been delivered to date. A further five training sessions have
been scheduled for 2016. Uptake of training continues to rise and a total number of
113 staff have now been trained (with a further 20 staff booked on future training).
Training is evaluated after each session with positive comments being received.

Feedback from the Complaints Management training highlighted the need for
additional customer service training for front-line support staff (bands 2 to 5). As a
result, a Customer Services training package has been developed. A total of eight
training sessions have been scheduled for 2016 with the first training session held on
1 July 2016. Training is evaluated after each session with positive comments being
received.

Claims scorecards are provided by the NHSLA and are split into coloured zones

Summary (what we are talking about):
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based on the volume and value of the claims. We have queried the claim with a
stated value of £12,016,000 and NHSLA have confirmed this is an error and should
read £12,016. Revised score cards will be available for the next Council of
Governors meeting.

The Council of Governors is asked to receive and note this report

Recommendations (what we are asked to agree):
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PALS and Complaints Summary Report: July 2016 (based on June 2016 data)

This report provides data on activity and performance information about complaints, PALS, compliments and claims for June 2016.

1. Total number of complaints received within the month
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Total Number of Complaints Received within the Month In June 2016, the Trust received 13 formal complaints.

A weekly complaints tracker is sent to Care Groups, providing a summary of
open complaints with timeframes for completion. The complaints team pro-
actively monitors progress to ensure complaints are on track to achieve
timeframes. Extension of timescales can only be granted once the
complainant and the PALS, Complaints & Claims Manager have agreed the
reasons for an extension; and an appropriate extension period.

2. Severity Ratings of complaints received within the month

0

5

10

15

20

Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16

Severity ratings of complaints received within the month

Severity 1 Severity 2 Severity 3 Severity 4 Severity 5

There was one complaint received, rated as a Severity 4, in June 2016.

The complainant had made a serious sexual allegation against a member of
staff. The Trust’s Safeguarding team are aware of this complaint and are also
conducting their own investigation.

Updates

The investigation into the outstanding Severity 4 rated complaint received in
April 2016 has been concluded, with the outcome as ‘partly upheld’. Details
are as follows;

 It was acknowledged that there had been a lack of explanation of referral
processes within the Trust. As a result of the complainant not fully
understanding these processes, IAPT input was ended. This left the
complainant feeling vulnerable and unsupported. The service has
discussed the complaint within their team meeting to ensure learning, and
all staff have been reminded that they must ensure that service users are
fully aware of referral processes.
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3. Total number of re-activated complaints received within the month
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Total Number of Re-activated Complaints Received within the Month

There have been no re-activated complaints received during June 2016.

In line with the Complaints Management Procedure, should a complainant
remain dissatisfied following a reinvestigation of their complaint, we provide
details of how they can access further independent help, including the
Parliamentary and Health Services Ombudsman.

4. Number of complaints closed within the month that met the standard 30
working day timescale (by Care Group)
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Leeds Care Services Specialist Services Corporate

Of the 18 complaints closed in June 2016, nine were responded to within the
standard 30 working day timescale. Five complaints had a revised timescale
with the full agreement of the complainant.

The remaining four complaint responses were overdue by between 32 and 46
working days. The delays were attributed to:-

 One complaint response was delayed due to the investigator going on
annual leave and not submitting the draft response.

 One complaint response was delayed due to the investigator going on sick
leave.

 Two complaint responses were delayed waiting for the Associate Directors
to approve the draft response.

The weekly complaints tracker which is sent to each Associate Director
provides a summary of open complaints for their Care Group, with timeframes
for completion. In addition the PALS, Complaints & Claims Manager e-mails
investigators of open complaints each week, routinely drawing their attention
to any deadlines approaching in the next two weeks.
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5. Number of complaints overdue at month end
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As of the 4 July 2016, there are two overdue complaints (Specialist Services).
These complaints are currently with the investigators.

The Complaints team regularly prompt investigators and Associate Directors
for progress updates on all complaints; but there are still occasions when
capacity issues within care services result in delays. The interim Chief
Operating Officer has confirmed that she is made aware of any delays through
the weekly tracker and intervenes as necessary to prevent delays.

6. Outcome of complaints closed within the month
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Of the 18 complaints closed during June 2016, 10 were not upheld, five were
partly upheld, one was upheld and two were withdrawn.

The upheld and partly upheld complaints related to the following issues:

 The service failed to respond to the needs of patients and their carers
compassionately; and to respect patient choice.

 During a voice coaching session, it was acknowledged that there was not
enough time to ask questions or practice exercises in between sessions.

 The service did not explain referral processes clearly enough which led to
IAPT input ending.

 A staff member accepted responsibility over an unprofessional comment
they had made. They offered a sincere apology to the complainant.

 A written response sent to a service user following an assessment was not
of the standard expected.

 It was acknowledged that a service user had not been offered more time to
get used to the change in formulation before being discharged from the
Community Mental Health Team.

A robust process is in place to ensure all issues identified in complaints are
identified and responded to; and that actions identified are robust and
proportionate. Complaint actions are discussed within Care Group Risk
Forums. The PALS, Complaints & Claims Manager attends these meetings to
provide updates and to answer any queries in relation to complaints.

Care Group Risk Forums are the owners of their action plans, with the
Complaints Team monitoring actions to completion.
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7. Themes of complaints received within the month
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Themes of complaints received in June 2016

Categories used to capture complaints themes are devised by NHS England for
reporting purposes; they are very broad and do not support learning.

Through the ‘Learning to Improve’ process we are now categorising actions
arising from complaints; claims; serious incidents (SIs); CQC MHA visits; and
safeguarding; to identify more meaningful cross-cutting trends and themes.
The rationale for considering themes from agreed actions is that these will
always relate to areas where we have identified learning and improvement
actions required.

Main actions identified from complaints closed in June:

 Staff member to reflect on feedback provided by the complainant
and in particular, consider for future learning.

 Mental Health Act documentation to be completed correctly, in
particular Section 17 leave.

 Team to reflect on their communication, especially when light
hearted banter may not be appropriate, and how this can be
received by service users.

 Further negotiation at service manager level to improve transport
provision for transporting patients between other NHS
organisations.

 To ensure that all referral forms are reviewed, prior to invitations
being sent for courses, to ensure any adaptations can be made
for individuals attending.

 A Trust-wide “Lessons Learnt” email will be sent out reminding
staff of the importance of assessing and recording risk for patients
following Tribunal hearings. They will be asked to consider
history, current presentation and the outcome of the hearing.

Themes from complaints are reported to each Care Group, via the CLIP
(Complaints, Litigation, Incidents and PALS) report, for their actions.
Themes from actions will also be included in future CLIP reports.

8. Training

Complaints Management Training

Complaints Management training has now been in place since May 2015, with a total of 12 sessions having been delivered to date. A further five training
sessions have been scheduled for 2016. Uptake of training continues to rise and a total number of 113 staff have now been trained (with a further 20 staff
booked on future training). Training is evaluated after each session with positive comments being received (reproduced as written):

 “Thankful that there is now some training for complaints. My experience is a matter of "you’re a manager now so now it's an expectation that you do it!",
without any training. Grateful for this. “Very informative and enjoyable, thank you.”

 “Clear and enjoyed the training. Pat on the back for both of you! Very helpful!”
 “The training has been most helpful. However, I expect I am going to learn lots more during the "process" of investigation. I can't say I'm not

apprehensive but I am reassured to know you are available for support throughout. Thanks”
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 96% of attendees felt that the topics covered in the training course helped them to understand the complaints process better.
 99% of attendees felt that the content of the training course was organised and easy to follow.
 88% of attendees felt more confident in investigating a complaint.

Names of those who have completed the training are forwarded to Associate Directors to assist with capacity planning for investigations.

Customer Services Training

Feedback from the Complaints Management training highlighted the need for additional customer service training for front-line support staff (bands 2 to 5). As a
result, a Customer Services training package has been developed. A total of eight training sessions have been scheduled for 2016 with the first training session
held on 1 July 2016. Training is evaluated after each session with positive comments being received (reproduced as written):

 “The training was well prepared and relevant to my role. Made it fun and re-enforced expectations.”
 “Best presentation and interaction during this training than I have experienced for a long time, well done.”
 “Thank you for the consideration you have given to frontline staff – it’s a welcome change and I hope it continues”.
 “Really enjoyed the training. Would recommend as mandatory for all support staff.”

9. Learning from complaints

On 8 July 2016 we will hold our second complaints review panel, made up of people with lived experience of mental health services.

The purpose of these meetings is to quality assess a random selection of final response letters (anonymised). Panel members will review the complaints and our
final responses, and comment on their view of the impact of the response (have we demonstrated compassion, warmth, responsiveness, openness to learning?).
This is a significant new development, aiming to improve the quality of complaints responses. In our first meeting we heard positive comments about the
structure of the letters, but concern that one of the letters lacked empathy. We will feed learning from these sessions into complaints training, and where
appropriate capture learning in the CLIP report.

Learning from complaints is disseminated through the CLIP report, via Clinical Governance Councils. Learning can also be shared through Lessons Learned
bulletins, or through Ward Managers and Community Managers Forums and the Consultants Committee, where appropriate.

Feedback from complainants is actively pursued and each response letter is accompanied by a feedback form, with a self-addressed envelope. The format of
the complaints feedback questionnaire has been revised in line with national best practice. Since April 2015, 27 responses have been received. Feedback
broadly indicates that complaint responses are easy to understand; however 66% of responses to date indicated a lack of confidence that the Trust will learn from
the complaint. Improving feedback remains a key priority for the PALS & Complaints Manager and we continue to explore ways of improving feedback rates.
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10. Number of PALS enquiries received
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Number of PALS enquiries received

During June 2016, records indicate that there were 162 PALS enquiries. One
person accounted for 7% of PALS activity during June 2016.

11. Method of PALS enquiries received

0

20

40

60

80

100

Email In Person In writing By Telephone PALS Referral

Method of PALS enquiries received - June 2016

During June 2016 there has been a slight increase in PALS enquiries received
in person. This is attributable to the PALS team continuing to visit clinical
areas across the Trust.

12. Themes of PALS enquiries received
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Of 162 PALS enquiries recorded in June 2016, 30% were categorised as ‘communication’. Enquiries that make up the “communication” category include: written
information for third party agencies; information on advance statements; and communication issues with clinical staff.

Enquiries that make up the “other” category include: callers wanting telephone numbers for third party agencies; information on the referral process; arranging
meetings with ward staff; and general chats regarding their health.

The PALS team liaise directly with services as soon as issues are raised, to secure speedy resolution. As part of our review of data collection and reporting we
plan to develop a methodology for routinely capturing whether PALS contacts are meeting service user requirements.

Four of the 162 enquiries resulted in a formal complaint.

13. Compliments Received

Staff often receive compliments by letter or card, verbally or via a gift. They are thanked for treatment, care and support, or complimented on the environment,
atmosphere, and cleanliness of the ward. We now have the functionality within DATIXWeb to formally record all of our compliments. There is a link on the
Staffnet site (under QuickLinks) where staff are able to report all compliments received (either written or verbally) as well as being able to attach any cards/letters.

Compliments are a key measure of patient experience and we would therefore like to be in a position to consider compliments alongside complaints, aiming to
create a stronger patient focus and further develop a culture that learns from feedback.

Since April 2016, 111 compliments were formally recorded in DATIXWeb.
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The Complaints team will continually remind all staff to formally record all compliments. This will be done via Trust-wide email communication and through
Clinical Governance meetings etc.

Examples of compliments received during the month are:

 A patient who had been discharged from section returned to the ward some days later to say how pleased he had been with his care and to thank the staff
personally. He also made positive comments in a card he provided.

 Letter recieved form a patient today prior to her leaving treatment as a planned discharge, from the inpatient service back to Yorkshire Centre for Eating
Disorders Community Treatment Service. The letter thanks the Clinical Team Manager, inpatient team and the Operations manager for all their support
and advice. She acknowledges how hard staff work and the commitment they have to their patients and the service. She also makes reference to the
valuable advice given by the Operations manager in her previous treatment to the ward and how useful this has been in moving forward in her ongoing
treatment and her recovery.

 Sensible, clear advice provided well to help understand the condition and how best to manage it. Support offered until point it was needed, extending
planned sessions to accommodate a change in circumstances.

 Compliment received from a Mental Health Social Worker: I wanted to take the time to make you aware of the actions of two of my colleagues and my
appreciation of their efforts to rectify a situation that occurred yesterday with one of my clients. One of my Service User’s depot was missed for some time
as another Trust were supposed to pick it up and they never did, this came to light in a review meeting. Following a discussion (more like a rant) with a
member of your team she immediately took charge of the situation, contacted the relevant individuals and got the depot card signed and ordered it.
Another member of your staff then offered to give her the depot on the way home from work, which I believe is not in the same direction. I just wanted to
thank them both for their efforts and their “can approach” to the situation, I’m not sure if this is recorded anywhere. I know all too often we don’t get
thanked for the little things that we do, and in this instance it prevented any further delay in my SU receiving her treatment and a possible hospital
admission.
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14. Claims Received

A summary of all open claims is shared via the care group CLIP reports to Clinical Governance Councils. Clinical Directors and Associate Directors are informed
of any new claims.

Claims scorecards are provided by the NHSLA and are split into coloured zones based on the volume and value of the claims. It is important to note that for this
latest scorecard the reporting period is between 1 April 2010 and 31 March 2015.

We have queried the £12,016,000 claim on the non-clinical scorecard and NHSLA have confirmed this is an error; and should read £12,016. The error will be
investigated by their Informatics team and a revised Claims Scorecard will be sent to the Trust once this error has been rectified.

Clinical Claims Scorecard (data correct at 30 August 2015)

The scorecard shows the number of clinical negligence claims relating to the
period 1 April 2010 and 31 March 2015. Nine clinical claims were received in
this reporting period, all of which fell into the high volume, low value category.
High value is considered at over £1m and high volume over three claims in a
specialty.

In total the number of claims for the Trust is nine, with a total value of
£423,549.55.

Nr Value Nr Value

Nil 0 -£ Nil 0 -£

Grand Total 0 -£ Grand Total 0 -£

Nr Value Nr Value

Nil 0 -£ Comm Mental Servs 6 393,550£

Grand Total 0 -£ Psychiatry/ Mental Health 3 30,000£

Grand Total 9 423,550£
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Non-Clinical Claims Scorecard (data correct at 30 August 2015)

The scorecard shows the number of non-clinical claims relating to the period 1
April 2010 to 31 March 2015. The majority of non-clinical claims (by value)
were high volume, low value. High value for non-clinical claims is considered
at over £25k. High volume is three claims or over of this value.
In total there have been 61 claims. Subject to confirmation of the transcription
error from NHSLA we estimate the actual total value to be approximately
£765k.

Nr Value Nr Value

Breach of COSHH 1 27,500£ Assault 5 198,457£

Defective Tools/Equip 1 12,016,000£ Grand Total 5 198,457£

Manual Handling 1 42,487£

Slip or Trip 2 61,677£

Grand Total 5 12,147,663£

Nr Value Nr Value

Breach of DPA 1 17,277£ Assault 21 204,549£

Defective Tools/Equip 2 11,600£ Directors and Officers Liability Claims3 18,644£

Electric Shock 1 3,850£ Hit by Object 3 4,674£

Manual Handling 1 -£ Sharps Injury 3 26,030£

Professional Indemnity Claims1 14,916£ Slip or Trip 6 61,171£

Grand Total 6 47,643£ Unlawful Detention 4 11,680£

Workplace (Health, Safety and Welfare) Regulations5 48,560£

Grand Total 45 375,308£
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Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

Council of Governors

Name of paper: Trust Incident Review Group, Lessons Learnt Report
following the TIRG meetings held: Trust Incident
Review Group Meeting Held: 13/07/2016 &
10/08/2016

Date of the meeting: 06th September 2016

Person presenting the paper: Jim Isherwood, Medical Director

Paper written by: Samantha Marshall
Serious Incident Administrator/Legal Support Manager

TYPE OF PAPER(please tick)

Strategic item:

Performance item: 

Governance item:

Information item:

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC GOALS (please tick relevant box)

G1 People achieve their agreed goals for improving health and improving lives 

G2 People experience safe care 

G3 People have a positive experience of their care and support 

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES (please tick relevant box)

SO1
We provide excellent quality, evidence-based, safe care that involves people
and promotes recovery and wellbeing



SO2 We work with partners and local communities to improve health and lives

SO3 We value and develop our workforce and those supporting us

SO4 We provide efficient and sustainable services 

SO5 We govern our Trust effectively and meet our regulatory requirements 

Agenda Item
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STATUS OF PAPER 

To be taken in the public session (Part A)



To be taken in private session (Part B)

If the paper is to be taken in the private session please indicate which criterion
is applicable:

Legal advice relating to legal proceedings (actual or possible)
Negotiations in respect of employee relations where they are of a
confidential nature
Procurement processes and contract negotiations
Information relating to identifiable individuals or groups of individuals

Matters exempt under the Freedom of Information Act (quote section
number)

The attached paper is a briefing for the Council of Governors following the Trust
Incident Review Group meetings held 13/07/2016 & 10/08/2016.
The purpose of this paper is to provide the Council with information relating to new
incidents that are subsequently categorised as Serious Untoward Incidents (SUI)
and highlight any learning from the monthly Trust Incident Review Group meetings.

What this is about in detail:

The attention of the Council is drawn to the following highlights within the report:

 Progress with reporting and investigating serious incidents
 From 9 reports reviewed, 2 root causes and 7 contributory factors were

determined.
 Learning from investigations:

- Consultant Workload
- Family Involvement
- Working with Police
- Engagement with service user

Summary (what we are talking about):
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- Working across boundaries
- Training for Care Coordinators
- Competency Framework
- Communication of clinical information

 Serious Incidents in progress
 De-logging of a Never Event
 ALPS Team – good practice

Serious incidents are a key source of learning within the Trust to ensure we improve
the quality of care provided to our service users.

The Trust Incident Review Group promotes the Trust’s duty of candour and
commitment to learning from experience.

Recommendations (what we are asked to agree):

 Receive the content of the report for information.
 Be assured that the actions in respect of the lessons

learnt are being progressed appropriately through the
group (or organisation).



Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

Following the Trust Incident Review Group Meeting Held: 13/07/2016 & 10/08/2016

Part A:

Serious Untoward

Incidents Update
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1 Purpose

The purpose of this paper is to provide the Board with information relating to new incidents

that are subsequently categorised as Serious Untoward Incidents (SUI).

2 Executive Summary

The paper details the following information:

 TABLE 1 – Breakdown of Serious Untoward Incidents – June & July 16

 TABLE 2 – Overview of Serious Untoward Incidents by Directorate June & July 16

 TABLE 3 – Number of Final reports of STEIS (Strategic Executive Information

System) incidents submitted to TIRG within 12 week

 TABLE 4 – Schedule of cases to be presented to Trust Incident Review Group

3 Background

The following table shows a brief flow of action: from incident occurring to presentation at

the Trust Incident Review Group (TIRG).

All incidents that are agreed as Serious Untoward Incidents and STEIS reported are

presented at TIRG.

Following review of the fact find information, a Root Cause Analysis Investigation can be

required even though the incident is not STEIS reported. In these cases the report is

presented to TIRG at the discretion of the Care Group and TIRG Chair.

Final Report to the Trust Incident Review Group

The report is submitted to TIRG within 45 working days. Once agreed the report is sent to Leeds West Clinical
Commissioning Group for final review and closure.

Incident agreed as Serious Untoward Incident

Incident is reported via STEIS and a full Root Cause Analysis Investigation is commenced.

Review by Risk Management

Risk Management reviews the information on the fact find and agrees the level of investigation with the Deputy
Director of Care Services.

Incident Occurs - Incident Report Completed

Due to the severity rating /type of incident a Fact Find report is completed.
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TABLE 1 – Breakdown of Serious Untoward Incidents (SUI)

TABLE 2 – Overview of SUI’s by Care Group

Care Group
Incident

Date
Incident Type Incident Number Severity Rating Service

Leeds 01/06/2016 Fundamentally defective
CTO*

WEBINC – 15670 3 Malham House

Leeds 08/06/2016 Fundamentally defective
Detention*

WEBINC – 15832 3 W4 Becklin

Leeds 10/06/2016 Jump/Fall from second
floor window

WEBINC – 15846 3 CMHT Malham House

Leeds 03/07/2016 Jump from Bridge WEBINC – 16560 5 CMHT/ICS WNW

Leeds 15/07/2016 Attempted Murder WEBINC – 17089 4 CMHT WNW

Leeds 11/07/2016 Attempted Suicide WEBINC – 17099 3 CMHT ENE

Leeds 19/07/2016 Death – Hanging WEBINC – 17149 5 CMHT WNW

Leeds 12/07/2016 Fundamentally Defective
Detention*

WEBINC – 16967 3 W3 Becklin

 Serious Incidents requiring comprehensive RCA investigation and presentation to TIRG – 5 incidents (as bold text).

 Serious Incident requiring a concise RCA investigation – 3 incidents as marked with *

Leeds Care Group
Specialist and LD Care

Group
TOTAL

NUMBER OF INCIDENTS REPORTED VIA

STEIS JUNE 2016
3 0 3

NUMBER OF INCIDENTS REPORTED VIA
STEIS JULY 16

5 0 5
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TABLE 3 – Number of Final reports of STEIS incidents submitted to TIRG within 12 week

Period: July 2015 – July 2016 Leeds Care Group
Specialist and LD

Care Group

York
North Yorkshire

Care Group
TOTAL

NUMBER OF REPORTS DUE FOR
THIS PERIOD July

28 1 7 36

NUMBER OF REPORTS SUBMITTED
ON DUE DATE

(Aim 100%)
4 (14%) 1 (100%) 0 (0 %) 5 (14%)

OVERDUE 1 MONTH 2 0 0 2

OVERDUE 2 MONTH 5 0 1 6

OVERDUE 3 MONTH 3 0 3 6

OVERDUE 4 MONTH 2 0 0 2

OVERDUE 5 MONTHS + 1 0 2 3

NUMBER OF REPORTS STILL
OUTSTANDING FOR THIS PERIOD

Jul 15 – Jul 16
12 1 1 14

TOTAL NUMBER OF REPORTS FOR
THE CARE GROUP IN PROGRESS

INCLUDING THOSE OUTSTANDING
25 0 1 26
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TABLE 4 – Schedule of Serious Incidents in progress

STEIS ref
(Care
Group)

SI ref Type Category *60 Working
Day

Timescale

TIRG Investigator Status

2014/36402
(Leeds)

17-14.15 Comprehensive Assault 14/01/2015 Sep Claire Paul/Pamela
Hayward-Sampson

Delay due to Police investigation. Incident reallocated to
another reviewer.
Report not completed will be presented at Aug IRG and
Sept TIRG

2015/13954
2015/25914
2015/28571
2015/31443
2015/32478
2015/38322
2016/4192
2016/4199
2016/13899
2016/14924
(Leeds)

03-15.16
14-15.16
19-15.16
21-15.16
26-15.16
40-15.16
45-15.16
39-15.16
14-16.17
13-16.17

Concise x 1 Falls with harm Various N/A Nicky Needham
assisted by Pamela
Hayward-Sampson

Cumulative draft report completed. Action & learning to
be added before submission to Interim Chief Operating
Officer for sign off.

2016/5470
2016/10660
(Leeds)

42-15.16
05-16.17

Concise x 2 Falls with harm 29/08/2016 N/A Pamela Sampson-
Hayward

Individual robust concise reports will be completed for
these incidents as the service users died (not as a direct
result of the fall but contributory)

SUMMARY KEYFOR TABLE BELOW

Care Group

Presented to TIRG and agreed

subject to amendments. Awaiting

amended version

Number of Comprehensive in

progress
Number of Concise in progress

Total number of Reports in

progress (awaiting amendments,

concise and comprehensive)

Leeds 4 20 11 35

Specialist 0 0 0 0

York 0 1 1 2
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2015.14449
(Leeds)

05-15.16 Comprehensive Death - Hanging 26/06/2015 N/A Jayne Hawkins Report presented to TIRG and agreed subject to
amendments. Awaiting amended version from Leeds
Care Group

2015/26578
(York)

15-15.16 Concise Property Damage 03/11/2015 N/A Andy Weir Awaiting concise report from Andy Weir.

2015/31823
(Leeds)

23-15.16 Comprehensive Unexpected
Death

30/12/2015 N/A Maureen Cushley Report presented to TIRG and agreed subject to
amendments. Awaiting amended version from Leeds
Care Group

2016/1456
(Leeds)

35-15.16 Comprehensive Suspected suicide 13/04/2016 Aug Anthony Atkins August TIRG

2016/1947
(Leeds)

36-15.16 Comprehensive HOMICIDE 18/04/2016 Oct EXTERNAL Oct Care Group meeting – Nov TIRG (PH-S to request
to extension)

2016/3384
(Leeds)

37-15.16 Comprehensive Unexpected
Death

03/05/2016 Jul Janet Johnson Report presented to TIRG and agreed subject to
amendments. Awaiting amended version from Leeds
Care Group

2016/5771
(Leeds)

43-15.16 Comprehensive Unexpected
Death

27/05/2016 Jul Peter Johnston Report presented to TIRG and agreed subject to
amendments. Awaiting amended version from Leeds
Care Group.

2016/6002
(Leeds)

46-15.16 Comprehensive Suspected suicide 31/05/2016 Aug Tim Richardson August Care Group IRG – Sept TIRG

2016/6769
(Leeds)

48-15.16 Comprehensive Self-Harm 08/06/2016 TBA Tom Mullen/Sharon
Prince

No dates for report awaiting information from author

2016/7982
(Leeds)

49-15.16 Comprehensive Suspected suicide 20/06/2016 Sept Simon Chambers August Care Group IRG – Sept TIRG

2016/8105
(Leeds)

50-15.16 Comprehensive Suspected suicide 21/06/2016 Aug Beverley Hunter
reallocated to Pamela
Hayward-Sampson

August TIRG

2016/9211
(Leeds)

01-16.17 Comprehensive Never Event 30/06/2016 Aug Alison
Gordon/Christine
Woodward

August TIRG

2016/9752
(Leeds)

02-16.17 Comprehensive Suspected suicide 06/07/2016 Sept Gail Longley August TIRG

2016/12443
(Leeds)

06-16.17 Concise Unlawful
detention

02/08/2016 N/A Pamela Hayward-
Sampson /Oliver
Wyatt

Draft report completed – with Oliver Wyatt for comment

2016/12368
(Leeds)

07-16.17 Concise Unlawful
detention

01/08/2016 N/A Pamela Hayward-
Sampson /Oliver

Draft report completed – with Oliver Wyatt for comment
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Wyatt

2016/13008
(Leeds)

08-16.17 Comprehensive Self-harm 08/08/2016 Sept Community Links Community Links to provide update on progress and
timescales

2016/13825
(Leeds)

09-16.17 Comprehensive Suspected suicide 15/08/2016 Sept Eve Townsley August Care Group IRG – Sept TIRG

2016/13888
(Leeds)

11-16.17 Comprehensive Death - Overdose 15/08/2016 Sept Nicky Needham August Care Group IRG – Sept TIRG

2016/15595
(Leeds)

15-16.17 Concise Fundamentally
Defective
Detention

02/09/2016 N/A Pamela Hayward-
Sampson /Oliver
Wyatt

Draft report completed – with Oliver Wyatt for comment

2016/15545
(Leeds)

16-16.17 Concise Fundamentally
Defective CTO

01/09/2016 N/A Pamela Sampson-
Hayward/Oliver Wyatt

Draft report completed – with Oliver Wyatt for comment

2016/16016
(Leeds)

17-16.17 Concise Fundamentally
Defective
Detention

07/09/2016 N/A Pamela Sampson-
Hayward/Oliver Wyatt

Draft report completed – with Oliver Wyatt for comment

2016/10341
(York)

18-16.17 Comprehensive Suspected suicide 12/07/2016 Sept Neil McAdam SM has emailed Dr Steve Wright for confirmation report
has been agreed at York review meeting and agreed
date for TIRG.

2016/17552
(Leeds)

19-16.17 Comprehensive Self- Harm 22/09/2016 Oct Gareth Flanders Sept Care Group IRG – Oct TIRG

2016/17861
(Leeds)

20-16.17 Comprehensive Jump from bridge 27/09/2016 Oct Pamela Hayward-
Sampson

Sept Care Group IRG – Oct TIRG

2016/18063
(Leeds)

21-16.17 Comprehensive Death 28/09/2016 Oct Pamela Hayward-
Sampson

Sept Care Group IRG – Oct TIRG

2016/18159
(Leeds)

22-16.17 Comprehensive Death - Hanging 29/09/2016 Dec Pamela Hayward-
Sampson

Extension requested and agreed Dec TIRG

2016/19236
(Leeds)

23-16.17 Comprehensive Attempted Murder 11/10/2016 TBC TO BE ALLOCATED

2016/19393
(Leeds)

24-16.17 Comprehensive Attempted Suicide 12/10/2016 Oct Pamela Hayward-
Sampson

2016/19419
(Leeds)

25-16.17 Comprehensive Death - Hanging 13/10/2016 Oct To be allocated

2016/19501
(Leeds)

26-16.17 Concise Fundamentally
Defective
Detention

13/10/2016 N/A Pamela Sampson-
Hayward/Oliver Wyatt

Draft report completed – with Oliver Wyatt for comment

2016/19794
(Leeds)

33-16.17 Concise IG Breach 14/10/2016 N/A Risk Management

2016/39277
(Leeds)

34-16.17 Concise Fundamentally
defective
Community
Treatment Order

14/10/2016 N/A Pamela Hayward-
Sampson/Oliver
Wyatt
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Not STEIS
reported

35-16.17 Comprehensive Death – Jumped
from height

N/A Pamela Hayward-
Sampson

Reported externally by Manchester. Out of area bed
incident – full investigation by PH-S.

**NHS England - Serious Incident Framework, Supporting learning to prevent recurrence: “single timeframe (60 working days) has

been agreed for the completion of investigation reports.”
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Following the Trust Incident Review Group Meeting Held: 13/07/2016 & 10/08/2016

Part B:

Serious Untoward Incidents

Lessons Learnt
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1 Purpose

 Summary of lessons learnt from Serious Untoward Incidents.

 Sharing of good practice highlighted from reports.

 Conclusions of any thematic reviews undertaken.

 Results of any trend analyses.

 Summary of major actions that have been implemented.

2 Executive Summary

Learning from experience is critical to the delivery of safe and effective services

in the NHS. To avoid repeating mistakes organisations need to recognise and

learn from them, to ensure that the lessons are communicated and shared and

that plans for improving safety are formulated and acted upon. The findings and

learning from any adverse event within the Trust may have relevance and

valuable learning for the local team and also other teams and services. This

paper outlines the identified lessons learnt following the Trust Incident Review

Group meeting 13/07/2016 & 10/08/2016.

3 Background

The purpose of the Trust Incident Review Group is to review the investigation

reports to ensure that all serious untoward incidents have been investigated

thoroughly, to agree recommendations and action plans that are relevant and

achievable, to oversee the implementation of those action plans and to identify

trends and patterns of untoward incidents that may require further investigation.

This activity supports LYPFT to be an organisation with a memory, to assist

learning from incidents and to continue the drive towards safer therapeutic care

for all service users.

Findings from the meetings held: 13/07/2016 & 10/08/2016

9 Serious Incident Review reports were reviewed by the group with the following
findings agreed:

Root Causes 2

Contributory Factors 7

Incidental Findings 23

Family Questions 0
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4 Outline of Lessons Learnt from Serious Untoward Incidents

Consultant Workload

A review detailed that a Consultant’s current caseload was 290 and at the time of
community transformation it was approximately 100. In a busy clinic the Consultant
reported seeing 17 service users and completing 2 new assessments per week.

The group were assured that the Lead Consultant for the Care Group has met with
the clinician to discuss what support is required to manage the caseload and
activity levels individually and in discussion with community mental health
consultant colleagues. Temporary additional medical staffing has been recruited in
order to provide more support and they began in post on the 1st July 2016.

TIRG agreed that in relation to this specific incident, it was a tragic case and the
Consultant had done everything they could do – the group acknowledged that the
Consultant had recognised the patient was not ready to progress in a different
direction and had worked to keep him engaged with the Trust.

Family Involvement

The investigator of a review was unable to involve the deceased service user’s

family as no next of kin contact details were held on PARIS or by any Trust staff.

The patient had regularly explicitly expressed that he did not want his family

involved in any aspect of his care or for them to be aware that he was accessing

the service.

The Risk Management Department has written to the coroner asking for a letter to

be passed from the investigator to the deceased’s family enquiring if they would

like to meet to discuss the report produced by the Trust.

Working with the Police

There was an issue noted within a review that it was very difficult to engage the
police in an RCA investigation and therefore impossible to contact the family for its
input. The group agreed a recommendation within this case regarding engaging the
police in future RCA investigations and for the Trust’s Serious Incident Investigator
to undertake some work with West Yorkshire Police regarding liaison and
involvement in such cases.

Working across boundaries

The coming together with others to share ideas, thoughts and knowledge to
achieve a common goal!

The group discussed the input of the Assertive Outreach Team in an incident
concerning a service user in Prison. The group commented that this case



12

highlighted that when a clinical team has responsibility for care, other teams that
may be able to add to the care package tend to withdraw rather than contribute. All
agreed that there has to be proactive information sharing for advice and care
planning. This issue was attributed as an incidental finding within this specific case.

Training for Care Coordinators

The Medical Director at TEWV has confirmed a willingness to share the training
they provide to Care Coordinators with LYPFT. Dr Isherwood will progress this
issue with the learning coordinator in the Trust to ensure that training is delivered
quickly.

Competency Framework

The group agreed a recommendation regarding the Competency Framework to
ensure any work preceptees undertake are in line with the preceptorship
procedure. Actions include the following:

a) Review the recruitment process.
b) Ensure the competency framework is being adhered to.
c) Implement a checking procedure within teams with preceptees.

Serious Incidents in progress

The group agreed that we must have reports submitted to TIRG as the schedule
(detailed in table 4) but if there is a good reason for not achieving this it must be
reported to the risk management team so that an extension may be applied for
from the CCG.

The group noted the significant positive difference the Serious Incident Investigator
had already made to the process.

Never Event – Failure of Collapsible Rail

The group reviewed the Serious Incident Review Report regarding the incident
previously logged as a Never Event and agreed that it be de-logged by the Head of
Risk Management due to the following:

 As the rail was not taking the full weight of the patient the Trust cannot
conclude that it did not fail as designed.

 If the patient had lost consciousness and fallen forward or kicked the chair
away, then there would have been a sudden drop of weight which should
have caused the rail to collapse. But this cannot be proven and following the
incident we were unable to replicate the weight put onto the magnetic
device.

 There have been instances reported nationally where similar circumstances
have occurred where gentle pressure is applied rather than a sudden drop of
weight therefore the group agreed that we share the incident with the
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Department of Health and NHS England regarding raising the awareness of
the possibility of this occurring.

 Regarding the terminology of objects named “anti-ligature” it was agreed
that the Head of Risk Management will lead discussion of this issue at the
Clinical Environment Group.

Communication of clinical information

A review identified an issue whereby information was shared from one Consultant
to another – acknowledged and then not acted upon or shared with the clinical
team.

The failure to act on this information was agreed to be a contributory factor in this
case with the group acknowledging that there is no perfect system of
communication but if communication regarding a service user is received there is
an expectation that it will be acted upon. There were many opportunities to assess
whether a more robust plan was required to protect the patient in the context of a
serious illness and despite attempts to reignite these concerns by the CMHT
Consultant with prior knowledge of the case, they were not acted upon.

5 Areas of Good Practice

ALPS Team

 The ALPS team responded to concerns raised by the medical team and

carried out a follow-up visit before a service user was discharged.

 The ALPS team liaised with different family members in order to try and get

a better understanding of the service user’s needs and risks, even though he

was minimising the risk to himself and difficult to engage.

 The reviewer highlighted that there was a high level of reflection on clinical

practice in difficult circumstances, supported by good supervision structures.

Engagement with service user

A review detailed that a Doctor offered to see a service user regularly in the
outpatient clinic, was able to build up a good rapport with him and always
responded to his contact with the service outside of the clinic appointments. The
Doctor was conscious that this level of input would be difficult to sustain and so
referred the service user to a community psychiatric nurse.

Recommendations

The Board is requested to:

 Note the content of the report

 Be assured that the actions taken in respect of the lessons learnt are

being progressed appropriately through the organisation.
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GLOSSARY OF DEFINITIONS

The following definitions are of relevance to this document:

Definition Meaning

Case Conference Meeting to discuss complex cases that are very serious or have a multi-

agency aspect and that may include criminal offences and possible

organisational failures.

CAS Crisis Assessment Service

CPA Care Pathway Approach

CPN Community Psychiatric Nurse

CCG Clinical Commissioning Group (replaced PCT’s)

Department of

Health

The Department of Health (DH) helps people to live better for longer. We
lead, shape and fund health and care in England, making sure people have
the support, care and treatment they need, with the compassion, respect and
dignity they deserve.

DH is a ministerial department, supported by 29 agencies and public bodies.

DHR Domestic Homicide Review

Duty of Candour As a direct response to the Francis Inquiry report, a statutory duty to be open,
transparent and candid has been introduced for health and care providers.
This is called the Duty of Candour and is set out in CQC’s Regulation 20.

Goddard Inquiry Independent Inquiry into Child Sexual Abuse which will investigate whether
public bodies and other non-state institutions have taken seriously their duty
of care to protect children from sexual abuse in England and Wales

ICS Intensive Community Services

Incident For the purpose of the Trust’s incident reporting system, an incident is

defined as: -

‘Any event, untoward or unusual, which is a deviation from the normal pattern

of activity or therapeutic well-being or smooth running of the workplace (e.g.

ward/ department, client’s home, etc.), which involves service users and/or

staff and/or visitors, and which may adversely affect their health and/or safety

and/or welfare and/or confidentiality then or later’.

LYPFT Leeds and York Partnerships Foundation Trust

MDT Multi-Disciplinary Team - A group composed of members with varied but

complimentary experience, qualifications, and skills that contribute to the

achievement of the specific objectives.

NCISH The National Confidential Inquiry into Suicide and Homicide by people with
mental illness

NHS England NHS England is an executive non-departmental public body of the
Department of Health. NHS England oversees the budget, planning, delivery
and day-to-day operation of the commissioning side of the NHS in England
as set out in the Health and Social Care Act 2012

OBSERVATION Observation and engagement is a key clinical activity requiring a commitment
from all health care staff, through a shared approach, involving assessment,
care planning, risk management, clinical review and evaluation.

Types of observations: General, Intermittent, Within Eyesight and Within
Arm’s
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PARIS Electronic patient information record system.

RCA Root Cause Analysis.

Risk A risk is characterised by both the likelihood/probability of harm or

information security breach actually occurring (e.g. low, medium or high) and

the impact/severity of the harm (e.g. slight injury, major injury, death).

The level of risk to health increases with the impact/severity of the hazard

and the duration and frequency of exposure to the hazard.

SAMP Safety Assessment and Management Plan

SAR Safeguarding Adults Return

SCR Serious Case Review

Section 17 Leave Section 17 of the Mental Health Act 1983 makes provision for patients who

are liable to be detained under various other sections of the Act to be granted

leave of absence.

Section 17 applies to patients who are detained under ss.2, 3, 37, or 47 of

the Act.

Serious Untoward

Incident (SUI)

A serious untoward incident is defined as ‘any accident or incident where a

service user, member of staff (including those in the community), or member

of the public suffers serious injury, major permanent harm or unexpected

death, (or the risk of death or injury), on hospital, other health service

premises or other premises where health care is provided, or where actions

of health services staff are likely to cause significant concern’.

STEIS Strategic Executive Information System

This is the Trust’s mechanism for reporting serious untoward incidents to the

Clinical Commissioning Group.

TIRG Trust Incident Review Group

MEWS Modified Early Warning System

CAMHS Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services

CQUINN Commissioning for Quality and Innovation
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Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

Council of Governors

Name of paper: Presentation of the findings from the audit of the
Annual Report and Accounts 2015/16 and the Quality
Report 2015/16

Date of the meeting: 6 September 2016

Person presenting the paper: Presentation from the External Auditors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Paper written by: Cath Hill – Head of Corporate Governance

TYPE OF PAPER (please tick)

Strategic item:

Performance item: 

Governance item: 

Information item:

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC GOALS (please tick relevant box)

G1 People achieve their agreed goals for improving health and improving lives 

G2 People experience safe care 

G3 People have a positive experience of their care and support 

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES (please tick relevant box)

SO1
We provide excellent quality, evidence-based, safe care that involves people
and promotes recovery and wellbeing

SO2 We work with partners and local communities to improve health and lives

SO3 We value and develop our workforce and those supporting us

SO4 We provide efficient and sustainable services

SO5 We govern our Trust effectively and meet our regulatory requirements 

Agenda Item

11
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STATUS OF PAPER 

To be taken in the public session (Part A)


To be taken in private session (Part B)

If the paper is to be taken in the private session please indicate which criterion
is applicable:

Legal advice relating to legal proceedings (actual or possible)
Negotiations in respect of employee relations where they are of a
confidential nature
Procurement processes and contract negotiations
Information relating to identifiable individuals or groups of individuals

Matters exempt under the Freedom of Information Act (quote section
number)

Legislation requires that the Council of Governors is presented with the
Annual Report and Accounts and any auditors’ report on the these.
There is also a requirement from NHS Improvement that the Council is
presented with the audit report on the Quality Report.

The Council is asked to note that the auditors will be attending the
meeting to make a presentation of their findings from the audit of the
Annual Report and Accounts and also the audit of the Quality Report
(both for the financial period 2015/16) and their reports are attached to
this paper for your consideration.

What this is about in detail:

Legislation requires that the Council of Governors is presented with the
Annual Report and Accounts and any auditors’ report on the these.
There is also a requirement from NHS Improvement that the Council is

Summary (what we are talking about):
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presented with the audit report on the Quality Report.

The Council is asked to receive the audit reports which are attached to
this paper and to note that there will also be a presentation from
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (the Trust’s external auditors) at the
meeting on the 6 September where governors can ask questions directly
of the auditors on the process and their findings.

The Council is also asked to note that a full copy of the Annual Report
and Accounts for 2015/16 will be formally presented to the Council and
the wider public at the Annual Members’ Meeting on the 20 September
2016.

Ahead of the Council of Governors’ meeting should any member of the
Council wish to see a copy of either the Annual Report and Accounts or
the Quality Report for the financial period 2015/16 please contact Cath
Hill who will post out a copy to you.

The Council is asked to note the content of the auditors’ reports on the
Annual Report and Accounts 2015/16 and the Quality Report 2015/16
and the assurances it provides.

The Council is also asked to note that the Annual Report and Accounts
2015/16 will be formally presented to the Council of Governors’ and the
wider public at the Annual Members’ Meeting on the 20 September
2016.

Recommendations (what we are asked to agree):



Independent auditors’ report to the Council ofGovernors
ofLeeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

Report on the financial statements

In our opinion, Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust’s financial statements (the “financial statements”):

• give a true and fair view of the state of the Trust’s affairs as at 31 March 2016 and of its income and expenditure
and cash flows for the year then ended; and

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the NtIS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2015/16.

The financial statements comprise:

the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2016;

the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended;

the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended;

the Statement of Changes in Taxpayer’s Equity for the year then ended, and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary’ of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Certain required disclosures have been presented elsewhere in the Annual Report (the “Annual Report”), rather than in the
notes to the financial statements. These are cross-referenced from the financial statements and are identified as audited.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements is the NHS
Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2015/16 issued by the Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts
(“Monitor”).

The Trust provides specialist mental health and learning disability services to the population of Leeds and York, and the
surrounding areas. Services are delivered from a wide range of sites across West and North Yorkshire.

Its primary’ commissioners are: NHS Leeds North Clinical Commissioning Group; NUS Leeds West Clinical Commissioning
Group; and, NHS Leeds South and East Clinical Commissioning Group. Of these three, the lead for mental health
commissioning is Leeds North CCG. Specialist services are also commissioned directly by NHS England

Our 2016 audit was planned and executed having regard to the fact that the ‘I’rust had, in September 2015, lost the £om
contract from NllS Vale of York Clinical Commissioning Group to deliver mental health and learning disability services in
York and North Yorkshire. In light of this, our approach to the audit in terms of scoping and areas of focus was altered to
include the impact of any dis-aggregation of services and resulting accounting treatment. As the contract was lost half way
through the year the accounts were impacted by six months of contract services and the exclusion of all contract related
balances from the Statement of Financial Position at year end.

Overall materiality: £3.3m which represents 2% of total revenue.

• We performed an audit of the complete financial information of the Trust for the year
ended 31 March 2015, subject to the level of materiality outlined above.

Our audit was performed at Trust lIQ, at Thorpe Park in Leeds, where the finance
function is based
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Audit scope

A,TUS of
focus

Risks of fraud in revenue and expenditure recognition and management override of

control;

Financial standing;

• Estates and capital accounting; and

• Dis-aggregation of York contract services.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the National Health Service Act 2006, the Code of Audit Practice and relevant

guidance issued by the National Audit Office on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General (the “Code”) and,

International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (“ISAs (UK & Ireland)”).

We designed our audit by determining materiality and assessing the risks of material misstatement in the financial

statements. In particular, we looked at where the directors made subjective judgements, for example in respect of significant

accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in

all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including evaluating whether there

was evidence of bias by the directors that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

The risks of material misstatement that had the greatest effect on our audit, including the allocation of our resources and

effort, are identified as “areas of focus” in the table below. We have also set out how we tailored our audit to address these

specific areas in order to provide an opinion on the financial statements as a whole, and any comments we make on the

results of our procedures should be read in this context. This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

There is a risk that due to the gradually reducing surplus of
the Trust and sector pressures from NI IS Improvement to
achieve a pre-determincd financial position, management
has adopted accounting policies or treated income and
expenditure transactions in such a way as to improve the
underlying position this year and/or next year.

We focussed our work on the elements of income and
expenditure that are the most susceptible to manipulation
being:

• non-standard journal transactions including the
accrued/deferred income and accrued/prepaid
expenses;

• items of expenditure whose value is estimates,
including the provision for bad debts with
particular focus on the recoverability of debtor
balances;

• inter-nhs balances which are in dispute; and

unrecorded liabilities.

We evaluated and tested the accounting policy for income
recognition and found it to be consistent with the
requirements of the NI IS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting

Manual.

For transactions close to the year-end we tested, on a sample
basis that the transactions and associated income had been
posted to the correct financial year by tracing them to invoices
and other documentary evidence. Our testing did not identii
any balances that had been recorded to the incorrect period.

We obtained and tested all Clinical Commissioning Group
(CCG) contract reconciliations including testing all material
reconciling items.

We tested a sample of income by agreeing it to invoices and
subsequent cash received (for NHS and Non-NHS income) to
check whether it had been correctly recorded.

From our testing we were able to determine that revenue was
appropriately and accurately recognized.

We tested a sample of manual journal transactions that had
been recognised in both income and expenditure focussing in
particular on those recognised near the end of the year or
included in accrued/deferred income or prepaid/accrued
expenses, by tracing the journal entry to the supporting
documentation (for example, invoices and cash receipt and

payments). Our testing confirmed that they were supported

by appropriate documentation and that the related income

and expenditure was recognised in the correct accounting
period.
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We obtained the Trust’s intra NHS confirmations for debtor,
creditor, income and expenditure balances and checked that
management had investigated disputed amounts over the
investigation threshold set by Monitor. We discussed with
management the results of their investigation and the
resolution which we agreed to correspondence with the
counterparty. We then considered the impact, if any, these
variances would have on the value of income and expenditure
recognized in F7i6 and determined that there was no
material impact.

We evaluated and tested management’s accounting estimates
focusing on:

• Accruals;
• Provisions;
• Deferred income;
• Provision for receivables; and
• Property, plant and equipment valuation (see

specific area of focus below).
We evaluated and challenged the key accounting estimates on
which management’s estimates were based and the basis of
their calculation by;

• comparing the assumptions used by management in
the calculation of their estimate with independent
assumptions (from publicallv available sources) and
investigated any differences; and

• agreed the accuracy of data used to calculate the
estimate against the Trusts original data.

We evaluated and challenged the low provision for
impairment of receivables and the basis of its calculation by
identifying ‘receivables past their due date but not impaired’,
selecting a sample and agreeing to cash receipt (where
possible) or evidence to support their recoverability. From the
testing we did not identify any receivables balances in
dispute.

Where provisions balances had been ‘reversed unused’ we
checked that the factors which originally justified the
provision no longer applied and concluded that they did not.

We performed testing to make sure there were no unrecorded
liabilities by:

• agreeing large payments made and invoices received
after the year end to supporting documentation and
checking that where they related to FYi6
expenditure an accrual was recognized
appropriately;

• comparing the list of accrued expenses recognized at
31 March 2016 with that recognized in the prior year
to identify differences in accruals ‘ear on year which
we then investigated.

From the testing performed we did not identifr any
unrecorded liabilities as at the year-end date.

In considering the financial performance of the Trust we
have:



As part of our audit work, we are required to consider the
ongoing financial position of the Trust and the
appropriateness of the going concern principle.

The Trust has historically reported comfortable surpluses in
the past three financial years and has a strong balance sheet
with a FY16 cash balance of £46m. However surpluses are
declining and the forecast position for FY17 is Lirn surplus. In

2015, the Vale of York CCG put the contract for York based
services out to tender; LYPFT was unsuccessful in their re
tendering and the contract was discontinued with them
effective from 1st October 2015.

This is an area of focus due to:

• the current economic position of the Foundation
Trust sector, which continues to deteriorate and
remains a challenging operating environment; and

• the ongoing fall in income of approximately £3om

which impacts the size of the Trust, despite its
regularly strong financial performance.

The Trust is required to regularly revalue its assets in line
with Monitor’s Annual Reporting Manual. Professional
valuations are carried out by the District Valuers of the
Revenue and Customs Government Department. These
valuations are carried oUt in accordance with the Royal
Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Appraisal and
Valuation Manual. A valuation was last undertaken as at 31

March 2015 and in the current year the assets were reviewed

for impairment using the Modern Equivalent Asset method
as appropriate.

We focussed on this area due to the material nature of this
balance and the impact on the financial statements if it were
to be materially misstated. The specific areas of risk are:

• accuracy of detailed information on assets provided
to the valuation expert, in particular the floor plans
on which the valuation is based;

• the methodology, assumptions and underlying data
used by the District Valuer; and

• the accounting transactions resulting from this
valuation with £1.7m charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

‘The loss of the £3orn Vale of York contract in September
2015 requires additional disclosure in the financial
statements as well as consideration of the most appropriate

• Understood the ‘Trust’s budget, cash forecasts and
levels of reserves and assessed the ongoing ability of
the Trust to meet its liabilities as they fall due; and

• We tested management’s forecasting accuracy by
comparing the current year actual results to those
included in the prior year annual plan. We found
that the revised annual plan for FYi6 produced in
September 2015 following the loss of the York
contract was slightly prudent at £2.5m surplus. The
actual surplus was £o.m ahead of plan due to non-
recurrent income.

• We checked the anticipated financial sustainability
risk rating (FSRR) over the next 12 months which is
forecast to stay at 3.

• We removed all one-off non recurrent transactions
impacting the statement of comprehensive income to
arrive at a ‘true’ operating position and compared
this to the actual FYi6 surplus — the operating
position was a surplus.

• We obtained directly from the District Valuer the
output of the desktop valuation undertaken
including details of the request for the work to be
performed for the Trust.

• We used our valuation expertise to confirm that the
valuations methodology and the assumptions used
by the Trust’s valuation experts were consistent with
our expectations based on our experience of similar
valuations.

• We tested a sample of the material assets by
verifying that the input data used by the valuer as
the basis of the valuation was consistent with the
underlying estates and property asset information
held within the Trust’s Estates Department.

• We inspected the repairs and maintenance expense
codes to confirm that there had been no significant
alterations to the existing value and use of assets.

• We checked that the valuation information has been
correctly input into the Fixed Asset Register and
consequently that the accounting treatment has been
recorded appropriately in the Trust’s financial
statements.

Our procedures did not identify any significant issues to
report.

The impact of the changes to the Trust’s estate valuation has
been the exit of the Revival properties scheme in May 2015.

We have examined the disclosure made by management
within the notes to the financial statements of the lease exit
and considered them as reasonable.

We have tested the disclosure of future payments for these
FF1 assets within the notes to the financial statements and
considered them to be reasonable.

• We held discussions with management to ascertain
the correct presentational treatment for the loss of
the contract and verified this against the FT Annual
Reporting Manual;

• We reviewed the disclosure on ‘transfer by
absorption’ and ‘operating segments’ and agreed the



accounting treatment of six months of transactions. The
balance sheet also included provisions and accruals related
to the York contract which have to be reversed.
We focussed on this area because the disaggregation of
contractual services part way through the year presented a
potentially complex accounting, disclosure and
presentational impact on the accounts.

And the reversal of balance sheet accruals and provisions
relating to York have the effect of increasing the surplus
through credits to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

balances to supporting invoices and other
supporting documentation;

• We tested a sample of income and expense
transactions which related to the services delivered
under the contract and agreed these to invoices and
cash transfers to verif’ that they were recorded in
the correct period; and

• for accruals and provisions relating to the contract
we verified that these had been correctly released
and removed from the balance sheet.

We identified that the narrative disclosure in the notes to the
financial statements could be improved by describing the long
term impact on the Statement of Comprehensive Income of
the loss of the contract — the narrative was amended to reflect
this.

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the trust, the accounting processes and controls, and the
environment in which the trust operates.

In establishing our overall approach we assessed the risks of material misstatement, taking into account the nature,
likelihood and potential magnitude of any misstatement. following this assessment, we applied professional judgement to
determine the extent of testing required over each balance in the financial statements.

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for
materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature,
timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of misstatements, both individually and on the financial
statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

£3,3m (2015: £3.6m).

2% of revenue (2015: 2% of revenue)

Consistent with last year, we have applied this benchmark, a generally accepted
auditing practice, in the absence of indicators that an alternative benchmark would
be appropriate.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above
£i8o,ooo (2015: £i$o,ooo) as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted reporting for
qualitative reasons.

Other reporting in accordance with the Code

In our opinion:

• the information given in the Performance Report and the Accountability Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements;

• the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
NHS Foundation ‘frust Annual Reporting Manual 2015/16; and

• the part of the Staff Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the NI IS foundation Trust
Annual Reporting Manual 2015/16.



We are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

information in the Annual Report is:

— materially inconsistent with the information in the audited financial We have no exceptions to

statements; or report.

— apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with,
our knowledge of the group and parent company acquired in the course of
performing our audit; or

— otherwise misleading.

the statement given by the directors on page 125, in accordance with provision We have no exceptions to

C.i.i of the NIIS Foundation Trust Code of Governance, that they consider the report.

Annual Report taken as a whole to be fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for members to assess the Trust’s
performance, business model and strategy is materially inconsistent with our
knowledge of the trust acquired in the course of performing our audit.

the section of the Annual Report on page 100, as required by provision C.3.9 of We have no exceptions to

the NIIS Foundation Trust Code of Governance, describing the work of the Audit report.

Committee does not appropriately address matters communicated by us to the
Audit Committee.

the Annual Governance Statement does not meet the disclosure requirements set We have no exceptions to
out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2015/16 or is report.
misleading or inconsistent with information of which we are aware from our
audit. We have not considered whether the Annual Governance Statement
addresses all risks and controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by
internal controls.

re are also required to report to you if:

we have referred a matter to Monitor under paragraph 6 of Schedule 10 to the We have no exceptions to
NHS Act 2006 because we had reason to believe that the Trust, or a director or report.
officer of the Trust, was about to make, or had made, a decision which involved
or would involve the incurring of expenditure that was unlawful, or was about to
take, or had taken a course of action which, if followed to its conclusion, would
be unlawful and likely to cause a loss or deficiency; or

we have issued a report in the public interest under paragraph 3 of Schedule 10 We have no exceptions to
to the NHS Act 2006. report.

Under the Code we are required to report to you if we are not satisfied that the Trust has made proper arrangements for

securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2016; We have nothing to

report as a result of this requirement.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

As explained more frilly in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the

financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view in accordance with the NIIS Foundation Trust

Annual Reporting Manual 2015/16.

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with the National Health

Service Act 2006, the Code, and ISAs (UK & Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices

Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Council of Governors of Leeds and York

Partnership NHS Foundation Trust as a body in accordance with paragraph 24 of Schedule 7 of the National Health Service

Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other



purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed
by our prior consent in writing.

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error.
This includes an assessment of:

whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the trust’s circumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed;

the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and

the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the directors’ judgements against available evidence, forming our
own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements.

We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to
provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions. We obtain audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of
controls, substantive procedures or a combination of both. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial
information in the Annual Report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify
any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by
us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we
consider the implications for our report.

Responsibilities for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in the use of resources

The Trust is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use
of resources. We are required under paragraph 1(d) of Schedule 10 to the NIIS Act 2006 to satisfy ourselves that the ‘Trust
has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources and to report to you
where we have not been able to satisfy ourselves that it has done so. We are not required to consider, nor have we
considered, whether all aspects of the Trust’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources are operating effectively.

We have undertaken our work in accordance with the Code, having regard to the criterion determined by the Comptroller
and Auditor General as to whether the Trust has proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and
deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such
work as we considered necessary.

Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 5 of
Part 2 to the National Health Service Act 2006 and the Code.

Ian Looker (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Leeds

May 2016

(a) The maintenance and integrity of the Leeds and York Partnership NIIS Foundation Trust website is the
responsibilit-v of the directors; the work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters



and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurrcd to the financial

statements since they were initially presented on the wcbsite.

(b) Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statemcnts may differ

from legislation in other jurisdictions



Independent Auditors’ Limited Assurance Report to the Council of Governors of Leeds
and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust on the Annual Quality Report

We have been engaged by the Cottncil of Governors of Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation
Trust to perform an independent assurance engagement in respect of Leeds and York Partnership NHS
Foundation Trust’s Quality Report for the year ended 31 March 2016 (the ‘Quality Report’) and specified
performance indicators contained therein.

Scope and subject matter

The indicators for the year ended 31 March 2016 subject to limited assurance (the “specified indicators”)

marked with the symbol in the Quality Report, consist of the following national priority indicators
as mandated by Monitor:

SpecWed Indicators Specified indicators criteria

Minimising delayed transfer of care Criteria can be fotind on page 63 of the
Quality Report

Admissions to inpatient services had access Criteria can be found on page 65 of the
to crisis resolution home treatment teams Quality report

Respective responsibilities of the Directors and auditors

The Directors are responsible for the content and the preparation of the Quality Report in accordance
with the specified indicators criteria referred to on pages of the Quality Report as listed above (the
“Criteria”). The Directors are also responsible for the conformity of their Criteria with the assessment
criteria set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual (“FT ARM”) and the “Detailed
requirements for quality reports 2015/16” issued by the Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation
Trusts (“Monitor”).

Our responsibility is to form a conclusion, based on limited assurance procedures, on whether anything
has come to our attention that causes us to believe that:

• The Quality Report does not incorporate the matters required to be reported on as specified in
Annex 2 to Chapter 7 of the FT ARM and the “Detailed requirements for quality reports
2015/16”;

• The Quality Report is not consistent in all material respects with the sources specified below;
and

• The specified indicators have not been prepared in all material respects in accordance with the
Criteria set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual (“FT ARM”) and the
“2015/16 Detailed guidance for external assurance on quality reports”.

We read the Quality Report and consider whether it addresses the content requirements of the FT ARM
and the “Detailed requirements for quality reports 2015/16; and consider the implications for our report
if we become aware of any material omissions.

We read the other information contained in the Quality Report and consider whether it is materially
inconsistent with the following documents:

• Board minutes for the financial year, April 2015 and up to the date of signing this limited assurance
report (the period). This does not include draft papers for the Board meeting held in April 2016;

• Papers relating to quality report reported to the Board over the period April 2015 to the date of
signing this limited assurance report;

• Feedback from the Commissioners NHS Vale of York Clinical Commissioning Group dated 6/5/16
and Leeds North Clinical Commissioning Group dated 13/5/16;



• Feedback from Healthwatch York dated 09/05/2016;

• Feedback from Healthwatch Leeds and Overview and Scrutiny Committee dated 18/05/2016

• The Trust’s complaints report published under regulation i8 of the Local Authority Social Services

and NHS Complaints Regulations 2009, dated April 2016;

• The latest national and local patient survey dated 2015;

• The latest national and local staff survey dated 2015;

• Care Quality Commission Intelligent Monitoring Reports dated June 2015 and February 2016; and

• The Head of Internal Audit’s annual opinion over the Trust’s control environment dated

18/05/2016.

We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or

material inconsistencies with those documents (collectively, the “documents”). Our responsibilities do

not extend to any other information.

Our Independence and Quality Control

We applied the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW) Code of Ethics [,
which includes independence and other requirements founded on fundamental principles of integrity,

objectivity, professional competence and due care, confidentiality and professional behaviour].

We apply International Standard on Quality Control (UK & Ireland) 1 and accordingly maintain a

comprehensive system of quality control including documented policies and procedures regarding

compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory

requirements.

Use and distribution of the report

This report, including the conclusion, has been prepared solely for the Council of Governors of Leeds

and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust as a body, to assist the Council of Governors in reporting

of Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust’s quality agenda, performance and activities. We

permit the disclosure of this report within the Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2016, to

enable the Council of Governors to demonstrate they have discharged their governance responsibilities

by commissioning an independent assurance report in connection with the indicators. To the fullest

extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Council of

Governors as a body and of Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust for our work or this

report save where terms are expressly agreed and with our prior consent in Titing.

Assurance work performed

We conducted this limited assurance engagement in accordance with International Standard on

Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) ‘Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of

Historical Financial Information’ issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board

(‘ISAE 3000 (Revised)’). Our limited assurance procedures included:

• reviewing the content of the Quality Report against the requirements of the FT ARM and

“Detailed requirements for quality reports 2015/16”;

• reviewing the Quality Report for consistency against the documents specified above;

• obtaining an understanding of the design and operation of the controls in place in relation to the

collation and reporting of the specified indicators, including controls over third party

information (if applicable) and performing walkthroughs to confirm our understanding;

• based on our understanding, assessing the risks that the performance against the specified

indicators may be materially misstated and determining the nature, timing and extent of further

procedures;
• making enquiries of relevant management, personnel and, where relevant, third parties;

• considering significant judgements made by the NHS Foundation Trust in preparation of the

specified indicators;



• performing limited testing, on a selective basis of evidencc supporting the reported performance
indicators, and assessing the related disclosures; and

• reading the documents.

A limited assurance engagement is less in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement. The nature,
timing and extent of procedures for gathering sufficient appropriate evidence are deliberately limited
relative to a reasonable assurance engagement.

Limitations

Non-financial performance information is subject to more inherent limitations than financial
information, given the characteristics of the subject matter and the methods used for determining sttch
information.

The absence of a significant body of established practice on which to draw allows for the selection of
different but acceptable measurement techniques which can result in materially different measurements
and can impact comparability. The precision of different measurement techniques may also vary.
Furthermore, the nature and methods used to detennine such information, as well as the measurement
criteria and the precision thereof, may change over time. It is important to read the Quality Report in
the context of the assessment criteria set out in the FT ARM the “Detailed requirements for quality
reports 2015/16 and the Criteria referred to above.

The nature, form and content required of Quality Reports are determined by Monitor. This may result in
the omission of information relevant to other users, for example for the purpose of comparing the
results of different NHS Foundation Trusts.

In addition, the scope of our assurance work has not incitided governance over quality or non-mandated
indicators in the Quality Report, which have been determined locally by of Leeds and York Partnership
NHS Foundation Trust.

Conclusion

Based on the results of our procedures, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that
for the year ended 31 March 2016:

• The Quality Report does not incorporate the matters required to be reported on as specified in
Annex 2 to Chapter 7 of the FT ARM and the “Detailed requirements for quality reports
2015/16”;

• The Quality Report is not consistent in all material respects with the documents specified above;
and

• the specified indicators have not been prepared in all material respects in accordance with the
Criteria set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual (“Fl’ ARM”) and the
“Detailed guidance for external assurance on quality reports 2015/16”.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Benson House, 33 Wellington Street, Leeds, LSr 4JP

25 May 2016

The maintenance and illtegrity of Leeds and York Partnership NIIS Foundation Trust’s website is the responsibility
of the directors; the work earned out by the assurance providers does not involve consideration of these matters
and, accordingly, the assurance providers accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the
reported performance indicators or criteria since they were initially presented on the website.
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Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

Council of Governors

Name of paper: Refreshed Terms of Reference for the Council of
Governors

Date of the meeting: 6 September 2016

Person presenting the paper: Cath Hill – Head of Corporate Governance

Paper written by: Cath Hill – Head of Corporate Governance

TYPE OF PAPER (please tick)

Strategic item:

Performance item: 

Governance item: 

Information item:

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC GOALS (please tick relevant box)

G1 People achieve their agreed goals for improving health and improving lives 

G2 People experience safe care 

G3 People have a positive experience of their care and support 

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES (please tick relevant box)

SO1
We provide excellent quality, evidence-based, safe care that involves people
and promotes recovery and wellbeing

SO2 We work with partners and local communities to improve health and lives

SO3 We value and develop our workforce and those supporting us

SO4 We provide efficient and sustainable services

SO5 We govern our Trust effectively and meet our regulatory requirements 

Agenda Item

13
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STATUS OF PAPER 

To be taken in the public session (Part A) 

To be taken in private session (Part B)

If the paper is to be taken in the private session please indicate which criterion
is applicable:

Legal advice relating to legal proceedings (actual or possible)
Negotiations in respect of employee relations where they are of a
confidential nature
Procurement processes and contract negotiations
Information relating to identifiable individuals or groups of individuals

Matters exempt under the Freedom of Information Act (quote section
number)

The Council is required to review its Terms of Reference annually to
ensure they are still fit for purpose and correctly describe the role of the
Council. The Head of Corporate Governance has done this on behalf of
the Council and found that there are some changes to make to ensure
these accurately reflect the work of the Council of Governors. The
changes are shown in the attached document and are in regard to:

 The number of governor seats (as per the updated Constitution)
 A change in the sub-committee structure under the Council of

Governors (removal of the Membership and Development
Committee)

 A change in the name of the Audit and Assurance Committee to
the Audit Committee.

Summary (what we are talking about):
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The Council of Governors is asked to receive and confirm the changes
to the Terms of Reference and that they are fit for purpose and correctly
describe the role of the Council.

Recommendations (what we are asked to agree):
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LEEDS AND YORK PARTNERSHIP NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Council of Governors

Terms of Reference
July 2015 September 2016

(To be ratified by the Council of Governors 6 September 2016)
.
1 NAME OF GROUP

Council of Governors

2 COMPOSITION OF THE COUNCIL

The membership of the Council of Governors is determined by Annex 4 of the
Constitution, and is made up of both elected and appointed governors totalling
34 30.

Membership is set out below.

Elected Governors

Constituency Area/ Class Number of
Governor Seats

Public Leeds 6
York and North Yorkshire 3 1
Rest of England and Wales 1

Service User
and Carer

Service User Leeds 4
Service User York and North Yorkshire 2 1
Carer Leeds 3
Carer York and North Yorkshire 1
Service User and Carer Rest of United Kingdom 1

Staff Clinical Staff Leeds and York & North Yorkshire 4
Non-Clinical Staff Leeds and York & North Yorkshire 2

Appointed Governors

Local Authority Governors
City of York Council 1
Leeds City Council 1
North Yorkshire County Council 1

Partner Organisation Governors
Volition 1
Tenfold 1
York Council for Voluntary Services 1
Equitix 1

In accordance with Monitor’s Code of Governance it is expected that the
Council of Governors will invite the Chief Executive to attend all its general
meetings, and that other executive and non-executive directors will be invited
to attend as appropriate. However, there may be occasions where directors
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are formally requested to attend Council meetings to explain concerns about
performance. It is anticipated that this will be only on rare occasions and such
an occasion will be reported in the Annual Report.

The Council may invite other non-members to attend its meetings on an ad-
hoc basis, as it considers necessary and appropriate.

The Head of Corporate Governance as the Trust Board Secretary shall attend
each meeting and provide appropriate advice and support to the Chair of the
Trust and Council members.

Members of the Council of Governors must ensure that wherever possible
they attend every Council meeting. Attendance at meetings will be monitored
and shall be reported in the Annual Report. Failure to attend two Council
meetings by any governor in any one financial year shall be reported to the
Membership and Development Committee.

3 QUORACY

No business shall be transacted at a meeting of the Council of Governors
unless at least one third of the whole number of governors elected or
appointed are present; and that of those governors present service user, carer
and public governors are in the majority.

Deputies: There is no constitutional provision for a deputy to attend on behalf
of a governor

Non-quorate meeting: Non-quorate meetings may go forward unless there
has been an instruction from the chair not to proceed with the meeting. Any
decisions made by the non-quorate meeting must be reviewed at the next
quorate meeting.

Alternate chair: The Chair of the Council of Governors shall be the Chair of
the Trust. In the absence of the Chair of the Trust, (or in the event of the
Chair declaring an interest in an agenda item) the Deputy Chair shall chair the
meeting. Should the Deputy Chair not be available (or where they too have
also declared an interest in an agenda item), the meeting shall be chaired by
one of the governors present at the meeting, this shall normally be the Lead
Governor.

4 MEETINGS OF THE GROUP

Frequency: Meetings of the Council of Governors shall be held at such times
as the Council may determine, however the Council of Governors will
normally meet five times a year (plus the Annual Members’ Meeting) with all
meetings being held in public, although this shall not preclude any items of
business being conducted in private. The items taken in private will be
determined in accordance with pre-arranged criteria.
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A full set of papers comprising the agenda, minutes of the previous meeting
and associated reports and papers will be sent within the timescale set out in
the Standing Orders to all governors and others as may be agreed with the
Chair from time to time.

Urgent meeting: Any governor may, in writing to the chair, request an urgent
meeting. The chair will normally agree to call an urgent meeting to discuss the
specific matter unless the opportunity exists to discuss the matter in a more
expedient manner.

Minutes: The Head of Corporate Governance shall ensure the minutes of the
meeting are taken and will also ensure these are presented to the next
Council of Governors’ meeting, and that these are signed by the person
presiding at the meeting.

The agenda, minutes and Council papers of each general meeting (excluding
any confidential papers) shall be displayed on the Trust website, and the
minutes will be presented to the Board of Directors for information.

5 AUTHORITY

Establishment: The Trust shall establish a Council of Governors in accordance
with the requirements of the NHS Act 2006, and paragraph 10 of its Constitution.

Powers: Its powers are detailed in the NHS Act 2006; Monitor’s NHS
Foundation Trusts’ Code of Governance; Trust’s Scheme of Delegation.

Cessation: The Council of Governors is a statutory body and as such must
remain for as long as it is empowered in statute.

6 ROLE OF THE GROUP

6.1 Purpose of the Group

The general statutory duties of the Council of Governors are to:

 Hold the non-executive directors to account (both collectively and
individually) for the performance of the Board of Directors

 Represent the interests of the members of the Trust as a whole and the
interests of the public

 Influence the forward plans of the Trust.
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6.2 Guiding principles for members (and attendees) when carrying out the
duties of the Council of Governors

In carrying out their duties, members of the Council of Governors and any
attendees must ensure that they act in accordance with the values of the Trust
which are:

 Respect and dignity
 Commitment to quality of care
 Compassion
 Improving lives
 Working together
 Everyone counts.

Governors must also abide by the “Council of Governors’ Code of Conduct and
Standards of Behaviour”, which all Governors must sign. Governors must also
have regard for the “Council of Governors’ Meeting Etiquette”.

6.3 Duties of the Council of Governors

The Council of Governors will be required to carry out a number of statutory
duties under the NHS Act 2006 (as amended by the Health and Social Care
Act 2012). These are contained in the Constitution and are as follows (for
avoidance of doubt the wording in the Constitution shall take precedence
should there be any conflict between this document and the Constitution):

 Hold the non-executive directors to account (both collectively and
individually) for the performance of the Board of Directors

 Represent the interests of the members of the Trust as a whole and the
interests of the public

 Influence the forward plans of the Trust

 Appoint and, if appropriate, remove the chair

 Appoint and, if appropriate, remove the other non-executive directors

 Decide the remuneration and allowances, and the other terms and
conditions of office, of the Chair of the Trust and the other non-
executive directors

 Approve the appointment of the Chief Executive

 Appoint the Deputy Chair of the Trust

 Appoint and, if appropriate, remove the Trust’s auditor (i.e. the
organisation that will, amongst other things, check the Trust’s finances
each year)
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 Receive the Trust’s annual accounts, any report of the auditor on them
and the annual report

 Require one or more of the directors or a representative of the Trust’s
auditors to attend a meeting to obtain information about the Trust’s
performance, or information about how the directors have performed
their duties in order to determine if there is a need to vote on issues
concerning that performance

 Approve (or not) by vote:

o The implementation of any proposals to increase by 5% or
more the proportion of its total income in any financial year
attributable to activities other than the provision of goods and
services for the purposes of the health service in England

o Entering into a significant transaction (a significant
transaction is defined in the Constitution)

o An application to Monitor (one of our regulators) for a merger
with or the acquisition of another foundation trust or NHS
trust

o An application to Monitor for the separation or dissolution of
the foundation trust

o Amendments to the Constitution

o To decide to refer a governor’s question to Monitor’s Panel
so that governors can determine if the Trust has failed or is
failing to act in accordance with its Constitution or any
provision made by or under Chapter 5 of the NHS Act 2006.

 Determine whether it is satisfied that any proposals to carry out
activities other than the provision of goods and services for the
purposes of the health service in England that the Trust proposes will
not, to any significant extent, interfere with the Trust’s provision of NHS
services and notify the Board of its view.

The Council of Governors is also responsible for:

 Considering complaints about any member of the Trust in accordance with
Annex 9 of the Constitution and take action which may include expulsion
from the membership of the Trust.

 Ratifying the removal of any member of the Council of Governors for any
reason as set out in Annex 6 of the Constitution.
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 Agreeing a clear process for the appointment of the Chair of the Trust
and the other non-executive directors

 Agreeing a process for the evaluation or appraisal of the Chair of the
Trust and the other non-executives, including the outcomes of the
evaluation of the Chair of the Trust and the non-executive directors

 Receiving a high-level report on the outcome of the evaluation or
appraisal of the Chair of the Trust or the other non-executive directors,
including where this is linked to a re-appointment process

 Assessing its own collective performance and its impact on the Trust
and communicate to members how governors have discharged their
duties

 Taking the lead in agreeing with the Audit and Assurance Committee
the criteria for appointing, reappointing and removing external auditors

 Establishing a policy for engagement with the Board of Directors for
those circumstances when they have concerns about the performance
of the Board of Directors or other matters related to the general
wellbeing of the Trust

 Agreeing with the executive directors what information it needs to
receive at its meetings

 Agreeing who from amongst the governors should be appointed as the
Lead Governor

 Responding as appropriate to any matter when referred by the Board of
Directors.

 Participating in the development of the Trust’s strategy and values.

 Giving a view to the Board of Directors of the Trust’s strategic plan.

7 RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHER GROUPS AND COMMITTEES

The Council of Governors may delegate some of its powers to formally constituted
committees. Formally constituted committees of the Council of Governors are as
follows:

 The Appointments and Remuneration Committee
 The Membership and Development Committee
 The Strategy Committee.
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Minutes from the above Committees shall be presented to the next scheduled
meeting of the Council of the Governors following the committee meeting. The
sub-committee structure is detailed below.

When practicable, after the Board of Directors’ meeting the Board must send
a copy of the minutes to the Council of Governors

8 DUTIES OF THE CHAIRPERSON

The chair of the Council shall be responsible for:

 Agreeing the agenda with the Head of Corporate Governance
 Directing the conduct of the meeting ensuring it operates in accordance

with the Trust’s values.
 Giving direction to the minute taker.
 Ensuring all governors have an opportunity to contribute to the

discussion.
 Ensuring the agenda is balanced and discussions are productive, and

when they are not productive they are efficiently brought to a
conclusion.

 Deciding when it is beneficial to vote on a motion or decision.
 Checking the minutes.
 Ensuring sufficient information is presented to the Board of Directors in

respect of the matters discussed by the Council and ensuring that
issues raised by the Board of directors are appropriately reported to the
Board.

9 REVIEW OF THE TERMS OF REFERENCE AND EFFECTIVENESS

The Terms of Reference shall be reviewed and ratified annually by the Council of
Governors.

Council of Governors

Membership and
Development

Committee

Appointments
and

Remuneration
Committee

Strategy
Committee
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The Council of Governors must also carry out an assessment of how effectively it
is carrying out its duties and make a report to its members including any
recommendations for improvement.
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Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

Council of Governors

Name of paper: Minutes of the meeting of the Board of
Directors held 23 June 2016

Date of the meeting: 6 September 2016

Person presenting the paper: Frank Griffiths - Chair of the Trust and Chair of
the Board of Directors

Paper written by: Cath Hill – Head of Corporate Governance
and Secretariat for the Board of Directors

TYPE OF PAPER (please tick)

Strategic item:

Performance item: 

Governance item:

Information item: 

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC GOALS (please tick relevant box)

G1 People achieve their agreed goals for improving health and improving lives 

G2 People experience safe care 

G3 People have a positive experience of their care and support 

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES (please tick relevant box)

SO1
We provide excellent quality, evidence-based, safe care that involves people
and promotes recovery and wellbeing

SO2 We work with partners and local communities to improve health and lives

SO3 We value and develop our workforce and those supporting us

SO4 We provide efficient and sustainable services

SO5 We govern our Trust effectively and meet our regulatory requirements 

Agenda Item

14
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STATUS OF PAPER 

To be taken in the public session (Part A) 

To be taken in private session (Part B)

If the paper is to be taken in the private session please indicate which criterion
is applicable:

Legal advice relating to legal proceedings (actual or possible)
Negotiations in respect of employee relations where they are of a
confidential nature
Procurement processes and contract negotiations
Information relating to identifiable individuals or groups of individuals

Matters exempt under the Freedom of Information Act (quote section
number)

The Council of Governors receives the minutes of the public meetings of
the Board of Directors for information. These are attached to this paper.

What this is about in detail:

Under the Health and Social Care Act 2012 the Board of Directors is required
to provide the minutes of the meetings to the Council as soon as is
practicable.

The minutes for the Board of Directors, which are attached to this paper,
contain a summary of the discussion of each item and a record of any actions
required. They also show challenge from non-executive directors to the
executive directors on how the Trust has performed. This provides evidence
that the NEDs are holding the executives to account for the performance of
the Board.

These are presented to the Council of Governors for information.

Summary (what we are talking about):
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The Council of Governors is asked to receive the minutes of the Board
of Directors for information.

Recommendations (what we are asked to agree):
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AGENDA ITEM 14

LEEDS AND YORK PARTNERSHIP NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Minutes of the Public Meeting of the Board of Directors
held on held on Thursday 23 June 2016

in Studio 7, Northern Ballet, Quarry Hill, Leeds, LS2 7PA

Board Members Apologies Voting
Members

Ms J Copeland Interim Chief Executive 

Mr A Deery Director of Nursing 

Mr F Griffiths Chair of the Trust 

Mrs D Hanwell Chief Financial Officer  

Dr J Isherwood Medical Director 

Mrs L Parkinson Interim Chief Operating Officer  

Mrs M Sentamu Non-executive Director (Deputy Chair of the Trust) 

Mrs J Tankard Non-executive Director 

Dr G Taylor Non-executive Director (Senior Independent Director)  

Prof C Thompson Non-executive Director  

Mrs S Tyler Director of Workforce Development 

Mr K Woodhouse Non-executive Director 

Mr S Wrigley-Howe Non-executive Director 

In attendance
Ms F Limbert Governance Assistant (secretariat)
Ms R Cooper Administration Assistant
Mr D Brewin, Deputy Director of Finance attending for agenda item 7 (minute 16/0095)
Ms K Gorse-Brightwater CQC Inspector (observing the Board meeting)

Action

The Chair opened the meeting at 13.30 and welcomed members of the Board of
Directors and members of the public. Mr Griffiths noted that the meeting was
being observed by Olayemi Karim from Ernst and Young as part of the Well-led
Review.

16/088 Apologies for absence (agenda item 1)

Apologies were received from Mrs D Hanwell, Chief Financial Officer; Mrs L
Parkinson, Interim Chief Operating Officer; Dr G Taylor, Non-executive Director;
and Prof Thompson, Non-executive Director. Mr Griffiths noted the large number
of apologies was due to having to change the date of the meeting at short notice.

16/089 Declaration of change in directors’ interests and any conflict of interests in
respect of agenda items (agenda item 2)

It was noted by the Board that there were no changes advised by any director in
respect of their declarations of interest and that no director present at the meeting
had any conflict of interest in respect of any agenda item to be discussed.
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16/090 Opportunity to receive comments / questions from members of the public
(agenda item 3)

There were no questions from the public.

16/091 Minutes of the meeting held on 28 April 2016 (agenda item 4.1)

The minutes of the meeting held on 28 April 2016 were received and agreed as a
true record of the meeting.

16/092 Minutes of the extraordinary meeting held on 23 May 2016 (agenda item 4.2)

The minutes of the meeting held on 23 May 2016 were received and agreed as a
true record of the meeting.

16/093 Matters arising (agenda item 5)

There were no matters arising.

16/094 Actions outstanding from the public meetings of the Board of Directors
(agenda item 6)

Ms Limbert presented the action log which showed those actions previously
agreed by the Board at its public meetings, those that had been recently
completed and those that were still outstanding. Ms Limbert noted that on this
occasion there were no actions outstanding.

The Board received the log and noted there were no actions outstanding.

16/095 Integrated Quality and Performance (IQP) Report and quarter 1 monitoring
returns / self-certification (agenda item 7)

Mr Deery presented the IQP Exception Report, noting that this reports on
exceptions pertaining to the month of May where performance is below expected
targets. Mr Deery reported that the introduction of this report was agreed in
relation to feedback from the recent Well-led Review, noting that a full quarterly
report will still be brought to the Board in line with the dates for the NHS
Improvement Board self-assessment returns.

With regard to the information provided in the report Mr Deery assured the Board
that none of these exceptions affect the Trust’s performance of compliance with
KPIs as required by NHS Improvement.

Mr Deery drew attention to those areas of under-performance including: the
appraisals target noting that this was still below 90%; the Trigger to Board event
relating to a defective Mental Health Act detention; data completeness around
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ethnicity; adult liaison services seeing services users within three hours; and the
mental health payment system clustering. Mr Deery noted that there are action
plans in place for each of these areas of underperformance and that for the report
at the end of Quarter 1 it is expected there will be a shift in performance closer to
the target.

With regard to the Trigger to Board event Mr Griffiths asked Mr Deery to explain
the medical scrutiny as described in the report. Mr Deery and Dr Isherwood
explained how this is different from the administrative scrutiny and what the
requirements of the act are in regard to this.

Mr Woodhouse supported this new report. He noted that progress had been
made over the last 6 months which was good to see. However, he noted that
during his visits to services staff are noting the pressure they are under due to the
number of vacancies and that they are having to decide how to prioritise their
time, with the result that service users are taking priority over carrying out for
example, appraisals. With this in mind he asked where the recruitment initiatives
are up to. Mrs Tyler acknowledged the fact that staff are having to prioritise their
time. She also noted that nationally there is a shortage of nursing staff and that
recruitment is a challenge for this and other Trusts. Mrs Tyler advised the Board
of the initiatives that have been undertaken to attract staff to the Trust and
outlined the successes and outcomes of these, whilst acknowledging the ongoing
challenge particularly in the Band 5 nursing posts in some areas. She also
outlined the future plans for recruitment drives and also the changes to internal
processes to help support these drives.

Mrs Tankard asked for assurance that clinical staff time is focussed on care rather
than on ‘housekeeping’ or administrative tasks. Mr Deery and Ms Copeland
assured the Board of the work to ensure staff time is appropriately used.

Mr Wrigley-Howe asked about the CPA target noting that some service users
appear not to have a Care Co-ordinator. Mr Deery explained the work that is
being undertaken to look at this matter on a case-by-case basis. Mr Griffiths
asked Mr Deery to bring a report back on this matter to a future Board meeting.

With regard to financial performance Mr Brewin outlined to the Board the control
total and original plan assumptions noting that the original plan to make a £1
million surplus had then been superseded by a control total of £3.051 million,
which he noted had been mandated on the Trust by NHS Improvement and
agreed by members of the Board outside of the meeting.

Mr Brewin set out the caveats to achieving this revised control total noting that
this now requires the Trust to identify additional CIPs and increase its planned to
surplus to £2.1 million. Mr Brewin advised the Board that if this increased surplus
is achieved the CCG will give the Trust a cash sum of £900k, thereby resulting in
an overall surplus at the end of the year of £3 million.

Mr Brewin then set out the current financial position and forecast position in
relation to these assumptions noting that at the end of May 2016 the Trust had
achieved a surplus of £80k noting that this is behind even the original plan for the
Trust to achieve a £1 million surplus. Mr Brewin then advised the Board that the
surplus of £80k had been achieved through non-recurrent items and if these are

AD
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taken out the Trust’s underlying position is a deficit of £404k as at month 2, noting
that this is mainly due to spending on Out of Area Treatments whereby the Trust
is spending more on these than it is funded for; CIPs which haven’t yet been
achieved; and the offset of the vacancies the Trust is carrying.

With regard to the forecast Mr Brewin explained how this had been calculated and
the assumptions made including the OATs spending remaining at the current level
month-on-month and advised the Board that the best-case position is £0.5 million
deficit by the end of March 2017, with a Financial Risk Rating of 2, noting that this
would not be acceptable to our regulator and would incur detailed scrutiny of the
organisation not least because the Trust had failed to meet the imposed surplus.

The Board noted that the Trust was a significant way from the financial plan as
required by the regulator and discussed what measures could be put in place.

Mrs Tankard asked about OATs for locked rehabilitation and what the options are
for caring for these service users other than out of area. Mr Deery noted that the
bed modelling exercise carried out earlier in the year indicated that there were the
correct number of beds in the Trust, but noted that there is clearly now a demand
issue in relation to beds. Mr Deery then explained what the Trust is doing within
the care pathways and the criteria for treating people in various types of facilities
to ensure service users are treated in the most appropriate way and ensure the
capacity to treat people within Trust services, either as inpatients or in the
community. Ms Copeland also noted that the CCG has recognised this as a
system issue and are looking at how the Trust can be supported in relation to the
increased demand. However, Ms Copeland noted that there is the option for the
Trust to hand back the budget to the commissioners and transfer the risk to them.

Mrs Sentamu asked about CIPs and how the achievement of these can be
accelerated. Mr Brewin outlined some of the key areas where there are
opportunities for CIPs being achieved including the possibility of looking at options
around our PFI estate and processes around procurement. He also noted that all
CIPs require a Quality Impact Assessment to be carried out prior to commencing,
and will be monitored as they progress with the option of halting them if they are
having an adverse impact on quality.

Mr Woodhouse asked about the control total and whether there has been any
legal contest to what the regulator is imposing on Foundation Trusts, and whether
the Trust has made it clear to NHS Improvement what the likely outcome is for the
services in the organisation resulting from the imposed surplus. Ms Copeland
noted that she was not aware of any challenge. She also noted that it would
appear that it would appear that mental health trusts who traditionally have larger
surpluses are being asked to support the acute sector to a greater degree. She
also noted the huge challenge to the Trust in achieving the control total.

With regard to the matter of our PFI options Mr Griffiths asked for a fuller report to
be brought back to the Board.

DH

The Board noted the exceptions and was assured that there were action plans in
place to address the underperformance.
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16/096 Serious untoward incidents update and lessons learnt following the Trust
Incident Review Group (TIRG) meeting held on the 11 May 2016 (agenda item
8)

Dr Isherwood presented the paper and advised the Board that there were only a
small number of cases discussed at the meeting, but assured the Board that the
backlog was being addressed and that systems were in place to ensure continued
progress was made.

Dr Isherwood outlined some of the lessons learnt from the various incidents
investigated. He also noted that the Mortality Review Group was now in place
and that this reports to TIRG.

Mr Woodhouse asked about the £4 million funding which the Board had approved
for improvements in the estate and how the use of this was progressing. Mr
Deery outlined the four areas identified: replacement of radiator covers, bathroom
and toilet facility upgrades, the replacement of furniture, and anti-barricade doors,
noting that work was centring on the priority areas first and that an action plan
was in place to complete work in the other areas. He then outlined the work that
had already been undertaken and that which is still waiting to be completed.

The Board received and noted the content of the report.

16/097 Safer Staffing Report (agenda item 9)

Mr Deery presented the safer staffing report for the month of April and highlighted
four areas not meeting the standards expected. He explained the causes for
these exceptions and assured the Board that mitigations were in place in all other
areas to ensure safe and adequate staffing.

Mr Wrigley-Howe asked for a trend analysis to be included in the report to help
identify any hot-spots.

The Board received the safer staffing report and noted the exceptions and the
reasons for these occurring.

16/098 Complaints Summary Report (agenda item 10)

Mr Deery presented the complaints summary report noting that the system
continues to perform effectively. He noted that complaints training had been
rolled out to staff across the Trust, he also noted that the complaints team is
managing to achieve the 30-day response time except for the cases where an
alternative timeline had been agreed with the complainant.

Mr Deery then drew attention to the outcome of complaints closed within the
month and outlined some of the issues reported back to the clinical teams so
these could be addressed. In particular he noted that the reliance on bank and
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agency staff is something service users complain about and indicated that this
issue is being addressed through safer staffing.

Mrs Sentamu noted that some of the delays in response to complainants. Mr
Deery explained the steps being taken to address this.

Mr Woodhouse asked about clinical claims in particular a case with a value of £12
million. Mr Deery agreed to report back in relation to the detail around this case. AD

The Board received the complaints summary report and noted the progress
being made and also some of the issues which are reported by complainants and
what is being done to address these within the services.

16/099 Trust Strategy and Sustainability and Transformation Plan Update (agenda
item 11)

Ms Copeland presented a paper updating the Board on progress with refreshing
the Trust’s Five Year Strategy and the development of the Leeds and West
Yorkshire Sustainability and Transformation Plans (STPs).

She noted that the Trust’s strategy was responding to national and local
developments including the STP for Leeds and West Yorkshire. She also noted
there was a comprehensive process of engagement including with staff,
governors, members, service users and carers. She also noted that 20% of staff
had engaged with the Clever Together process, which was a very good response.

Ms Copeland noted that the strategy will be brought to the Board and the Council
of Governors as it is developed. She also noted that it was intended to bring a
draft of the strategy to the Annual Members’ Day in order to start the consultation
on the content with stakeholders and to ensure there is time to allow it to reflect
the outcome of the STP.

In relation to governors Ms Copeland indicated there is a group which has been
formed to allow governors to input meaningfully to the development of the
strategy noting that Mr Wrigley-Howe had been invited to join that group.

With regard to the STPs Ms Copeland noted that these are high-level documents
with the West Yorkshire STP becoming the most prominent due to it being the
preferred unit of planning within the system. Ms Copeland drew attention in
particular to the opportunity to bid for Tier 4 CAMHS services noting that this was
being done in collaboration with Leeds Community Healthcare.

With regard to service provision in Leeds Ms Copeland noted that there had been
a meeting with commissioners on how the Trust and Leeds Community
Healthcare could work more collaboratively noting that the commissioners in
Leeds have indicated that there should be a single contracting mechanism for out
of hospital / community based care with there being a lead provider model. Ms
Copeland outlined the discussions that had taken place in relation to progressing
this to better understand the implications of it and the models through which this
will be delivered with a view to there being something in place by April 2017.
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The Board received the update report and discussed the content, its implications
and was assured with the progress made.

16/100 Verbal report from the chair of the Quality Committee for the extraordinary
meeting held 24 May 2016 (agenda item 12)

Mr Wrigley-Howe provided a verbal report of the extraordinary Quality Committee
which was held on 24 May 2016. He reported on the following matters:

 Assurance as to the progress made with preparations for the CQC
inspection.

The Board received the verbal report and noted the matters discussed at that
meeting.

16/101 Draft minutes of the meeting of the Quality Committee held 12 April 2016
(agenda item 12.1)

The draft minutes of the meeting of the Quality Committee meeting held on 12
April 2016 were received by the Board.

16/102 Draft minutes of the meeting of the Extraordinary Quality Committee held 24
May 2016 (agenda item 12.2)

The draft minutes of the extraordinary meeting of the Quality Committee meeting
held on 24 May 2016 were received by the Board.

16/103 Re-appointment of Mental Health Act Managers (agenda item 13)

Mr Deery presented to the Board a proposal about the re-appointment of a
number of Mental Health Act Managers following the expiry of their current term of
appointment which will come to an end on 30 September 2016. Mr Deery noted
that a recruitment process would be undertaken to ensure the pool of Mental
Health Act Managers is refreshed.

Mrs Sentamu asked the reason why there were nine managers undertaking
hearings in excess of the required 12-18 hearings a year. Mr Deery agreed to
look into why this was.

AD
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Having considered the matter the Board confirmed that Brian Kemp, Enid
Atkinson, Lindsay Councell, Heather Limbach, Bernard Marsden, David Walkden,
Maggie Archer, Brian Councell, Roger Helm, Anne Rice, and Jill Hetherton, would
be appointed for a further six months to conclude on 31 March 2017.

16/104 Ratification of the revised Terms of Reference for the Mental Health
Legislation Committee (agenda item 14)

Mr Wrigley-Howe presented the Terms of Reference for the Mental Health
Legislation Committee noting that these had been refreshed and agreed at the
last committee meeting.

He noted that the members of the committee had been reviewed although he
raised a question as to whether the committees of the Board should be made up
of only non-executive directors or should have a mixture of executive and non-
executives. Mrs Hill was asked to clarify this point.

He also drew attention to some of the changes made including the involvement of
the Mental Health Act Managers who would attend committee meetings and the
input that service users can make to understanding the patient’s experience of the
application of the Mental Health Act.

Mr Wrigley-Howe also referred to the recent judicial review in regard to decisions
taken at a Mental Health Act hearing. Mr Griffiths asked for the email outlining the
case to be circulated to all Board members.

CH

AD

The Board considered and ratified the revised Terms of Reference for the
Mental Health Act Committee.

16/105 Approval of the changes to the Trust’s Constitution (agenda item 15)

Ms Copeland presented the proposed changes to the Trust’s constitution, noting
that the changes were in regard to the make-up of the Council of Governors. Ms
Copeland reported that these changes had been presented to the Council of
Governors at their meeting on the 12 May and had been approved there and as
such asked the Board to now approve these.

Having considered the proposed changes to the Constitution to Board approved
these changes with immediate effect.

16/106 Chair’s report (agenda item 16)

Mr Griffiths noted there were no matters to report to the Board at this point.
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16/107 Confirmation of the independence of the Non-Executive Directors (agenda
item 16.1)

Mr Griffiths noted that at the Board meeting held on the 23 May 2016 the
independence of NEDs had been discussed and the Board had confirmed that
each of the NEDs were independent in character and judgement. Mr Griffiths
noted that this was now a mater to be reported in public and asked the Board to
again note this matter.

The Board noted the independence of NEDs.

16/108 Chief Executive’s report (agenda item 17)

Ms Copland presented the Chief Executives report noting that this is for
information which was noted by the Board.

The Board received and noted the Chief’ Executive’s report.

16/109 Draft minutes of the public meeting of the Council of Governors’ held 12
May 2016 (agenda item 18)

The Board received and noted the report minutes from the Council of Governors’
meeting held on 12 May 2016.

16/110 Draft minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee held 21 April 2016
(agenda item 19)

The Board received and noted the report minutes from the Audit Committee
meeting held on 21 April 2016.

16/111 Draft minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee held 18 May 2016
(agenda item 20)

The Board received and noted the report minutes from the Audit Committee
meeting held on 18 May 2016.

16/112 Draft minutes of the meeting of the Finance and Business Committee held
21 April 2016 (agenda item 21)
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The Board received and noted the report minutes from the Finance and
Business Committee meeting held on 21 April 2016.

16/113 Draft minutes of the meeting of the Mental Health Legislation Committee
held 19 April 2016 (agenda item 22)

The Board received and noted the report minutes from the Mental Health
Legislation Committee meeting held on 19 April 2016.

16/114 NHSE Annual Organisational Audit Questionnaire 2015/16 (agenda item 23)

The Board received and noted the content of the NHSE Annual Organisational
Audit Questionnaire 2015/16.

16/115 Use of the Trust’s seal (agenda item 24)

Mr Griffiths noted that the Trust seal had been used on one occasion since the
last meeting:

 Log number 93 signed on the 9 June 2016; licence for alterations for 34-36
Springwell Road, Leeds.

The Board noted that the seal had been used once since the last meeting.

16/116 Any other business (agenda item 25)

There were no items of other business.

16/117 Further Questions or Comments from the Public (agenda item 26)

There were no further questions from members of the public.

At the conclusion of business the Chair closed the public meeting of the Board of Directors of Leeds
and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust at 15:20 and thanked members of the Board and

members of the public for attending.
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Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

Council of Governors

Name of paper: Membership and Events Report

Date of the meeting: 6th September 2016

Person presenting the paper: Anthony Deery, Director of Nursing, Professions and
Quality

Paper written by: Scharna Lewis. Membership and Marketing Officer

TYPE OF PAPER (please tick)

Strategic item:

Performance item: 

Governance item:

Information item: 

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC GOALS (please tick relevant box)

G1 People achieve their agreed goals for improving health and improving lives 

G2 People experience safe care 

G3 People have a positive experience of their care and support 

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES (please tick relevant box)

SO1
We provide excellent quality, evidence-based, safe care that involves people
and promotes recovery and wellbeing



SO2 We work with partners and local communities to improve health and lives 

SO3 We value and develop our workforce and those supporting us

SO4 We provide efficient and sustainable services

SO5 We govern our Trust effectively and meet our regulatory requirements 

Agenda Item

15
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STATUS OF PAPER 

To be taken in the public session (Part A)


To be taken in private session (Part B)

If the paper is to be taken in the private session please indicate which criterion
is applicable:

Legal advice relating to legal proceedings (actual or possible)
Negotiations in respect of employee relations where they are of a
confidential nature
Procurement processes and contract negotiations
Information relating to identifiable individuals or groups of individuals

Matters exempt under the Freedom of Information Act (quote section
number)

This report provides assurance regarding membership recruitment and
engagement

What this is about in detail:
See attached report

Summary (what we are talking about):

Recommendations (what we are asked to agree):
Governors are asked to have assurance that we manage
the recruitment of members in line with Monitors
guidance. Governors are reminded that membership
recruitment is part of their responsibility and are always
welcome to support the membership team.



Membership and Events Report July 2016

PART A

Introduction

This report is to provide the Council of Governors with assurance regarding the current membership engagement activity and future
events and opportunities that are booking for membership recruitment and engagement. Governors are encouraged and welcome
to come along and support the membership team on all these events..

Part B contains the information and data that the council requires to provide assurance that our membership reflects the community
we represent, this is required by Monitor.

The current membership stands at 17,666 members including staff, service user, carer and public constituencies (-18).

This is the number of active members within our membership, the number has continued to reduce following the recent mail out of
‘Imagine’ (Deceased (2), moved (47), opt outs (12), duplicates (0) left employment (3), total reduction = 64

Recruitment Events

We have held a number of events in the past three months. Future events are also listed below.

July

5 Everything you need to know about Eating Disorders Leeds Carriageworks 6

13 Future me 2026 Health Watch Leeds Oxford Place 6

July

21 Older peoples forum Leeds St Georges Centre 0

28 Building your trust remodelling older peoples services Leeds Arch café 3



September

20 AMD Leeds Carriage Works

Members from Leeds Community Healthcare 0

Returned sign up forms 0

Staff to public 35

Signed up online 2



The Committee have in the past discussed setting a membership target for governors to individually sign up. The Team regularly
send out invitations and requests for help at events. This last quarter, this is an overview of governor recruitment activity.

Governors
Those who have helped at membership

events
Signed members up

Steve Howarth

Philip Jones

Niccola Swan

Andrew Bottomley

Alan Procter

Julia Raven

Maria Trainer

Ann Shuter

Claire Woodham

Andrew Johnson

Jo Sharpe Gender ID meeting

Ruth Grant

Dominik Klinikowski



PART B

This section provides assurance data that demonstrates how we are maintaining a representative membership
base

The current membership stands at 17,666 members including staff, service user, carer and public
constituencies



Current membership breakdown

Below is a breakdown of the current membership. A more detailed report will be provided to the committee on an
annual basis or can be produced upon request

Public Patient Staff Total NY&York

Age 13,040 1,225 3,401 17,666 1,727

0-16 0 0 0 0 0

17-21 200 18 14 232 81

22-29 2,795 106 414 3315 314

30-39 2281 158 832 3271 267

40-49 1513 200 841 2554 287

50-59 1480 213 782 2475 334

60-74 1129 226 239 1594 196

75+ 436 91 3 530 44

Not stated 3206 213 276 3695 204

Gender 13,040 1,225 3,401 17,666 1,727

Unspecified 12 1 0 13 5

Male 4840 395 994 6229 484

Female 8179 825 2407 11411 1237

Transgender 9 4 0 13 1

Ethnicity 13,040 1,225 3,401 17666 1,727

White - English, Welsh, Scottish, Northern Irish, British, gypsy, Irish
traveller

11008 1042 2694 14744 1538



Mixed -Any other white background White and Black Caribbean,
African

219 23 49 291 21

Asian or Asian British: Indian; Pakistani; Bangladeshi; any other Asian
background

583 52 194 829 32

Black or Black British: Caribbean; African; any other Black background 341 29 324 694 9

Other Ethnic Groups: Arab: Chinese; any other ethnic group 98 11 18 127 14

Not stated 791 68 122 981 113

Total 13,040 1,225 3,401 17,666 1,727



Carer and Service User members

We are still working closely with the Service User Involvement Leads to continue the growth of patient member
representation.

Constituency Members Difference

Service User Total 705

Leeds resident 603 -7

York & North Yorkshire 102

Carer Total 408

Leeds resident 358 +2

York & North Yorkshire 50

Service User and Carer combined Total -3

Service User and Carer Rest of England and Wales 112

Total number of patient members: 1,225 (-8)



Additional information

 Since December 2010, we have to collect data detailing sexual orientation. So far the data we have
received is as follows:

Gay/lesbian 318
Bisexual 152
Heterosexual 2713
Asexual 6

The government estimate that 5-7% of the general population are LGB. Currently our membership
database shows a 17.5% average.

 Since February 2011, we have collect data regarding disability. So far when asked ‘do you consider
yourself to have a disability or long term health condition’ we have received the following responses:

Yes 685
No 2131

19% of the working age population are registered disabled (www.dlf.org.uk). Currently our membership
database shows a 24.1% average.



Leeds- Phillip Jones & Steve Howarth

Leeds Public

Age 9,244
0-16 0
17-21 70
22+ 6,534
Not stated 2,640

Gender 9,244
Unspecified 6
Male 3,564
Female 5,672
Transgender 2

Ethnicity 9,244
White 7,688
Mixed 166
Asian or Asian British 451
Black or Black British 289
Other Ethnic Groups 73
Not stated 577

Total membership 9,244



North Yorkshire & York- Jo Sharpe.

North Yorkshire and York Public

Age 1,727
0-16 0
17-21 81
22+ 1,442
Not stated 204

Gender 1,727
Unspecified 5
Male 484
Female 1,237
Transgender 1

Ethnicity 1,727
White: British 1,538
Mixed 21
Asian or Asian British 32
Black or Black British 9
Other Ethnic Groups 14
Not stated 113

Total membership 1,727



Rest of England & Wales- Niccola Swan

Rest of Public England & Wales
Public

Age 1,973
0-16 0
17-21 53
22+ 1,568
Not stated 352

Gender 1,973
Unspecified 2
Male 758
Female 1,207
Transgender 6

Ethnicity 1,973
White - British 1697
Mixed 29
Asian or Asian British 97
Black or Black British 42
Other Ethnic Groups 11
Not stated 97

Total membership 1,973



Carer Leeds – Andrew Bottomley & Alan Proctor

Carer Leeds Patient
Age 358
0-16 0
17-21 3
22+ 281
Not stated 74

Gender 358
Unspecified 0
Male 93
Female 265
Transgender 0

Ethnicity 358
White - British 310
Mixed 10
Asian or Asian British 12
Black or Black British 16
Other Ethnic Groups 4
Not stated 6

Total membership 358



Carer North Yorkshire & York- Julia Raven

Carer North Yorkshire & York Patient

Age 50

0-16 0
17-21 2
22+ 43
Not stated 5

Gender 50
Unspecified 0
Male 7
Female 43
Transgender 0

Ethnicity 50
White 48
Mixed 0
Asian or Asian British 0
Black or Black British 0
Other Ethnic Groups 0
Not stated 2

Total membership 50



Service user and Carer - Rest of England & Wales

Service User/Carer Rest of England and Wales Patient

Age 112
0-16 0
17-21 4
22+ 89
Not stated 19

Gender 112
Unspecified 0
Male 40
Female 70
Transgender 2

Ethnicity 112
White 97
Mixed 1
Asian or Asian British 8
Black or Black British - Caribbean 2
Other Ethnic Groups 0
Not stated 4

Total membership 112



Service user Leeds- Maria Trainer, Ann Shuter & Claire Woodham

Service User Leeds Patient

Age 603
0-16 0
17-21 2
22+ 496
Not stated 105

Gender 603
Unspecified 1
Male 227
Female 373
Transgender 2

Ethnicity 603
White 493
Mixed 11
Asian or Asian British 32
Black or Black British 11
Other Ethnic Groups 4
Not stated 52

Total membership 603



Service User North Yorkshire & York- Elizabeth Rowland

Service User North Yorkshire & York Patient
Age 102
0-16 0
17-21 7
22+ 85
Not stated 10

Gender 102
Unspecified 0
Male 28
Female 74
Transgender 0

Ethnicity 102
White 94
Mixed 1
Asian or Asian British 0
Black or Black British - Caribbean 0
Other Ethnic Groups 3
Not stated 4

Total membership 102



Out of trust area 90
Clinical staff Leeds, North Yorkshire and York - Andrew Johnson

Service User North Yorkshire & York Patient
Age 2,695
0-16 0
17-21 11
22+ 2458
Not stated 226

Gender 2,695
Unspecified 0
Male 812
Female 1,883
Transgender 0

Ethnicity 2,695
White 2085
Mixed 36
Asian or Asian British 156
Black or Black British - Caribbean 295
Other Ethnic Groups 16
Not stated 107

Total membership 2,695



Non-clinical staff Leeds, North Yorkshire and York – Dominik Klinikowski & Ruth Grant

Service User North Yorkshire & York Patient
Age 706
0-16 0
17-21 3
22+ 653
Not stated 50

Gender 706
Unspecified 0
Male 182
Female 524
Transgender 0

Ethnicity 706
White 609
Mixed 13
Asian or Asian British 38
Black or Black British - Caribbean 29
Other Ethnic Groups 2
Not stated 15

Total membership 706
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Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

Council of Governors

Name of paper: Minutes from the Appointments and Remuneration
Committee meetings held 4 May and 12 May

Date of the meeting: 6 September 2016

Person presenting the paper: Cath Hill – Head of Corporate Governance

Paper written by: Cath Hill – Head of Corporate Governance

TYPE OF PAPER (please tick)

Strategic item:

Performance item: 

Governance item:

Information item: 

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC GOALS (please tick relevant box)

G1 People achieve their agreed goals for improving health and improving lives 

G2 People experience safe care 

G3 People have a positive experience of their care and support 

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES (please tick relevant box)

SO1
We provide excellent quality, evidence-based, safe care that involves people
and promotes recovery and wellbeing

SO2 We work with partners and local communities to improve health and lives

SO3 We value and develop our workforce and those supporting us

SO4 We provide efficient and sustainable services

SO5 We govern our Trust effectively and meet our regulatory requirements 

Agenda Item

16
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STATUS OF PAPER 

To be taken in the public session (Part A) 

To be taken in private session (Part B)

If the paper is to be taken in the private session please indicate which criterion
is applicable:

Legal advice relating to legal proceedings (actual or possible)
Negotiations in respect of employee relations where they are of a
confidential nature
Procurement processes and contract negotiations
Information relating to identifiable individuals or groups of individuals

Matters exempt under the Freedom of Information Act (quote section
number)

The minutes of the Appointments and Remuneration Committee are
presented to the Council for information and for assurance that the
committee is operating within its Terms of Reference.

The main items of discussion were:

 The skills, knowledge and experience; the appointment process;
and timetables for the appointment to the forthcoming Chair of the
Trust vacancy

 An update on the fit and proper tests for non-executive directors.

Summary (what we are talking about):
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The Council of Governors is asked to receive the minutes for the
Appointments and Remuneration Committee and note the items
discussed and to be assured that the committee is working within its
Terms of Reference.

Recommendations (what we are asked to agree):
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LEEDS AND YORK PARTNERSHIP NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Minutes of the Appointments and Remuneration Committee
Held on 5 July 2016 – Meeting Room 3, Trust Headquarters, 2150 Century Way,

Thorpe Park, Leeds LS15 8ZB

Present: Mr F Griffiths Chair of the Trust and Chair of the Committee
Miss C Woodham Service user governor: Leeds
Cllr H Douglas Appointed Governor (City of York Council)
Mrs N Swan Elected governor Public Rest of England and Wales
Mrs J Raven Elected governor Carer York and North Yorkshire

In attendance: Mrs C Hill Head of Corporate Governance (minutes)
Mrs S Tyler Director of Workforce Development

The meeting started at 3:15 pm and Mr Griffiths welcomed everyone.

Action
16/017 Apologies (agenda item 1)

Apologies were received from Mr S Howarth, elected
governor Public Leeds and Carol-Ann Reed, appointed
governor for Tenfold.

16/018 Committee members’ conflict of interests in any agenda
item (agenda item 2)

No governor declared a conflict of interest in any item on the
agenda. It was noted that there was an item on the agenda
in regard to the documentation, process and timetable for the
appointment of the Chair of the Trust, but that Mr Griffiths
had no conflict in respect of this item as he was ineligible to
apply for the position and as such the committee agreed that
he should remain in the room for this item.

16/019 Minutes of the meeting held on 4 May 2016 (agenda item
3.1)

Mrs Swan asked if there was a conscious decision not to put
the amount of remuneration uplift into the minutes. Mrs Hill
explained that there was no reason why it couldn’t be
included in the minutes, but pointed out that whilst the
committee will have looked at this matter in detail the Council
would then receive the same level of detail so it could ratify a
recommendation of the committee and as such amounts
would be made public in that way.
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The committee agreed the minutes of the meeting held on 4
May 2016 as an accurate record of that meeting.

16/020 Minutes of the meeting held on 12 May 2016 (agenda item
3.2)

The committee agreed the minutes of the meeting held on
12 May 2016 as an accurate record of that meeting.

16/021 Matters Arising (agenda item 4)

There were no matters arising.

16/022 Cumulative Action Log (agenda item 5)

The committee noted there were no actions outstanding.

16/023 Documentation, process and timetable for the
appointment of the Chair of the Trust (agenda item 6)

Mrs Hill presented the paper. She reminded the committee
that in accordance with the Terms of Reference for the
Nominations Committee the skills and experience had been
previously agreed by the Nominations Committee at its
meeting on the 28 April 2016 and that these had been used
to populate the documentation to be used in the appointment
process.

Mrs Hill also advised the committee that the format of the
documentation was that which had been used before and
asked the committee to support its use for this appointment
process. The committee discussed the documentation and
made some suggestions as to how the wording within the
duties could be amended which Mrs Hill agreed to action.

With regard to the timetable the committee noted the high-
level process steps which Mrs Hill advised had been taken
from the previously agreed procedure. The committee also
noted and agreed the timescales assigned to each step
including the conclusion of the process at the February 2017

CH
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Council of Governors’ meeting.

The committee noted and agreed the need to engage an
external search company to support this key appointment.
Mrs Swan asked that the cost of the external search
company be provided to the committee at a future date
including the efficacy of the company in securing an
appointment.

The committee received the documentation in relation to the
skill-set as agreed by the Nominations Committee and
supported the use of these in the process; noted the
appointment process as set out in the agreed procedure and
agreed the supporting detail of that process; agreed the
timescale against the high-level process steps; and agreed
the use of search companies used previously.

16/024 Update on the Fit and Proper Person checks for non-
executive directors (agenda item 7)

Mrs Hill advised the committee in regard to the fit and proper
person checks for non-executive directors noting that these
had now been completed. She explained the process which
had been undertaken.

Mrs Hill advised the committee of the outcome of the checks
which it discussed and agreed that all NEDs be deemed to
be fit and proper based on the outcome of the checks.

The committee noted that all non-executive directors had
been deemed to be fit and proper.

16/025 Any other business (agenda item 8)

There were no items of other business.

The meeting was closed at 15:45 and the chair thanked members for attending.
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APPOINTMENTS AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
ACTION SUMMARY

Meeting held 5 July 2016

MINUTE ACTION SUMMARY LEAD

16/023 Documentation, process and timetable for the
appointment of the Chair of the Trust (agenda item 6)

Mrs Hill also advised the committee that the format of the
documentation was that which had been used before and
asked the committee to support its use for this appointment
process. The committee discussed the documentation and
made some suggestions as to how the wording within the
duties could be amended which Mrs Hill agreed to action.

CH
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Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

Council of Governors

Name of paper: Future meeting dates

Date of the meeting: 6 September 2016

Person presenting the paper: Cath Hill – Head of Corporate Governance

Paper written by: Cath Hill – Head of Corporate Governance

TYPE OF PAPER (please tick)

Strategic item:

Performance item: 

Governance item:

Information item: 

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC GOALS (please tick relevant box)

G1 People achieve their agreed goals for improving health and improving lives 

G2 People experience safe care 

G3 People have a positive experience of their care and support 

IMPACT ON THE TRUST’S STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES (please tick relevant box)

SO1
We provide excellent quality, evidence-based, safe care that involves people
and promotes recovery and wellbeing

SO2 We work with partners and local communities to improve health and lives

SO3 We value and develop our workforce and those supporting us

SO4 We provide efficient and sustainable services

SO5 We govern our Trust effectively and meet our regulatory requirements 

Agenda Item

17
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STATUS OF PAPER 

To be taken in the public session (Part A)


To be taken in private session (Part B)

If the paper is to be taken in the private session please indicate which criterion
is applicable:

Legal advice relating to legal proceedings (actual or possible)
Negotiations in respect of employee relations where they are of a
confidential nature
Procurement processes and contract negotiations
Information relating to identifiable individuals or groups of individuals

Matters exempt under the Freedom of Information Act (quote section
number)

The Council of Governors is asked to note the future meeting dates for
Council meetings. It should also note that venues for these meeting
dates will be sourced and advised to governors separately.

Please can you hold the afternoon of each of these dates in your diary.

The Council of Governors is asked to note the future meeting dates for
Council meetings.

Summary (what we are talking about):

Recommendations (what we are asked to agree):



MEETINGS OF THE COUNCIL OF GOVERNORS

DATE

START
TIME

(public
meeting)

VENUE

Tuesday 14 February 2017 TBC The Large Function Room, St Georges Centre, Great George Street, Leeds LS3 1BR

Tuesday 16 May 2017 TBC The Large Function Room, St Georges Centre, Great George Street, Leeds LS3 1BR

Tuesday 25 July 2017 TBC The Large Function Room, St Georges Centre, Great George Street, Leeds LS3 1BR

Tuesday 5 September 2017 TBC TBC

Tuesday 14 November 2017 TBC TBC

All meetings will be held in the afternoon of the above dates, the exact schedule of meetings on that afternoon will be confirmed nearer to
the date, once agreed with the Chair.
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